
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023 1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84646094149?pwd=SWJUWjc2QjFzS0NaOEU2R1c1dFI0Zz09
ajennings
Highlight



1

Town Manager

From: Town Clerk
Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2023 3:08 PM
To: Assistant Clerk
Cc: Selectboard; Wendy Reed; Rick Parker; Chris Wile
Subject: Date / time set for Warrant closing, and for Special Town Meeting
Attachments: Article request form template.xlsx; Article request form template.pdf

The Select Board has set the date/time for fall Special Town Meeting (STM) as Monday, October 23rd at 7pm, to be held 
in the Annex.   

The Select Board expects to vote to close the STM Warrant at its meeting on Tuesday, September 5th.  Town 
departments, Boards, Commissions, and Committees are being asked to let the Town Clerk's Office know what if any 
proposed articles may be anticipated for the Fall STM.   

The Board has requested that any/all proposed warrant articles be received in the Town Clerks’ office no later than close 
of business Thursday, August 31st, including any/all relevant backup, so that these materials can be included in the 
Board’s meeting packet for their meeting on September 5th.  

Article Request Forms 
Due to there being newer members on the Finance Committee, Article Request Forms will be expected for all proposed 
Town Meeting Articles, even for recurring articles. Article Request Forms may include supporting documentation (basis 
of estimates, etc.).  

Please let us know if you need any assistance, 
 

James RW Blatchford 
Town Clerk  
Town of West Newbury 
Phone 978-363-1100 X 110 
Mobile 978-891-0039 
www.WNewbury.org  

 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
2



A

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
3



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
4



1

Town Manager

From: Charles Wegrzyn 
Sent: Monday, July 17, 2023 9:30 AM
To: Town Manager
Subject: Town of West Newbury’s Aggregation Plan

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Angus, 
 
 Will we get to see any and all proposals from Competitive Suppliers before any is chosen? Right now I am paying under 
10 cents/kwh and I am really curious if this plan will do much better.  So I am very skeptical of this process, particularly if 
someone ()Selectman or Town Mgr)  believes it should all be "green power" and that 30 cents/kWH is a good deal. 
 
Chuck Wegrzyn 

 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
5



1

Town Manager

From: Town Manager
Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2023 1:26 PM
To: Charles Wegrzyn
Cc: Selectboard
Subject: RE: Town of West Newbury’s Aggregation Plan

Chuck, 
   Thanks for your note.  This will be included among other public comments received when the Select Board holds its 
public hearing on the proposed aggregation plan at their meeting on Aug 21 at 7pm.  In the meantime, I can tell you that 
yes, all supplier proposals would be available for public review prior to any selection.  And, the program is “opt out” so 
you or any resident could opt out either before the program begins or at any time thereafter (and could opt back in at 
any time, as well, at your option).  I can tell you that the consultant is advising us that the aggregation plan can take 2-3 
years or more to secure approval from the Mass DPU, so this is not anything that will happen any time soon. 
 
Thanks again for your comment, 
  Angus 
 
 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 
 

From: Charles Wegrzyn   
Sent: Monday, July 17, 2023 9:30 AM 
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: Town of West Newbury’s Aggregation Plan 
 
Angus, 
 
 Will we get to see any and all proposals from Competitive Suppliers before any is chosen? Right now I am paying under 
10 cents/kwh and I am really curious if this plan will do much better.  So I am very skeptical of this process, particularly if 
someone ()Selectman or Town Mgr)  believes it should all be "green power" and that 30 cents/kWH is a good deal. 
 
Chuck Wegrzyn 

 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
6



1

Town Manager

From: Town Manager
Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2023 1:51 PM
To: Charles Wegrzyn
Cc: Selectboard
Subject: RE: Town of West Newbury’s Aggregation Plan

Chuck, 
   As a follow-up to my earlier response, I bounced your question off our consultant Colonial Power Group (which would 
act as the town’s broker), and they offered the following: 
 

Excellent question by Mr. Wegrzyn,. The Town’s aggregation program is for customers in West Newbury that are 
on National Grid’s Basic Service. Mr. Wegrzyn will stay with his current contract/supplier until the contract is 
over then he will have a choice to make join the aggregation or sigh another contract or go to basic service. We 
do not receive customers on 3rd Part Supply’s information because the have already made a choice if we 
switched those customers, we would be slamming those customers into the aggregation. This practice is not 
allowed.  
 
These customers always have the ability to join the program they just will not be part of the initial opt out 
mailing. Should you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me.   

 
As per prior, all this will be included for Board review when they take this up for public hearing on Aug 21 st. 
 
Thanks, 
  Angus 
 
 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 
 

From: Town Manager  
Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2023 1:26 PM 
To: Charles Wegrzyn  
Cc: Selectboard <selectboard@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: RE: Town of West Newbury’s Aggregation Plan 
 
Chuck, 
   Thanks for your note.  This will be included among other public comments received when the Select Board holds its 
public hearing on the proposed aggregation plan at their meeting on Aug 21 at 7pm.  In the meantime, I can tell you that 
yes, all supplier proposals would be available for public review prior to any selection.  And, the program is “opt out” so 
you or any resident could opt out either before the program begins or at any time thereafter (and could opt back in at 
any time, as well, at your option).  I can tell you that the consultant is advising us that the aggregation plan can take 2-3 
years or more to secure approval from the Mass DPU, so this is not anything that will happen any time soon. 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
7



2

Thanks again for your comment, 
  Angus 
 
 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 
 

From: Charles Wegrzyn   
Sent: Monday, July 17, 2023 9:30 AM 
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: Town of West Newbury’s Aggregation Plan 
 
Angus, 
 
 Will we get to see any and all proposals from Competitive Suppliers before any is chosen? Right now I am paying under 
10 cents/kwh and I am really curious if this plan will do much better.  So I am very skeptical of this process, particularly if 
someone ()Selectman or Town Mgr)  believes it should all be "green power" and that 30 cents/kWH is a good deal. 
 
Chuck Wegrzyn 

 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
8



1

Town Manager

From: Elisa Grammer 
Sent: Thursday, August 3, 2023 1:33 PM
To: Town Manager; Executive Assistant
Subject: Comments on West Newbury's Municipal Aggregation PLan

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

 
 
Dear Mr. Jennings: 

In response to West Newbury’s call for public comments on the Municipal Aggregation Plan the Town released for 
comment on July 17, 2023, I write to state my support as a resident of West Newbury. 

In addition to a J.D. from the College of William & Mary, I hold a graduate degree in energy and environmental law 
from George Washington University. For many years I practiced energy and environmental law in Washington, 
D.C. My clients included the California Department of Water Resources, the state’s largest single power user, as well 
as municipal entities and others. Now I am a member of the Massachusetts bar and occasionally provide pro bono 
representation on behalf of environmental/consumer interests before the state’s Department of Public Utilities.  

With municipal aggregation, West Newbury gains the opportunity to establish more stable power rates (as 
compared to the utility’s Basic Service, which changes every six months) and, importantly, more environmentally 
sustainable power supplies. It also provides the opportunity—experienced in many municipalities—for lower energy 
costs than available from the utilities. A University of Massachusetts, Amherst, study concluded, “As of May 2018, 
municipal aggregation programs offering 1%, 5%, 20% and 25% additional Class I RECs above the Massachusetts 
RPS requirements were all providing rates below the Basic Service Rates.  Of the programs which offered 50% or 
100% Class I REC ‘green-up’ options, approximately half were offering a lower rate than Basic Service.” According 
to data provided in D.P.U. dockets 21-80 and 21-81, municipal aggregations in the Commonwealth represent over 
half over Eversource’s and almost a third of National Grid’s customer base—and this data does not include 
additional municipal aggregations subsequently approved or in the pipeline.  

Accordingly, I strongly support this plan and request that these comments be included in the record in this matter. 

  

Respectfully submitted, 

 
--  
Elisa J. Grammer 
  

 
  
This communication and any accompanying document(s) are confidential and privileged. They are intended for the sole 
use of the addressee. If you receive this transmission in error, you are advised that any disclosure, copying, distribution, 
or the taking of any action in reliance upon the communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
communication in error, please contact me at the Internet address or telephone number provided herewith. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
9



1

Town Manager

From: Richard Parker 
Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 3:58 PM
To: Town Manager; Arthur Wallace
Subject: FW: Information on Municipal Aggregation

FYI 
 

From: Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources <Green.Communities@mass.gov> 
Reply-To: <Green.Communities@mass.gov> 
Date: Friday, August 18, 2023 at 1:43 PM 
To:  
Subject: Information on Municipal Aggregation 
 

 

Information on Municipal Aggregation 
 

Dear Stakeholder, 
 
On August 15, 2023, the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities (DPU) opened an 
investigation to establish municipal aggregation guidelines, with the goal of creating a more 
efficient and streamlined process for Massachusetts cities and towns to establish municipal 
aggregation programs for their residents and businesses.    
 
The DPU Order opens an investigation, and includes proposed guidelines, as well as a 
proposed template municipal aggregation plan designed to aid municipalities in developing 
new municipal aggregation plans. As part of its investigation, the DPU proposes an expedited 
review process for certain municipalities that comply with the proposed template plan and 
specific provisions to help expedite the DPU’s review.    
 
The DPU seeks public comments on the proposed guidelines and template plan, which the 
DPU will take into account prior to issuing final guidelines and a final template plan. The DPU 
will accept initial written comment no later than 5:00 p.m. on September 18, 2023. Instructions 
to submit written comments are included on pages 8-9 of the DPU Order. 
 
If a municipality has any questions, please reach out to your Green Communities Regional 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
10



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
11



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
12



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
13



 
 

 
 
 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
 —— 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 
 

 

D.P.U. 23-67 August 15, 2023 

Investigation by the Department of Public Utilities on its own Motion into Establishing 
Guidelines for Municipal Aggregation Proceedings. 
____________________________________________________________________________  

  
VOTE AND ORDER OPENING INVESTIGATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
14



D.P.U. 23-67  Page 1 
 

 

I. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

Municipal aggregation is a program where a municipal government buys electricity 

supply for the benefit of its residents and businesses.  Municipal aggregation has existed in 

Massachusetts since 1997.  In accordance with G.L. c. 164, § 134(a), municipal aggregation 

plans must be submitted to the Department of Public Utilities (“Department”) for review and 

approval.  Since the Department approved the first municipal aggregation plan in August 2000,1 

the Department has approved 177 such programs.  The Department has issued 22 Orders related 

to municipal aggregation since January 1, 2022.  The most recent data from the Department of 

Energy Resources (“DOER”) show that as of March 2023, there were over 1.2 million municipal 

aggregation customers in Massachusetts.2 

To date, the Department has addressed each municipal aggregation plan filing on a 

case-by-case basis and developed a body of precedent comprising rules governing the operation 

of municipal aggregation programs and requirements for municipal aggregation plans based on 

the issues that arose during each proceeding.  As a result, municipalities must ensure continuous 

review of each municipal aggregation Order issued by the Department to understand these 

developing rules and requirements.  This process has made the application process for 

municipalities more challenging, and has also resulted in a lengthy review process at the 

Department, as municipalities revised their applications in light of evolving requirements.  As a 

 
1 Cape Light Compact, D.T.E. 00-47 (2000). 

2 Electric Customer Choice Data, https://www.mass.gov/doc/2023-electric-customer-
choice/download.  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
15

https://www.mass.gov/doc/2023-electric-customer-choice/download
https://www.mass.gov/doc/2023-electric-customer-choice/download


D.P.U. 23-67  Page 2 
 

 

result, there is an unacceptable backlog of applications pending at the Department that suggests a 

different approach is warranted.  

In this Order, the Department opens an investigation to (1) establish guidelines governing 

the filing requirements and the process by which the Department reviews and evaluates 

municipal aggregation plans, as well as the rules governing operation of a municipal aggregation 

program (“Guidelines”), and (2) set forth a template plan (“Template Plan”).  The purpose of the 

Guidelines and Template Plan is to provide guidance to prospective and existing municipal 

aggregations, establish a uniform set of rules and requirements for municipal aggregation plans 

filed before the Department that are consolidated into two documents, and help expedite 

Department review of municipal aggregation plans.  Further, municipalities will be eligible for 

expedited review of proposed municipal aggregation plans by the Department when they comply 

with all elements of the Template Plan, including the specific requirements concerning expedited 

review set forth therein.3  The Guidelines and Template Plan are intended to be updated over 

time to capture and incorporate changes in Department policies and laws governing municipal 

aggregations, as well as experience gained through the ongoing operation of municipal 

aggregation plans across the Commonwealth. 

 
3  As discussed more fully in the Guidelines, in the case of an application substantially 

complying with the Template Plan, the Department will seek to conduct its review of a 
proposed municipal aggregation plan within ninety (90) days from the date such plan is 
determined to be eligible for expedited review.  That determination will be made through 
an initial assessment by the Department, which is intended to be conducted within thirty 
(30) days of filing.  Thus, an expedited review is to be conducted within 120 days of 
initial plan filing (30 days to determine substantial compliance with expedited review 
requirements, and, if deemed substantially compliant with the Template Plan, an 
additional 90 days for Department review and decision). 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
16



D.P.U. 23-67  Page 3 
 

 

By providing this clear direction and otherwise streamlining the process for reviewing 

and approving municipal aggregation plans, the Department intends to move expeditiously to 

address the backlog of applications currently pending before the Department, as well as simplify 

the process going forward in the interests of reducing the administrative resources – on the part 

of both the municipalities and the Department – devoted to this issue. 

The proposed Guidelines are attached to this Order as Appendix A.  The proposed 

Template Plan is attached to this Order as Appendix B.  The Department seeks comment on 

Appendices A and B. 

The Department has statutory oversight over the provision of electric power and energy 

service to aggregated customers, as set forth by the laws and regulations governing aggregated 

electric power and energy services in competitive markets.  G.L. c. 164, §§ 1F, 134(a); 

Rulemaking to Establish Rules Governing the Unbundling of Services Related to the Provision 

of Natural Gas, D.T.E. 98-32-E (2000).  General Laws c. 164, § 134(a) authorizes any 

municipality or group of municipalities to aggregate the electrical load of interested customers 

within its boundaries, provided that the load is not served by a municipal light plant.  Upon 

approval by the local governing entity or entities, a municipality or group of municipalities may 

develop a municipal aggregation plan, in consultation with DOER and for review by its citizens, 

providing detailed information to customers on the process and consequences of aggregation.  

G.L. c. 164, § 134(a).   

As noted above, municipal aggregation plans must be submitted to the Department for 

review and approval.  G.L. c. 164, § 134(a).  The Department’s review of a municipal 

aggregation plan ensures that the plan meets the requirements of G.L. c. 164, § 134, and any 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
17



D.P.U. 23-67  Page 4 
 

 

other statutory or Department requirements concerning aggregated service.  In addition, the 

Department determines whether a plan is consistent with provisions in the Department’s 

regulations that apply to competitive suppliers and electricity brokers.  See 220 CMR 11.00.4  

The Guidelines, when approved, will establish a process that the Department will 

uniformly implement when a municipality files a municipal aggregation plan with the 

Department pursuant to G.L. c. 164, § 134(a).  The Guidelines also establish a set of rules that 

govern the operations of municipal aggregation programs.  The Guidelines describe:  (1) the 

general rules for municipal aggregation programs; (2) a new rule requiring municipalities to 

propose a fixed launch date for their municipal aggregation programs; (3) enrollment rules and 

procedures for opt-out and opt-in products: (4) customer notification requirements; (5) plan 

amendment requirements and procedures; (6) notification requirements for changing electric 

brokers or consultants; and (7) rules and requirements in the event of termination of a municipal 

aggregation program.  With limited exceptions, the rules set forth in Guidelines primarily 

memorialize the Department’s directives and rules established through our prior Orders.   

As mentioned above, through this investigation the Department proposes new 

requirements related to establishing a fixed program launch date, which are designed to balance 

(1) the municipality’s need for flexibility in determining when to launch its program with (2) the 

impact on the risk borne by the suppliers of basic service associated with the uncertainty of load 

 
4  Although the Department’s regulations exempt municipal aggregators from certain 

provisions contained therein, the regulations provide no such exemption for the 
competitive suppliers that are selected to serve a municipal aggregation load.  
See 220 CMR 11.01(2). 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
18



D.P.U. 23-67  Page 5 
 

 

migration resulting from municipal aggregation program commencement.5  The Department has 

previously determined that the law does not require that a municipal aggregation program must 

launch by a certain date.  City of Fitchburg, D.P.U. 20-117, at 41 (2022); Town of Milton, 

D.P.U. 19-84, at 40 (2020).  Instead, the Department has allowed municipalities to determine 

when to launch their program after Department approval but requires on-going notifications to 

the electric distribution company and the Department about potential launch timeframes.  

D.P.U. 20-117, at 41; D.P.U. 19-84, at 40; City of Boston, D.P.U. 19-65, at 41-43 (2020).  While 

the Department has not required municipalities to launch their programs by a date certain, the 

Department has consistently observed that the uncertainty surrounding the launch date of a 

municipal aggregation program poses a risk for suppliers of basic service and, as a result, likely 

increased the price of basic service.  Town of Westwood, D.P.U. 20-24-A at 11 (2022); 

D.P.U. 20-117, at 41; D.P.U. 19-84, at 41; City of Waltham, D.P.U. 19-83, at 42 (2020); 

D.P.U. 19-65, at 42; City of Worcester, D.P.U. 19-41, at 19 (2019); City of Lowell, 

D.P.U. 12-124, at 61-62 (2013).   

The Department has taken steps to help mitigate these risks by setting forth requirements 

for municipalities to report on potential launch windows, and more recently, placing certain 

requirements around the deadline for municipalities to launch their programs.  D.P.U. 20-117, 

at 41-42; D.P.U. 20-24-A at 12-13; Town of Cohasset et al., D.P.U. 20-19-A through 

 
5  Basic service refers to electricity supply by electric distribution companies to their 

customers that are not served by a licensed competitive supplier, including customers 
served by a competitive supplier in a municipal aggregation program.  220 CMR 11.02.  
Electric distribution companies do not earn a return on or derive a profit from providing 
basic service.  See G.L. c. 164, § 1B(d); Pricing and Procurement of Default Service, 
D.T.E. 02-40-B at 15-18 (2003). 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
19



D.P.U. 23-67  Page 6 
 

 

D.P.U. 20-23-A at 3-4 (2022).  The Department has also signaled that a municipality’s failure to 

launch by its anticipated specific launch window could warrant the Department taking 

appropriate action to mitigate the impact on basic service rates of an unanticipated launch of a 

municipal aggregation program.  D.P.U. 19-65, at 43.   

During recent years, Massachusetts electricity customers have experienced significant 

increases in basic service rates.  Investigation by the Department of Public Utilities on its own 

Motion into the Provision of Basic Service, D.P.U. 23-50, at 1 (2023).  In addition to increases in 

basic service rates, there were numerous instances in 2022 where the electric distribution 

companies were not able to fully procure basic service supply for a customer class through their 

solicitations.6  D.P.U. 23-50, at 10-11.  The growth of municipal aggregation programs, coupled 

with and the uncertainty of program start dates, are known factors that have increased the basic 

service load risk.  D.P.U. 23-50, at 10, citing Fitchburg Gas and Electric Light Company, 

D.P.U. 22-BSF-A4.  Pursuant to G.L. c. 164, § 1B(d), the Department is obligated to ensure that 

(1) each electric distribution company provide basic service; (2) basic service be competitively 

procured; (3) the basic service rate “shall not exceed the average monthly market price of 

electricity;” and (4) bids to supply basic service “shall include payment options with rates that 

remain uniform for periods of up to six months.”  Given the increasing impact of the uncertainty 

 
6  Prior to 2022, the distribution companies were, with one exception, able to successfully 

procure all-requirements supply contracts from wholesale suppliers.  The exception was 
for Western Massachusetts Electric Company (now NSTAR Electric’s Eversource West 
territory), which received no bids in response to a 2014 solicitation for its large C&I 
customers and subsequently procured basic service supply for these customers directly 
from the wholesale markets administered by ISO-NE.  Western Massachusetts Electric 
Company, D.P.U. 14-BSF-B2, Stamp-Approved Alternative Procurement Plan (May 22, 
2014). 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
20



D.P.U. 23-67  Page 7 
 

 

municipal aggregation commencements are having on basic service rates and procurement, the 

Department finds that it is necessary to institute a requirement that each municipal aggregation 

plan determine its program launch date in advance to reduce the uncertainty of customer 

migration for basic service suppliers caused by municipal aggregation program commencements.   

The Department finds that the designation of a program launch date should continue to 

rest with the municipality.  Under the Department’s proposed requirement, a proposed municipal 

aggregation plan must include an intended launch date, assuming Department approval within 

specified timeframes.7  In the event the Department does not approve the municipal aggregation 

plan within the specified timeframe, the municipal aggregation will be able to update the 

proposed launch date.  After Department approval, however, if a municipality determines it will 

not launch its program on the designated date in its plan, the municipality must (1) notify the 

Department and the relevant electric distribution company, at least 60 days prior to the 

designated date, that it does not intend to launch on the selected date, and (2) propose a new 

launch date no sooner than six months after the original proposed date.  The inclusion of a fixed 

date in a municipality’s proposed plan is intended to provide basic service suppliers some 

advance notice and increased certainty regarding customer migration resulting from the launch of 

the municipal aggregation – and thereby minimize the risk of price increases for basic 

service – while preserving the flexibility of a municipality to designate the desired launch date 

 
7  The municipality’s selected date must be a date specific, not a launch period or window 

containing a range of days, weeks, or months.   

For municipalities requesting expedited review, the intended launch date 
should assume Department approval within 120 days of the date of filing. Municipalities 
that do not request an expedited review should assume Department approval within 
180 days of the date of filing. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
21



D.P.U. 23-67  Page 8 
 

 

for its aggregation program.  If the program will not launch on the date designated, municipal 

aggregation programs must launch within two years of the date of final Department approval of 

the municipality’s plan so long as the new launch date is at least six months after the original 

proposed date.  D.P.U. 20-24-A at 11; D.P.U. 20-19 through D.P.U. 20-23-A at 3-4. 

The Template Plan, when employed with all required elements and without substantive 

changes, will foster expedited review thereof.  While a municipality is not obligated to use the 

Template Plan as a model, substantial deviation from the Template will make it ineligible for 

expedited review of its plan by the Department.   

With this Order, the Department opens an investigation and provides draft Guidelines and 

a draft Template Plan.  See Apps. A and B.  The Department also solicits comments from all 

interested stakeholders on the draft Guidelines and draft Template Plan.  

II. REQUEST FOR COMMENTS 

The Department invites all interested persons to participate in this investigation.  The 

Department seeks written comments on the proposed Guidelines and proposed Template Plan, 

including any suggested alternate language.  The Department requests that interested persons file 

joint comments where feasible.  Commenters should refer to the specific sections of the 

Guidelines and Template Plan that are the subject of their comments.  The Department will 

accept initial written comments no later than 5:00 p.m. on September 18, 2023, and reply 

comments will be due no later than 5:00 p.m. on October 19, 2023.   

All comments should be submitted to the Department in electronic format by e-mail 

attachment to dpu.efiling@mass.gov, stephanie.mealey@mass.gov, and 

lauren.morris@mass.gov,  The text of the e-mail must specify (1) the docket number of the 

proceeding (D.P.U. 23-67); (2) the name of the person or company submitting the filing; and 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
22

mailto:dpu.efiling@mass.gov
mailto:stephanie.mealey@mass.gov
mailto:lauren.morris@mass.gov


D.P.U. 23-67 Page 9 

(3) a brief descriptive title of the document.  The electronic filing should also include the name,

title, and telephone number of a person to contact in the event of questions about the filing.  All 

documents submitted in electronic format will be posted on the Department’s website by looking 

up the docket by its number in the docket database at:  

https://eeaonline.eea.state.ma.us/DPU/Fileroom/. 

III. VOTE AND ORDER

Accordingly, the Department

VOTES:  To open an investigation concerning the guidelines for municipal aggregation

proceedings and development of a template plan; and it is 

ORDERED:  That the Secretary of the Department shall compile a service list that 

includes the service lists for all municipal aggregation proceedings, the Attorney General of the 

Commonwealth, the Department of Energy Resources, each electric distribution company, and 

the service list for D.P.U. 19-07, and make service of a copy of this Order from such list; and it is 

FURTHER ORDERED:  That all stakeholders and commenters shall comply with all 

directives contained in this Order. 

By Order of the Department, 

James M. Van Nostrand, Chair 

Cecile M. Fraser, Commissioner 

Staci Rubin, Commissioner 

~~ I / 

(,; l4 /t,_,, /1·1, J;;cl{/);{_/V 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
23

https://eeaonline.eea.state.ma.us/DPU/Fileroom/


2

Coordinator. 
 
Thank you,  
 
DOER 
 
 You are receiving this update due to your interest in municipal energy activities. 

   

 

Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources 
100 Cambridge St. 9th Floor 

Boston, MA 02114 
  

 

Share this email:  

     

Manage your preferences | Opt out using TrueRemove® 
Got this as a forward? Sign up to receive our future emails. 
View this email online.  

100 Cambridge St. 9th Floor 
Boston, MA | 02114 United States  

This email was sent to parkerrg@comcast.net.  
To continue receiving our emails, add us to your address book.  

    
  

 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
24



Article request form 
Article: To see if the town will vote to grant the Select Board authority to research, develop and 
participate in a contract, or contracts, to aggregate the electricity load of the residents and businesses in 
the Town and for other related services, independently, or in joint action with other municipalities, 
retaining the right of individual residents and businesses to opt-out of the aggregation, and take any 
other action relative thereto. 

Amount requested: $0 

Contact Person:  Arthur Wallace 

Phone number:  

Why should the Town make this purchase?  What needs will be met?  Who will benefit? 

Electricity aggregation, known as municipal aggregation under M.G.L. Chapter 164, Section 134, enables 
the Town to provide new electricity supply options for our residents and businesses. Through strategic 
procurement, the Town can select the term length and renewable energy content of the electricity 
supply options. Nearly half of municipalities in Massachusetts have approved municipal aggregation 
programs and many of them have chosen to include more renewable energy than required by State law. 
If a municipal aggregation is implemented in our Town, individual residents and businesses would retain 
the right to opt-out of the aggregation with no penalty and to choose any other competitive supplier or 
stay with the default utility. With municipal aggregation the electric utility, National Grid, will remain 
responsible for distribution of electricity, maintaining electricity infrastructure and responding to power 
outages. The warrant article allows the Town to explore aggregation but does not obligate it to pursue 
aggregation if conditions are not favorable. 

What factors affect the timing of this purchase? 

There is no purchase at this time, simply an authorization to research, develop and participate in a 
contract to aggregate the electricity load of the residents and businesses in Town.   

When should this Article be sunsetted-how long will the project take? 

We are not sure a sunset date is required since there is no money being requested at this time. 

It should be possible to research the issue and decide whether to proceed with municipal aggregation by 
June 30, 2024.  The process requires an application to the Mass. Department of Public Utilities, which 
can deliberate for a year or more before approval.  Participation in an electricity supply contract or 
contracts may take until June 30, 2025 or later.     

What ancillary costs do you anticipate? (Maintenance, Insurance, Training, etc.) 

None.  Future use of consultant services is likely, but payment for those services is included in the 
electricity supply contract.  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
25



An innovative state energy program is
lowering emissions — and residents’ electric
bills
By  Dharna Noor  Globe Staff, Updated July 2, 2022, 8:25 a.m.

Massachusetts requires that clean energy be part of all electricity supplied to consumers. Under the state’s renewable portfolio standard,
that includes locally produced solar, wind, and some controversial sources like landfill gas. ERIC THAYER/BLOOMBERG

Massachusetts cities and towns are using an innovative state program to lower residents’ utility

bills while aggressively driving demand for clean power in the state, according to a new analysis.

The report, which comes as wholesale electricity prices soar in New England and across the
 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
26

https://www.bostonglobe.com/about/staff-list/staff/dharna-noor/?p1=Article_Byline
https://260434.fs1.hubspotusercontent-na1.net/hubfs/260434/GMA%20Report%202022%20-%20Final.pdf
https://www.utilitydive.com/news/power-electricity-prices-pjm-new-england-gas-lng/623724/
https://www.wcvb.com/article/new-england-electric-prices-expected-to-double/40311554


David Hsu, associate professor of urban and environmental planning at MIT, cautioned that the

current competitive prices may not survive coming shocks in the energy market amid inflation.

Still, the programs create other important benefits, he said.

The Community Choice Aggregation model allows cities and towns to pool homes and businesses

together to directly purchase energy from competitive power suppliers, rather than relying on

investor-owned utilities such as Eversource and National Grid. Almost 160 communities across

Massachusetts use the model, serving 54 percent of the state, according to the Green Energy

Consumers Alliance.

Once seen primarily as a means to slash utility costs, aggregation is increasingly viewed as a way to

promote clean energy. In Boston, for instance, which purchases its power from Constellation

Energy, the standard plan is 10 percentage points cleaner than Eversource’s basic plan. Still,

through the first half of 2022, it saved users an average of $27.62 monthly, and from July through

December, it’s expected to save those customers an average of $40.26 monthly.

country, provides evidence that supporting clean energy doesn’t always have to come at a big cost

to consumers, said Larry Chretien, director of Green Energy Consumers Alliance, the nonprofit

organization that issued the report.

“Aggregation is a shining example of how it’s possible, at least sometimes, to have better outcomes

when we disrupt the status quo,” he said.

ADVERTISING

Replay

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
27

https://www.iea.org/commentaries/what-is-behind-soaring-energy-prices-and-what-happens-next
https://www.boston.gov/departments/environment/community-choice-electricity#rates


Massachusetts requires that clean energy be part of all electricity supplied to consumers. Under

the state’s renewable portfolio standard, that includes locally produced solar, wind, and some

controversial sources like landfill gas. This year, the minimum is 20 percent.

Eversource and National Grid, which each serve more than 1 million customers statewide,

purchase energy at that minimum requirement. But many aggregations are working with suppliers

who guarantee an even cleaner mix, a model the Alliance calls “green municipal aggregation.”

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
28

https://www.mass.gov/renewable-energy-portfolio-standard
https://www.bostonglobe.com/2021/01/23/metro/trashing-place/?p1=Article_Inline_Text_Link


How Massachusetts aggregations are driving demand for clean power
This map shows where Massachusetts' aggregations are and how much clean energy* is included in their default plans,
compared with the state requirements

1-4% additional 5-9% additional 10-19% additional 20-29% additional >30% additional
No additional Class 1 Option to opt up to additional Class I Approved by DPU In transition
Researching Expired or suspended

Source: Green Energy Consumers Alliance, *Clean energy means Class I energy, as defined in Massachusetts’ renewable portfolio standard. In 2022, the state requires a
minimum of Class I energy from all suppliers. • Ryan Huddle / Globe staff

A Flourish map

In Massachusetts, all aggregations are opt-out, meaning if your town has one, you’re automatically

enrolled into its standard package, but can choose to use the local utility or a competitive provider

instead.
 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
29

https://www.mass.gov/renewable-energy-portfolio-standard
https://flourish.studio/visualisations/maps/?utm_source=showcase&utm_campaign=visualisation/10345898


Municipalities control how much clean power their standard plans offer, and most choose to just

meet the state’s minimum. But the authors found that, currently, more than 50 municipalities’

standard plans are offering higher amounts of renewable power. Half of those offer at least 10

percentage points more clean energy than the required minimum; some have wildly exceeded the

state’s requirement. Newton’s standard energy package is the cleanest in the state, with an 82

percent renewable mix, and Lowell and Brookline, with 65 and 50 percent, respectively, are next

in line.

Many towns also offer optional “opt up” plans that provide 100 percent renewable power, which

costs a bit more, and “opt down” plans that are at the state’s minimum, which are a bit cheaper.

Your chosen energy package doesn’t guarantee that your home runs on a particular blend of

sources, because once power is produced, it gets combined with all other sources and integrated

into the grid.

Instead, clean energy percentages reflect how many renewable energy certificates — or credits for

supporting renewable energy projects — providers buy for every kilowatt hour of clean energy

purchased.

A variety of retailers say they sell “clean” certificates, but the report specifically focuses on the

amount of one particular class of energy credits that aggregations purchase. Due to their strict

requirements and high cost, Green Energy Consumers Alliance says these are most likely to drive

local demand.

Currently, aggregations are increasing demand statewide for clean energy beyond the state’s

requirements by about 11 percent, the report estimates.

In its first year, in 2021, the aggregation plan in Boston purchased more than 131,000 megawatt

hours of additional clean power, for an average of 191,000 customers, said Theresa Teixeira, the

program’s manager. This year, she said, the city is expecting to purchase even more due to an

“increase in customer participation.”

Standard service plans offering between 5 and 11 percent more clean energy than the state

minimum — a group that includes Boston Somerville and more than 30 other communities —
 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
30

https://masspowerchoice.com/newton/options-pricing
https://colonialpowergroup.com/lowell/lowell-further-pricing/
https://www.brooklinema.gov/1341/Energy-Choices
https://www.srectrade.com/markets/rps/class-1/massachusetts
https://www.theverge.com/2022/6/9/23160508/corporate-renewable-energy-misleading-rec-power-purchase-climate
https://cce.somervillema.gov/electricity-rates/


minimum  a group that includes Boston, Somerville, and more than 30 other communities 

saved customers an average of $78 per year over basic utility plans, the research suggests.

That doesn’t necessarily mean renewables are cheaper than fossil-powered energy. Rather,

municipalities are able to negotiate lower rates, Chretien said, because they can guarantee

providers more business. Utility companies must sign new electricity contracts — and change their

rates — every six months. But communities can negotiate longer-term contracts that encourage

suppliers to offer better prices. They also have more flexibility on when to sign contracts, giving

them more time to weigh options and assess market conditions.

At least recently, even municipal plans with high renewable percentages have offered competitive

prices. For instance, from January through June, Eversource’s basic service cost about 15.8 cents

per kilowatt hour. In Newton, which is also served by Eversource, the standard municipal plan

included 62 percent more renewables and cost about 13.5 cents per kilowatt hour.

On July 1, Eversource rates in Newton increased to about 17.9 cents per kilowatt hour, a 15-year

high. But since Newton’s aggregation prices are locked in until January 2024, residents will

continue to enjoy the lower prices.

Even 100 percent renewable customers are expected to save $19.25 per month over the Eversource

basic plan, said Ann Berwick, co-director of climate and sustainability for Newton. And in Boston,

100 percent renewable customers will save $24.08 per month over standard utility prices, officials

say.

But Hsu, the MIT professor, said though aggregations may have offered better deals during the

time period in the study — roughly from 2017 to this year — that trend won’t necessarily last.

“There’s no guarantee that three years from now, we won’t be opposite on that — that it wouldn’t

have been better to have the fluctuating price,” he said.

In Arlington, where Hsu lives, for instance, the aggregation contract will expire in November. If

energy prices are still high, that will affect customers for the duration of the next contract.

“They’re probably not going to be able to sign at the same low rates,” he said. “They’re probably

going to sign at something closer to what Eversource’s basic service is ”
 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
31

https://cce.somervillema.gov/electricity-rates/
https://fileservice.eea.comacloud.net/FileService.Api/file/FileRoom/14967604


going to sign at something closer to what Eversource s basic service is.

Still, Hsu said, aggregation is a useful tool to clean the grid and boost local control of energy — and

customers can always opt out to take advantage of lower rates.

In an e-mailed statement, Eversource said it does not oppose customers using aggregations, but

encourages them to “closely evaluate all options.”

A National Grid spokesperson said the company has “helped transition many cities and towns to

municipal aggregations” and will continue to do so, adding that the company is working to

decarbonize its operations.

National Grid’s Green Up program allows customers to pay a small premium to obtain additional

clean energy from renewable suppliers, she noted.

Green municipal aggregation has tremendous potential for growth, the Alliance says. If every

eligible community set up a plan with 10 percent more renewable content than the state requires —

and if every resident of those towns sticks with the standard option — that would result in demand

for 1,600 megawatts of additional clean power annually. That’s 60 percent more than the

researchers estimate Massachusetts will have in place by 2023.

To harness more of that potential, said Chretien, the state could expedite the approval process. He

says dozens of communities waited nearly a year to get theirs approved, and predicted more

communities would set them up if the process were faster.

“We think that’s just a travesty,” Chretien said.

The Department of Public Utilities says the pandemic caused delays in approvals. And it says its

complex approval process for municipal plans — which includes public hearings, reviewing

documentation, consultation with other agencies, among other requirements — is necessary to

ensure they operate fairly.

Dharna Noor can be reached at dharna.noor@globe.com. Follow her on Twitter @dharnanoor. 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
32

https://www9.nationalgridus.com/masselectric/home/energychoice/4_greenup_provider.asp
mailto:dharna.noor@globe.com
https://www.twitter.com/dharnanoor


Town of West Newbury 
Select Board 

selectboard@wnewbury.org 

July 2023 

Volunteer Boards, Commissions and Committees (BCC) are an integral part of the Town of West 
Newbury’s organization.  Although their origins range from proposals from interested residents to town 
meeting approved bylaws, members are appointed by the Select Board/Town Manager and serve 
specified terms prior to being considered for reappointment.  As appointed entities, the work of these 
BCC is expected to be consistent with current and long-term priorities of the Town.  In order to facilitate 
this, the Select Board will periodically review the size, terms, objectives, and accomplishments of all 
appointed BCC and provide direction and/or identify changes necessary to better reflect Town needs 
and operations.  Each BCC will be asked to participate in this process by completing the attached 
questionnaire and returning it to the Select Board for discussion in a public meeting. 

Appointed Boards, Commissions and Committees 

• Affordable Housing Trust
• Board of Fire Engineers
• Cable Advisory Committee
• Capital Improvements Committee
• Climate Change Resiliency Committee
• Community Preservation Committee
• Conservation Commission
• Council on Aging
• Cultural Council
• Energy & Sustainability Committee
• Finance Committee
• Harbor Committee
• Historic District Commission
• Historical Commission
• Investment Policy Committee
• Mill Pond Committee
• Open Space Committee
• Personnel Advisory Committee
• River Access Committee
• Tree Committee
• Whittier School Committee
• Zoning Board of Appeals

B

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
33

mailto:selectboard@wnewbury.org


Board, Commission, Committee Review  

July 2023  Page 1 
 

Please complete the following.  Note that the size of the answer space will expand as information is 
entered.  Also review the attached forms maintained by the Town Clerk’s Office and note changes. 

Name of BCC Investment Policy Committee 

Current Membership with 
Officers noted 

1. Jean Trim, Lark Madden, Angus Jennings (ex officio) Kaitlin 
Gilbert – Chris Wilde (was Chair) has been on the 
committee but termed out – he is willing to continue to 
serve; Lark will be Secretary and take the minutes. Also 
there is a representative of the Finance Committee and the 
Select Board that attend meetings  

Length of Terms Three years 

Meeting Schedule Usually quarterly  

Location of Meetings 
 

ZOOM during COVID, Town Hall when things are normal!   

Responsibility for Posting 
Meeting Agenda 

Lark Madden  

Responsibility for Taking 
Meeting Minutes 

Lark Madden  

Responsibility for Updating 
Website 

Chris Wilde  

Town Staff Liaison/Support (if 
any) 

Angus and Kaitlin; Select Board  

BCC Charge (Review attached 
excerpt from the 2023 BCC 
Charge document and note any 
differences with your 
objectives) 

There was no charge attached to the questionnaire. We understand 
our charge is to advise the Treasurer regarding the development of 
an Investment Policy Statement in compliance with Mass law; to 
advise on the selection of an investment manager to manage both 
the Stabilization Fund monies (generally short term high quality 
fixed income) and the OPEB monies (a longer term balanced 
portfolio of equities and debt); to work with the Audit and Actuarial 
advisors to advise the Town to properly make contributions to the 
OPEB account.   

Accomplishments since the last 
Evaluation 

We have re-written the investment policy statement; we are trying 
to get an RFP process in place to evaluate alternative managers for 
the Town; review of investment performance by current manager.  

Priorities for the Next Year Complete a review of the investment manager; assist Kaitlin in the 
management of all asset categories.  Possibly initiate transfer; 
evaluate Committee charge and potentially advise on CPA fund 
investment 

Two Year Priorities  Likely to complete a transfer of the accounts to a different 
manager; to reduce management fees and improve investment 
performance; to improve reporting capabilities  

Five Year Priorities Continue to assist in advising the Treasurer; recruit additional and 
effective members of the committee.  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
34



Board, Commission, Committee Review  

July 2023  Page 2 
 

How can the Select 
Board/Town Manager better 
support the work of this BCC? 

We serve as Advisors; once the manager is in place the committee 
meets regularly to review performance. We should re-evaluate 
managers within a 3 to 5 year timeframe (sooner if there is 
significant underperformance).  Our ability to get an RFP process in 
place this year has been significantly difficult and delayed.  

Are there other BCC whose 
work overlaps with yours? 

We are separate from the Library Trustees – but they are a Town 
entity that manages funds for the Library Endowment.  

Is there other input you wish to 
provide? 

We believe that the committee serves a useful purpose in giving 
volunteer but professional advice to the Treasurer regarding both 
the OPEB account and the shorter term accounts. By establishing a 
predictable and recurring review process, we bring value to the 
Town and to the beneficiaries of the OPEB account.   The 
committee is focused on the cost of the manager, the performance 
of the manager and prudently maximizing returns for West 
Newbury.  

Completed by Lark Madden  

Date July 31, 2023 

 

Investment Policy Committee 

Composition:  

5 members, appointed 

Date of Creation: 

2013 

Charge: 

Included in Investment Policy Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
35



Town of West Newbury 
Investment Policy Statement    April 2020 

13 

IV. The Investment Policy Committee
ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE 

1.1. The Investment Policy Committee is created for the sole purpose of providing advisory and oversight of the 
Town’s Investments, or as determined by the Town.  

ARTICLE 2 
Members 

2.1. The Investment Policy Committee shall consist of six (6) members, who shall include the Town Treasurer; a 
member of the Board of Selectmen voted annually by that Board; a member of the Finance Committee voted 
annually by that Committee; and three members of the community appointed to a 3-year term by the Board 
of Selectmen.  Upon expiration of the term or sooner resignation or removal of the Town Treasurer the 
position shall be deemed vacant. In case of a tie vote the representative of the Selectmen shall cast the 
deciding vote.  

2.2. The Board of Selectmen shall call for the first meeting of the Investment Policy Committee and the member 
of the Board of Selectmen shall serve as the initial Chairperson of the Investment Policy Committee to 
facilitate the organization of the Committee.  Thereafter, the Investment Policy Committee will annually elect 
a chairperson and a secretary. 

2.3. In the event an Investment Policy Committee member resigns, is removed or is otherwise unable to serve, 
the Board of Selectmen shall appoint an at large or Board of Selectmen to fill the vacancy. 

2.4 Upon leaving office, a member of the Investment Policy Committee shall promptly and without unreasonable 
delay, deliver to the Treasurer’s office any and all records, documents, or other documents in his possession 
or under his control belonging to the Funds.   

2.5 The members of the Investment Policy Committee shall be special municipal employees for purposes of G.L. 
c.268A and shall be subject to the restrictions and prohibitions set forth therein.
See:
http://www.mass.gov/ethics/education-and-training-resources/educational-materials/explanations-of-the-
conflict-of-interest-law/special-municipal-employees-summary.html
and
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartIV/TitleI/Chapter268A

ARTICLE 3 
LIABILITY OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY COMMITTEE 

3.1. A member of the Investment Policy Committee shall not be liable for any mistake of judgment or other action 
made, taken or omitted by a Committee member in good faith, nor for any action taken or omitted by any 
other member or any agent or employee selected with reasonable care, and the duties and obligations of the 
Investment Policy Committee member hereunder shall be expressly limited to those imposed upon them by 
this Investment Policy Statement.  

3.2. No successor member of the Investment Policy Committee shall be held responsible for an act or failure of a 
predecessor member of the Investment Policy Committee. 

3.3. Member of the Investment Policy Committee are public employees for purposes of G.L. c.258, and shall be 
indemnified by the Town against any civil claim, action, award, compromise, settlement or judgment by 
reason of an intentional tort to the same extent and under the same condition as other public employees of 
the Town.   

3.4. A member of the Investment Policy Committee shall not be indemnified for violation of the civil rights of 
any person if he acted in a grossly negligent, willful or malicious manner, or in connection with any matter 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
36



Town of West Newbury   
Investment Policy Statement                                                                                                   April 2020  

 

 14 

where it is shown to be a breach of fiduciary duty, an act of willful dishonesty or an intentional violation of 
law by the member of the Investment Policy Committee. 

 
ARTICLE 4 

MEETINGS OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
4.1. The Investment Policy Committee may meet at least semi-annually. 
 
4.2 The Investment Policy Committee shall comply with the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c.30A, §§18-25 and its 

implementing regulations.   
 
4.2. A quorum at any meeting shall be a majority of the Investment Policy Committee then in office. 
 

ARTICLE 5 
TAXES, EXPENSES, AND COMPENSATION 

 
 
 

 ARTICLE 6 
ACCOUNTS 

 
6.1. The books and records of the funds shall be audited annually by an independent auditor in accordance with 

accepted accounting practices.  The results of the audit shall be provided to the Town at the same time as it 
is presented to the Investment Policy Committee. 

 
 

ARTICLE  7 
INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 

 
7.1. The Investment Policy Committee hereby advises the Town Treasurer to contract with an outside manager 

invest and reinvest the amounts in a Fund not needed for current disbursement, consistent with the prudent 
investor rule, and as provided in the Investment Policy which is attached to this instrument and hereby 
incorporated.   

 
 

ARTICLE 8 
LIMITATION OF MEMBERS OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY COMMITTEE POWERS, DUTIES AND 

RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

8.1. Nothing contained in this Investment Policy Statement, either expressly or by implication, shall be deemed 
to impose any powers, duties or responsibilities on the members other than those set forth in this Investment 
Policy Statement. 

 
8.2. The members of the Investment Policy Committee shall not be liable for the making, retention or sale of any 

investment or reinvestment made by the Committee as herein provided or for any loss to or diminution of the 
any Funds or for anything done or admitted to be done by the Committee with respect to the Investment 
Policy Statement or the any Funds except as and only to the extent that such action constitutes a violation of 
the law or gross negligence.   

 
8.3. The Town, in its discretion, may also purchase liability insurance for the Investment Policy Committee 

members, and as the Town may select, for any person or persons who serve in a fiduciary capacity with 
respect to the Committee. 

 
8.4. The Town shall not assume any obligation or responsibility to any person for any act or failure to act of the 

members of the Investment Policy Committee, any insurance company, or any beneficiary of the any Funds.  
The Investment Policy Committee shall have no obligation or responsibility with respect to any action 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
37



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
38



1

Town Manager

From: Christopher Wilde 
Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 9:06 AM
To: Town Manager
Cc: Wendy Reed
Subject: Re: Reappointment to IPC

Hi Angus and Wendy, 

Yes, I am interested in reappointment. Please let me know if you need anything further from me ahead of the Monday 
meeting. 

Chris 

On Thu, Aug 17, 2023 at 6:25 PM Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> wrote: 

Hi Chris, 

   Wendy and I took from last week’s mtg that you would be interested in reappointment to IPC.  Can you please 
confirm?  This coming Monday 8/21, the Board’s agenda includes discussion of the IPC Charge (following on the 
questionnaire Wendy had sent over a couple of weeks ago), as well as your requested reappointment.   

Thanks, 

 Angus 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

Town of West Newbury 

Town Office Building 

381 Main Street 

West Newbury, MA 01985 

(978) 363-1100 x111

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

C

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
39



1

Town Manager

From: Thomas Banks <TBanks@B2Qassociates.com>
Sent: Monday, August 7, 2023 4:26 PM
To: Arthur Wallace
Cc: Gabrielle Cole; Town Manager; Rick Parker
Subject: RE: Questions on solar site feasibility report
Attachments: Final Report - West Newbury Solar Site Feasibility Screening 2023-08-07_without 

appendices.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Arthur, 

We have provided specific answers listed in the email chain below in red. Attached is a revised version of the report 
(without the appendix) which incorporates these comments/changes. I have provided a link to the full document below. 

We also found an error in our calculation file which accidently included the SMART incentives as a cost, not an incentive, 
for the PPA LCCAs for 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, and 1.5 ground mount. While this was an error in the economics of the original PPA 
number we sent over, the town would likely not be eligible for the incentive and this credit would go to the developer 
which in theory reduces the cost of the PPA to the town. For the purposes of this study, we included $0 for SMART 
incentives for the PPA economics and kept the incentive in place for the ownership LCCAs.   

Final Report - West Newbury Solar Site Feasibility Screening 2023-08-07_compiled 

Thank you, 
Tom Banks 

Tom Banks, P.E. 
Project Manager 

B2Q Associates 
100 Bur  Rd. Suite 212 
Andover, MA 01810 

A Woman Business Enterprise (WBE) 

Direct: (978) 447 – 5713 
Mobile: (508) 932 – 1432 
Main: (978) 447 – 5600 
Fax: (978) 719 – 6339 
tbanks@b2qassociates.com
www.b2qassociates.com

The contents of this e-mail and any a achments are confiden al and the property of the B2Q Associates. The e-mail 
contents are only to be used by the intended recipient of the e-mail. If you are not the intended recipient then use, 
disclosure, copying, distribu on or reliance on the e-mail is prohibited. All professional advice from us should be 
obtained in wri ng (not e-mail). 

D

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
40



2

From: Arthur Wallace   
Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 8:19 PM 
To: Thomas Banks <TBanks@B2Qassociates.com> 
Cc: Gabrielle Cole <GCole@B2Qassociates.com>; Rick Parker (WN) <rparker@wnewbury.org>; Town Manager 
<townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: Questions on solar site feasibility report 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Hi Tom,  
Thanks for the draft report, it will definitely help West Newbury define its options and goals going forward. 
A question has come up about projects 1.5 (DPW garage - ground) and 1.6 (Page School).   
How was the size of these projects determined? 
[TB] For both the DPW Garage and the Page School we tried to layout the panels how we understood them to be 
desired based on our site work. As the DPW Garage is close to the conversation area we tried to limit the layout to the 
small grass area we knew was safe. For the Page School we were trying to limit the layout from encroaching on any of 
the mature trees which may be controversial or more difficult to remove. We believe that we have been able to 
double the size of each layout without encroaching on any sensitive site work areas.   
It seems to us that there is room for projects at both sites that are more than double the size mentioned in the report. 
Do you agree? 
[TB] We are happy to make the layouts as large as the town would like for modeling the potential solar panel power. 
It should be noted, there is an inflection point where the site work becomes more cost prohibitive and until we get into 
the detailed design it is hard to determine what the exact size should be and what the existing conditions impact is on 
the new construction.  
Are there practical considerations that limit the size of projects at these two locations to those described in the report? 
[TB] As noted above, there are existing obstructions (mature trees, roadways, conservation land, etc.) that may limit 
how easily the solar panels can be implemented. Another item to consider is the SMART incentive program with limits 
each system to 25 kW, if we were to make the system at the DPW Garage any larger then it would not be eligible for 
the SMART incentive program.  
Or would it be reasonable for West Newbury to consider projects twice or more as large? 
Thanks, 
Arthur Wallace 
Energy & Sustainability Committee 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
41



1

Town Manager

From: Building Inspector
Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 10:26 AM
To: Town Manager; Conservation; DPW Admin; DPW Projects; Michael Dwyer; Paul Sevigny; 

Town Planner; Water Superintendent; Highway; Brian Richard
Cc: Executive Assistant
Subject: RE: Questions on solar site feasibility report

Morning, the report covers most of the comments I would have.  Canopy is a nice “feel good” dual use of space but is a 
more expensive install and can hinder snow removal.  Also, for consideration is the potential for vehicle impacts of 
residents using the parking.  Ground mount is most cost-effective install but takes away open space.  Currently we do 
not have zoning that would allow large scale BESS but Sue and I have had some preliminary conversations.  I also am 
working with the Groveland Light Department and Groveland Planning on developing a BESS bylaw that we may be able 
to utilize in the near future.  For public safety, town offices or school this could be a good power backup or secondary 
back up if a generator failed.  Building and Fire Departments are still very concerned about battery storage due to the 
difficulty to extinguish if they catch on fire.    
 
Sam Joslin 
Building Commissioner 
978-363-1100 x121 
Building.Inspector@WNewbury.org 
 

 
The Secretary of the Commonwealth's Office has determined that most e-mails to and from municipal offices and officials 
are public records.  Consequently, confidentiality should not be expected. 
 

From: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 12:50 PM 
To: Building Inspector <building.inspector@wnewbury.org>; Conservation <conservation@wnewbury.org>; DPW Admin 
<DPWAdmin@wnewbury.org>; DPW Projects <dpwprojects@wnewbury.org>; Michael Dwyer 
<dwyer@westnewburysafety.org>; Paul Sevigny <psevigny@wnewbury.org>; Town Planner 
<townplanner@wnewbury.org>; Water Superintendent <water.superintendent@wnewbury.org>; Highway 
<highway@wnewbury.org>; Brian Richard <brichard@wnewbury.org> 
Cc: Executive Assistant <exec.assistant@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: FW: Questions on solar site feasibility report 
 
Here is the latest draft solar feasibility study.  The Select Board will review this at their 8/21 mtg.  If others (either you – 
or BCCs you support i.e. PB, CC, whomever) want more time to review this just let me know.  I haven’t had a chance to 
go through it in any detail yet.  As we discussed this morning, if the Town were to proceed with any of these sites, that 
would initiate a thorough process for each site; this is just a feasibility study.  My guess is that the SB wouldn’t make any 
decisions on 8/21, as it will take some time to fully process this.  Thanks -  
 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
42



1

Town Manager

From: Conservation
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 4:32 PM
To: Town Manager; Building Inspector; DPW Admin; DPW Projects; Michael Dwyer; Paul 

Sevigny; Town Planner; Water Superintendent; Highway; Brian Richard
Cc: Executive Assistant; Molly Hawking (mhawkins513@hotmail.com)
Subject: RE: Questions on solar site feasibility report

Hi Angus,  
 
I wanted to share the Commission’s and my thoughts on the solar feasibility report based on a desktop /aerial map 
review of the sites: 

- Housing Authority ground mount: there are wetlands at the south westerly edge of the lawn at this location. 
While it appears based on the diagram in the report the panels would be located outside of any buffer zone to 
these wetlands, it may be prudent to have this area delineated by a wetlands scientist.  

- North Dunn Field ground mount: wetlands permitting will be required. This will require a wetlands scientist to 
delineate the wetlands and will require someone to complete the permitting process. This area is also a Surface 
Water Protection Zone A as the stream that flows from this wetland is a tributary to the Artichoke reservoir. 
From my limited understanding of the surface water protection zones, there may need to be some sort of notice 
given to the surface water supplier (Newburyport) so this should be investigated further. It will also be 
important to know how this location will be accessed by equipment and deliveries of the panels. This could 
increase the impacts to resource areas if trees/vegetation will be removed and / or if construction entrances will 
be created.  

- South Dunn Field ground mount: wetlands permitting will also be required. This location is in a buffer to the 
Surface Water Protection Zone A so it should be investigated if any additional permitting/notice is required to 
install in this area. It will also be important to know how this location will be accessed by equipment and 
deliveries of the panels. This could increase the impacts to resource areas if trees/vegetation will be removed 
and / or if construction entrances will be created. 

- DPW ground mount: this location is in a buffer to the Surface Water Protection Zone A so it should be 
investigated if any additional permitting/notice is required to install in this area. 

- Behind Page School:  although not related to wetlands outright, this is an interesting area/habitat as it is not yet 
forest and borders the large forested area of the Page School / Riverbend conservation land increasing the 
amount and diversity of habitat in the area 

- All sites Re: Trees: It would be helpful to know if trees will need to be removed for optimal functioning of the 
panels. With the exception of the panels at Page School, none of the sites appear to result in the loss of mature 
trees for the siting of the panels but, will mature trees need to be removed at any of these locations for the 
panels to function optimally?  

- All sites Re: Runoff/stormwater: While these are relatively small scale sites, elevated solar panels can alter how 
water stormwater flows and where its directed to. This can cause significant erosion and sedimentation issues 
especially if the ground under the panels is bare or sparsely vegetated. Has this been considered as part of the 
locations contained in the report? While one concern is the impacts to the immediately local wetlands from 
erosion and sedimentation (Dunn fields), it’s worth considering at other sites as well. The Pipestave canopy 
mounts come to mind as one that could have potential for issues. This location is at the top of a hill with 
wetlands and mapped habitat of rare and endangered species at the bottom of the hill. From memory, I also 
believe the area behind the Page School to be on a slope which could compound runoff issues at this site.  

 
Michelle Greene 
Conserva on Agent 
Town of West Newbury 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
43



2

381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
Office: (978) 363-1100 x126 
Mobile: (978) 891-0238 
conserva on@wnewbury.org 
 

The full moon on August 1st is dubbed the sturgeon moon as it rose when the fish were abundant and most easily 
caught by Native American tribes. Today, fishing for sturgeon is prohibited in Massachusetts as the fish are in 

danger of becoming extinct. The Merrimack River supports two species of sturgeon, the Shortnose sturgeon and 

the Atlantic sturgeon. Learn more about these prehistoric looking fish here and here. 
 

From: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 12:50 PM 
To: Building Inspector <building.inspector@wnewbury.org>; Conservation <conservation@wnewbury.org>; DPW Admin 
<DPWAdmin@wnewbury.org>; DPW Projects <dpwprojects@wnewbury.org>; Michael Dwyer 
<dwyer@westnewburysafety.org>; Paul Sevigny <psevigny@wnewbury.org>; Town Planner 
<townplanner@wnewbury.org>; Water Superintendent <water.superintendent@wnewbury.org>; Highway 
<highway@wnewbury.org>; Brian Richard <brichard@wnewbury.org> 
Cc: Executive Assistant <exec.assistant@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: FW: Questions on solar site feasibility report 
 
Here is the latest draft solar feasibility study.  The Select Board will review this at their 8/21 mtg.  If others (either you – 
or BCCs you support i.e. PB, CC, whomever) want more time to review this just let me know.  I haven’t had a chance to 
go through it in any detail yet.  As we discussed this morning, if the Town were to proceed with any of these sites, that 
would initiate a thorough process for each site; this is just a feasibility study.  My guess is that the SB wouldn’t make any 
decisions on 8/21, as it will take some time to fully process this.  Thanks -  
 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 
 

From: Thomas Banks <TBanks@B2Qassociates.com>  
Sent: Monday, August 7, 2023 4:26 PM 
To: Arthur Wallace  
Cc: Gabrielle Cole <GCole@B2Qassociates.com>; Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org>; Rick Parker 
<rparker@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: RE: Questions on solar site feasibility report 
 
Hi Arthur, 
 
We have provided specific answers listed in the email chain below in red. Attached is a revised version of the report 
(without the appendix) which incorporates these comments/changes. I have provided a link to the full document below.  
 
We also found an error in our calculation file which accidently included the SMART incentives as a cost, not an incentive, 
for the PPA LCCAs for 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, and 1.5 ground mount. While this was an error in the economics of the original PPA 
number we sent over, the town would likely not be eligible for the incentive and this credit would go to the developer 
which in theory reduces the cost of the PPA to the town. For the purposes of this study, we included $0 for SMART 
incentives for the PPA economics and kept the incentive in place for the ownership LCCAs.   

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
44



ARPA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

DRAFT August 10, 2023 Page 1 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) is made as of this       day 
of August,  2023, by and between the West Newbury Board of Water Commissioners, an 
elected public body with an address 381 Main Street, West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Recipient”), and the Town of West Newbury (the “Town”), 
with an address of 381 Main Street, West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985, acting through 
its Select Board (collectively, the “Parties”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”) provides for the use of funds to make 
necessary investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure as noted in the Department 
of the Treasury’s Final Rule, 31 CFR Part 35 RIN 1505-AC77; and 

WHEREAS on March 13, 2023, the Town of West Newbury Select Board approved the use 
of a portion of the Town’s ARPA funds to purchase water mains for the Church and Prospect 
Street Water Main Replacement (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS the purpose of this project is to replace aging and deteriorating water mains on 
Church and Prospect Streets; and 

WHEREAS, the Recipient submitted an application for ARPA funding to support the Project 
to replace water mains located at Church Street and Prospect Street, West Newbury, MA; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed the Recipient’s application and has determined that the 
proposed project is consistent with the terms of ARPA and the Project, and has elected to 
authorize funding for a portion of the Project on condition that such funding be used exclusively 
for the purposes described below, and in a manner consistent with the terms and conditions 
contained herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the Parties 
agree as follows: 

1. The Project. The Recipient agrees that all funds provided for herein shall be used
exclusively for the work described in EXHIBIT A (the “Project”).

2. Award. Subject to the terms of this MOU, the Town agrees to allocate $625,000 from the
Town’s ARPA funds towards the Project. The Town Accountant shall disperse such funds
pursuant to the terms of any contracts executed in accordance with Paragraph 5 herein.

3. Additional Funding. The Parties recognize that Town Meeting, through its approval of
Article 7 of the Annual Town Meeting on April 24, 2023, has appropriated $2,700,000 for

E

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
45



ARPA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

DRAFT August 10, 2023  Page 2  

this Project. As of this MOU, Project costs are estimated at a total of $3,325,000.1 Thus, 
including the ARPA funds allocated as specified herein, there are sufficient funds for the 
Project. To the extent that Project costs exceed the estimated amount, the Parties shall work 
together to secure additional funding for such work.  
 

4. Contracts. The Parties recognize that (a) the Town Manager has contracting authority for 
the portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part by the authorized ARPA funds, 
as specified in EXHIBIT A; and (b) all contracts and contracts amendments related to the 
portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part by the ARPA funds shall be 
executed by the Town Manager, and shall include a signature block for the Recipient 
documenting their receipt of any and all related executed contracts and contract 
amendments. Where the Recipient believes that a contract or contract amendment is 
necessary to fulfill or complete the portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part 
by the ARPA funds, the Recipient shall discuss the matter with the Town Manager and a 
designee of the Select Board, providing supporting documentation where necessary.  

 
5. Contract Management. Once under contract, the Water Superintendent shall serve as 

Project Manager for work to be funded in whole or in part by ARPA funds; and shall 
maintain regular communication with the Town Manager on an ongoing basis, including 
written updates as needed, through the duration of the Project.  

 
6. Right to Audit. The Recipient agrees to track and maintain records of all Project related 

documents, including communications, receipts and invoices. The Town Manager shall 
have the right to inspect Project related documents and engage in an active review process 
of all Project related documents. 

 
7. Term. This MOU shall remain in effect until the Recipient has completed the 

portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part by the ARPA funds, and the 
Town has disbursed final payment of the grant awards. 

 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this MOU to be duly executed this 
   day of August, 2023. 

 
Board of Water Commissioners 

 
 
 

By: Robert Janes 
Its: Chairperson 
Duly authorized: By ___ vote of Board of Water Commissioners on ________, 2023 

 
 

1 Source: Jon Gregory, Tata & Howard, email of 4/3/23 to Angus Jennings, Mike Gootée, Mark Marlowe, Steve 
Daunais (T&H). 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
46



ARPA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

DRAFT August 10, 2023  Page 3  

Town of West Newbury 
 
 
 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Duly authorized: By ___ vote of Select Board on ________, 2023 

  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
47



ARPA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
EXHIBIT A 

 
EXHIBIT A:  
Authorized expenses for the portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part by ARPA funds 
 

Authorized Expense Category Maximum Authorized Amount for Expense Category 
A. Pipe, couplings, fittings, and 

related parts and materials as 
itemized in Bid ID: 5599806 
from E.J. Prescott, Inc., to the 
West Newbury Water 
Department dated 2/13/23, or 
as may be revised upon 
revision to this Exhibit A by 
the Parties.  

$625,000.00 

B. Expenses for temporary 
storage of the parts and 
materials in Category A. 

$12,000.00 

C. Engineering services 
necessary for the procurement 
of the parts and materials in 
Category A. 

TBD 

  
TOTAL AUTHORIZED ARPA 
ALLOCATION 

Not to Exceed $625,000.00 

  
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
48



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
49



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
50



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
51



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
52



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
53



ARPA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

DRAFT August 10, 2023  Page 1  

 
THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) is made as of this       day 
of August,  2023, by and between the West Newbury Board of Water Commissioners, an 
elected public body with an address 381 Main Street, West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Recipient”), and the Town of West Newbury (the “Town”), 
with an address of 381 Main Street, West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985, acting through 
its Select Board (collectively, the “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”) provides for the use of funds to make 
necessary investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure as noted in the Department 
of the Treasury’s Final Rule, 31 CFR Part 35 RIN 1505-AC77; and 

 
WHEREAS on March 13, 2023, the Town of West Newbury Select Board approved the use 
of a portion of the Town’s ARPA funds to purchase water mains for the Church and Prospect 
Street Water Main Replacement (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS the purpose of this project is to replace aging and deteriorating water mains on 
Church and Prospect Streets; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Recipient submitted an application for ARPA funding to support the Project 
to replace water mains located at Church Street and Prospect Street, West Newbury, MA; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed the Recipient’s application and has determined that the 
proposed project is consistent with the terms of ARPA and the Project, and has elected to award 
authorize funding for a portion of the Project to the Recipient on condition that such funding be 
used exclusively for the purposes described below, and in a manner consistent with the terms and 
conditions contained herein. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the Parties 
agree as follows: 

 
1. The Project. The Recipient agrees that all funds provided for herein shall be used 

exclusively for the work described in EXHIBIT A (the “Project”). 
 

2. Reporting.  The Recipient agrees to track and maintain records of all fund-related 
documents, including communications, receipts and invoices, and will provide regular 
and thorough reporting relating to expenditures. 

 

3.2. Award. Subject to the terms of this MOU, the Town agrees to award the Recipient the 
amount of up toallocate $625,000 from the Town’s ARPA funds towards the Project. The 
Town Accountant shall disperse such f, with funds to be disbursed to Recipient upon 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
54



ARPA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

DRAFT August 10, 2023  Page 2  

submission of receipts for eligible expenses associated with the Project.unds pursuant to 
the terms of any contracts executed in accordance with Paragraph 5 herein.   

 
4.3. Additional Funding. The Recipient shall ensure that adequate funding is in place to complete 

the Project. In the event that the funds alone are for any reason insufficient to complete the 
Project, the Recipient will obtain or have available other funds sufficient in the aggregate to 
ensure completion of the Project.The Parties recognize that Town Meeting, through its 
approval of Article 7 of the Annual Town Meeting on April 24, 2023, has appropriated 
$2,700,000 for this Project. As of this MOU, Project costs are estimated at a total of 
$3,325,000.1 Thus, including the ARPA funds allocated as specified herein, there are 
sufficient funds for the Project. To the extent that Project costs exceed the estimated amount, 
the Recipient Parties shall work together to secure alternativeadditional funding for such 
work.  
 

5.4. Contracts.  The Town willParties recognize that (a) the Town Manager has  have signing 
contracting authority for the portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part by the 
authorized ARPA funds, as specified in EXHIBIT A; and (b)  on all contracts and 
contracts amendments related to  necessary forthe portion of the the completion of the 
Project to be funded in whole or in part by the ARPA funds shall be executed by the Town 
Manager, and shall include a signature block for the Recipient documenting their receipt 
of any and all related executed contracts and contract amendments. Where the Recipient 
believes that a contract or contract amendment is necessary to fulfill or complete the 
portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part by the ARPA funds, the Recipient 
shall discuss the matter with the Town Manager and a designee of the Select Board, 
providing supporting documentation where necessary. It is within the sole discretion of the 
Town Manager whether to execute any contract or contract amendment related to the 
Project.   

 
5. Contract Management. Once under contract, the Water Superintendent shall serve as 

Project Manager for work to be funded in whole or in part by ARPA funds; and shall 
maintain regular communication with the Town Manager on an ongoing basis, including 
written updates as needed, through the duration of the Project.  

 
6. Right to Audit. The Recipient agrees to track and maintain records of all Project related 

documents, including communications, receipts and invoices, and will provide regular 
and thorough updates to the Town Manager. The The Town Manager shall have the right 
to request inspect Project related documents to ensure that the funds are being spent in 
accordance with this MOUand engage in an active review process of all Project related 
documents. 

 
7. Term. This MOU shall remain in effect until the Recipient has completed the 

 
1 Source: Jon Gregory, Tata & Howard, email of 4/3/23 to Angus Jennings, Mike Gootée, Mark Marlowe, Steve 
Daunais (T&H). 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
55



ARPA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

DRAFT August 10, 2023  Page 3  

portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part by the ARPA funds, and the 
Town has disbursed final payment of the grant awards. 

8. Return of Funds. 
 

 If the Town determines that the Recipient has failed to use all funds on the 
Project as required by this MOU, or has otherwise defaulted under its obligations 
under this MOU, it shall send the Recipient written notice to that effect. Upon 
delivery of said notice, the Recipient shall immediately reimburse the Town in 
whole or in part, as the Town may determine. The Town may take such steps as 
are necessary, including legal action, to recover said funds if not timely 
reimbursed. 
 

a. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction issues a final, binding, 
conclusive Judgment that the grant of funds as described by this MOU violates 
the law, then the Recipient shall be liable to repay to the Town the entire amount 
of funding provided under this MOU, and the Town shall take such steps as are 
necessary, including legal action, to recover said funds. 

b. In the event the Town is required to take legal action under this MOU, the 
Recipient shall be liable for all of the Town’s costs expended for the 
enforcement of this MOU, including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees 
and court costs. 

c.  
9. Notice. Any and all notices, or other communications required or permitted under this 

MOU, shall be in writing and delivered in hand to the parties hereto at the following 
addresses: 

 

If to the Recipient: 
 

Board of Water Commissioners 
Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 

If to the Town:   
 
Select Board c/o Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
 

10. No Liability of Town. By making this award, the Town does not accept any liability 
whatsoever for any acts, omissions or errors associated with the Project. Nothing in this 
MOU shall be construed to render the Town or any elected or appointed official or 
employee of the Town, or their successors in office, personally liable for any obligation 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
56



ARPA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

DRAFT August 10, 2023  Page 4  

under this MOU. Recipient agrees to indemnify and defend the Town from all claims, 
suits or demands, costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, resulting from 
implementation of the Project or this MOU. 

 
11. Severability. If any term or condition of this MOU or any application thereof shall to 

any extent be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining terms and 
conditions of this MOU shall not be deemed affected thereby. 

 
12. Governing Law and Consent to Venue. This MOU shall be construed under, and 

governed by, the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Recipient agrees that 
any litigation arising in connection with this MOU shall be conducted exclusively in 
Newburyport District Court or in the Essex County Superior Court, both of which are 
located in the County of Essex, Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This choice of venue 
is intended to be mandatory and not permissive in nature. The parties to this MOU 
further agree to waive their rights to a jury trial. 

13. Entire MOU: This MOU constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto, and 
may be amended only in writing executed by both the Town of West Newbury and the 
Recipient. Signatory below acknowledges and avers that he/she has the authority to 
execute this MOU on behalf of the Recipient. 

 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this MOU to be duly executed this 
   day of August, 2023. 

 
Board of Water Commissioners 

 
 
 

By: Robert Janes 
Its: Chairperson 
Duly authorized: By ___ vote of Board of Water Commissioners on ________, 2023 

 
Town of West Newbury 

 
 
 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Duly authorized: By ___ vote of Select Board on ________, 2023 

  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
57



ARPA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
EXHIBIT A 

 

DRAFT August 10, 2023  Page 5  

EXHIBIT A:  
Authorized expenses for the portion of the Project to be funded in whole or in part by ARPA funds 
 

Authorized Expense Category Maximum Authorized Amount for Expense Category 
A. Pipe, couplings, fittings, and 

related parts and materials as 
itemized in Bid ID: 5599806 
from E.J. Prescott, Inc., to the 
West Newbury Water 
Department dated 2/13/23, or 
as may be revised upon 
revision to this Exhibit A by 
the Parties.  

$625,000.00 

B. Expenses for temporary 
storage of the parts and 
materials in Category A. 

$12,000.00 

C. Engineering services 
necessary for the procurement 
of the parts and materials in 
Category A. 

TBD 

  
TOTAL AUTHORIZED ARPA 
ALLOCATION 

Not to Exceed $625,000.00 

  
 

 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
58



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Select Board  

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: August 18, 2023 

RE:  Water Distribution Study 

The BOWC discussed the above-referenced report, dated August 2023, at their meeting last Thursday 

8/10. At the meeting (also attended by Rick and Chris, and Rob Phillips), I told the BOWC that, in 

my review of the report, I found a number of items that I think would benefit from revision or 

clarification. In discussion, it seemed that there was broad agreement to at least some of these edits; 

and it also became evident through the discussion that Bob and Mike G. had sent some revisions to 

Tata & Howard earlier this spring (in response to the initial March draft) that had not been 

incorporated into the August report.  

Since T&H’s client in preparing the report is the BOWC, it is important that edits to the report come 

at their direction. It was agreed that Mark, Bob and I would meet to go through my mark-ups to see 

which they also agreed with, so that these could then be communicated to T&H to build into a final 

report. The three of us met for over an hour on Aug. 16, had a productive discussion, and found 

agreement on every suggestion/markup. 

Next week, as time allows, either Mark or Mark and I will write up the markups/edits so these can be 

sent over to T&H to be built into an updated draft. If any Select Board members also have 

comments/suggestions re the August draft (which was circulated within the SB’s 8/7 meeting 

materials), please send those along at your earliest convenience. 

In parallel, T&H had been working on the water rate study, and delivered an initial draft on 8/7. 

Copies were made available at the BOWC meeting on 8/10, and a copy is enclosed for review. I 

expect that a similar review/editing process will take place before the BOWC accepts this report as 

final. If the BOWC decides to change rates, they would refer this to public hearing. 

F

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
59

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
60



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
61



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
62



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
63



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
64



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
65



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
66



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
67



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
68



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
69



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
70



1

Town Manager

From: Town Manager  
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 6:03 PM 
To: Jack Ingram <Jackingram@Bartlett.com> 
Cc: Kyle VanAmburg <kvanamburg@Bartlett.com>; Fredric Chanania  
Subject: RE: Submission of Proposal for Bartlett Tree: West Newbury Ash Re-Inventory 

Jack, 
   Thanks for your time on the phone earlier this week.  The Select Board will talk this over at their upcoming mtg (8/21) 
and I’ll follow up soon afterwards re how we’d like to go forward. 

Thanks, 
 Angus 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111
townmanager@wnewbury.org

From: Town Manager  
Sent: Monday, August 14, 2023 10:00 AM 
To: Kyle VanAmburg <kvanamburg@bartlett.com>; Jack Ingram <Jackingram@Bartlett.com> 
Cc: Fredric Chanania ; DPW Admin <DPWAdmin@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: RE: Submission of Proposal for Bartlett Tree: West Newbury Ash Re-Inventory 

Kyle, 
   We’d like to better understand the basis of the cost for this work.  We continue to be supportive of doing follow-up 
assessments to determine which of the 177 trees would benefit from add’l EAB treatment next year, but this cost is 
more than we had expected.  It would be helpful if your office could provide further explanation/backup for what the 
cost is based on; whether it’s a per-tree cost or something else.   
   I’ve been asked to bring this back to the Select Board at their meeting next Monday so we can finalize a decision as to 
whether to move forward.  I think that we will, we just need to understand the cost structure. 

Thanks, 
 Angus 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111

G

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
71



2

townmanager@wnewbury.org 
 
 

From: Jack Ingram <Jackingram@Bartlett.com>  
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 1:33 PM 
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Cc: Kyle VanAmburg <kvanamburg@Bartlett.com> 
Subject: Submission of Proposal for Bartlett Tree: West Newbury Ash Re-Inventory 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
Please see our proposal, attached, to re inventory the 177 subject ash trees, this year around the month of September. 
Their conditions would be updated in the inventory , and we would make a recommendation about each tree , whether 
or not to inject them during next spring.  
 
Based on the results of this assessment, It there will be less trees to inject in 2024 
 
Thank you 
 
Jack  

JACK INGRAM  LOCAL MANAGER 
RCA, BCMA, MCA, CTSP  

BARTLETT TREE EXPERTS 

640 Hale Street, Beverly Farms, MA 01915 

p 978-927-1590  

e Jackingram@Bartlett.com  

facebook.com/bartletttreeexperts 

bartlett.com 
 

  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
72



Client: 1419015 Printed on: 7/31/2023 

Town of West Newbury

381 Main Street

West Newbury, MA 01985

Bartlett Tree Experts

Kyle VanAmburg - Representative

P. O. Box 5700

Beverly Farms, MA 01915

Mobile Phone: 

E-Mail Address: Kvanamburg@bartlett.com

NOTICE TO CLIENT:  

Bartlett Tree Experts has entered this property for the specific purpose of writing this proposal, pursuant to the owner's request.  

Bartlett Tree Experts makes no warranties and accepts no responsibility regarding the potential risks involving any trees on this 

property.  Bartlett Tree Experts recommends having a qualified arborist inspect your property periodically to assist you in identifying 

potential risks or hazardous conditions related to your trees and shrubs.  THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

AmountNumber of TreesRecommendationWork Group

Tree Inventory/SurveyConsulting  177 $9,075.00 

TOTAL FOR 'Consulting'  177 $9,075.00 

TOTAL AMOUNT: $9,075.00  177 

Consulting: 

Tree Inventory/Survey

Perform a visual assessment and inventory of all trees that are larger than 10 inches in stem diameter (DBH) in order to provide 

information to assess value and to develop a comprehensive landscape management program. Bartlett Tree Experts will coordinate 

all job planning and scheduling, equipment requirements, and work crew staffing and management pertaining to safe and 

professional execution of this assessment and inventory service. Data collection and inspection will generally occur within 30-60 days 

of receiving this signed proposal.

Once the signed acceptance of this proposal is received a representative from the Bartlett Inventory Solutions Team will contact you 

to schedule and finalize specific information required to begin.

Trees will be physically identified with a sequentially numbered brass tag that will be secured to the lower stem.

Arborist Notes:

The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company Page 1 of 4

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
73



Client: 1419015 Printed on: 7/31/2023

•  

Specific Scope of Work:

Perform a tree inventory with Level 2 Basic assessment of tree risk for the designated trees per the size listed above and located 

within the specified maintained landscape, public rights-of-way, designated areas/ other (attached map with boundaries).  Inventory 

trees in identified areas up to, but not exceeding, a quantity of 177 trees.  Exceptions include specific areas where groups of trees will 

be considered as one.  Inventoried trees are already physically tagged/assigned with a corresponding number that will be referenced 

within the final deliverable(s).   

A deliverable(s) in the form of a PDF and excel spreadsheet, only will be provided upon completion of the service.

Bartlett Tree Expert's service will conclude upon delivery of the PDF and excel spreadsheet, only .

Specific Assignment: Re-inventory the 177 designated ash trees specifically to make a determination of whether or not to perform a 

systemic stem injection to suppress Emerald Ash Borer, in Spring 2024. There will only be two conditions that we evaluate for: 1) 

Treatable or alternatively, 2) Not Recommended for Treatment. Trees will not be assessed for tree risk, strictly whether or not it is 

advisable to treat certain trees for EAB. All 177 trees will be evaluated and only the most viable ash trees will be selected for 

treatment. 

Amount: $9,075.00

Total for 'Consulting' Amount: $9,075.00

Total Amount: $9,075.00

CONDITION OF PROPOSAL:

This offer is valid for 45 days. Unless accepted, our offer will be considered withdrawn after 45 days.

Before entering into this agreement, the owner/client must inform Bartlett Tree Experts of any additional requirements that may 

affect the work or proposal pricing (such as the owner/client's contractual terms, the owner/client's insurance requirements, or the 

owner/client's timing requirements of the work). Bartlett Tree Experts reserves the right to terminate the contract, without penalty, 

and submit a revised proposal and pricing if the owner/client presents additional requirements after they have accepted the original 

proposal.

NEED FOR FUTURE INSPECTIONS

It shall be the responsibility of the owner/client to ensure that a qualified arborist inspects all trees annually, or after any major 

weather event, to monitor the risk associated with the trees on the aforementioned property.

The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company Page 2 of 4

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
74



Client: 1419015 Printed on: 7/31/2023

SCHEDULE OF WORK PROPOSED:  

Once accepted and scheduled, Bartlett Tree Experts will coordinate all job planning and scheduling; equipment requirements, and 

work crew staffing and direction pertaining to safe, professional execution of the service or services offered.

Upon acceptance of this proposal, this work can be scheduled to take place during the week/weeks of 

7/27/2023 and should be completed by 7/27/2023.

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENT:  

Bartlett Tree Experts offers to perform the work specifications at the work location listed above at the following rates:

Owner agrees to pay a total price of:
______________

____________

$9,075.00 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO CANCEL:  

You, the client, may cancel this transaction, without penalty or obligation, at any time prior to midnight of the third business day 

after the date of the acceptance of this proposal.  To cancel your acceptance of this proposal within this time, you may notify Bartlett 

Tree Experts, in writing of your intent to do so, referencing the work location and project.

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  

After reviewing the terms and conditions attached, which become part of this agreement, please sign the enclosed copy and return in 

the enclosed envelope.  In the event that the client should issue additional work authorization terms, if agreed upon, such terms will 

be incorporated into this agreement.  In the event that such terms conflict with this agreement, then the terms of this agreement 

shall govern over any conflicting language.  The original document should be retained for your reference.  Should you have any 

questions or need further information, please contact me directly at 781-484-8691.

The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company Page 3 of 4

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
75



Client: 1419015 Printed on: 7/31/2023

OFFER:  

Bartlett Tree Experts will perform the above referenced service in a safe, professional manner, in accordance with all laws, rules, 

regulations, and industry standards governing tree care.

Bartlett Representative Signature:

Date:

Printed Name:

_____________________________________________________

     

_____________________________________________________

     

_____________________________________________________

     

Kyle VanAmburg

7/31/2023

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED:

I hereby authorize Bartlett Tree Experts to perform the above services.  Unless otherwise agreed upon in writing by Bartlett Tree 

Experts, I agree to make total payment of the estimated costs and all authorized additional costs upon completion of the work.

_____________________________________________________

     

Client's Signature:

Date:

Printed Name:

_____________________________________________________

     

_____________________________________________________

     

The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company Page 4 of 4

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
76



  

  

     General Terms Commercial 
 

 

Page 1 of 6   The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company 
Sales.011.US.CA.10-19 

 
The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company (“Bartlett Tree Experts”) provides tree-care and related services to commercial and government clients. The 

agreed upon “Work” has been expressed in a separate Client Agreement between Bartlett Tree Experts and the Client, and is identified within the portion 

of the Client Agreement communicating the Scope of Work, the Goals, the Specifications, the Schedule for the Work, and the Payment Terms.  These 

general terms combine with the approved Client Agreement and form the complete agreement between the parties. 

Article 1 

TREE RISK 

1.1 Tree Risk 

(a) The Client acknowledges that having trees on one’s 

property involves risk, including the risk that a tree or tree 
limb might fall. As part of the Work, Bartlett Tree Experts 

may recognize the risk posed by failure of trees within the 

scope of the Work and recommend to the Client ways to 
reduce that risk, but the Client acknowledges that Bartlett 

Tree Experts cannot detect all defects and other conditions 

that present the risk of tree failure and cannot predict how 
all trees will respond to future events and circumstances. 

Trees can fail unpredictably, even if no defects or other 

conditions are apparent. Bartlett Tree Experts will not be 
responsible for damages caused by subsequent failure of a 

tree, or tree part, within or around the scope of the Work 

due to defects or other preexisting structural or health 

conditions. 

(b) Unless the Work includes having Bartlett Tree Experts 

perform a tree risk assessment for designated trees, the 

Client acknowledges that in performing the Work Bartlett 
Tree Experts is not required to inspect and report to the 

Client on risks to, and risks posed by, trees on or near the 

Client’s property. 

(c)  The Client also acknowledges that because trees are    living 
organisms that change over time, the best protection against 

the risk associated with having trees on the Client’s 

property is for the Client to   arrange to have them inspected 
by a qualified arborist annually and after each major 

weather event to identify any defects or other conditions 

that present the risk of tree failure.  Then, once inspected, 
the Client should review any possible defects or conditions 

that present the risk of failure and request recommendations 

for, and implement, remedial actions to mitigate the risks. 

Article 2 

THE WORK 

2.1 Ownership 

The Client states that all trees and other vegetation within 

the scope of the Work are owned by the Client or that the 
owner has authorized the Client to include them within the 

scope of the Work. 

2.2 Insurance 

(a) Bartlett Tree Experts states that it is insured for liability 

resulting from injury to persons or damage to property 
while performing the Work and that its employees are 

covered under workers’ compensation laws.   

(b) The scope of ongoing operations of the Work shall be 

defined as beginning when the performance on the site 

begins and ending when the performance on the site 

concludes. 

2.3 Compliance 

(a) Bartlett Tree Experts shall perform the Work competently 

and in compliance with the law and industry standards, 
including the American National Standards Institute’s A-

300 Standards for tree care. 

(b) The Client is responsible for obtaining and paying for all 

required local permits. 

2.4 Access over Roads, Driveways, and Walkways 

(a) The Client shall arrange for Bartlett Tree Experts’ 
representatives, vehicles, and equipment to have access 

during work hours to areas where the Work is to be 

performed. The Client shall keep roads, driveways, and 
walkways in those areas clear during work hours for the 

passage and parking of vehicles and equipment. Unless the 

Client Agreement states otherwise, Bartlett Tree Experts is 

not required to keep gates closed for animals or children. 

(b) The Client acknowledges that Bartlett Tree Experts is not 

responsible for damage to driveways, walkways, septic 

tanks, wells, underground irrigation, and other human-
made surface or subsurface features caused by Bartlett Tree 

Experts trucks and equipment accessing, and being present 

in, areas where the Work is performed. 

2.5 Access through a Dwelling or Building 

If the Work requires access through the interior of the 
Client’s dwelling or the common interior areas of a multi 

residence or commercial building, the Client states that they 

have the authority to allow this access, or the owner has 

authorized the Client to allow this access in order for the 

Work to be completed as stated on the Client Agreement. 

 

2.6 Concealed Features 

(a) The Client acknowledges that the Work could be delayed 

or made more expensive by the presence of features that are 

not apparent to Bartlett representatives (“Concealed 

Features”). Concealed Features could be above ground or 

underground and could be human-made (including 
irrigation systems, underground lighting, septic systems, 

pipes, oil tanks, utility lines, masonry, or concrete) or 

natural (including rocks and insect nests). The Client states 
that it has notified Bartlett Tree Experts of all Concealed 

Features that it is aware of in those areas where the Work is 

to be performed. 

(b) Bartlett Tree Experts will not be liable for damage to 
Concealed Features that the Client does not notify Bartlett 

of in writing. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
77



    General Terms Commercial 

Page 2 of 6  The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company 
Sales.011.US.CA.10-19

(c) If Concealed Features prevent the Work from continuing, 
the Client agrees to pay Bartlett Tree Experts for the all

portions of the Work completed up until the time the 

concealed features became apparent and delayed or
prevented the Work from continuing.  The Client also 

agrees that in the event that the Concealed Features prevent

any further Work from proceeding, or significantly alter the 
costs of the remainder of the Work within the Agreement,

then the remainder of the Agreement between the Client and 

Bartlett Tree Experts will be considered nullified, with 
neither party having any further obligations to the other, and 

a new written agreement will be formed prior to any further 

Work being performed.

2.7 Potential Harm to Animals 

The Client acknowledges that pets and other animals might 
be harmed if they swallow tree debris, such as sawdust, 

leaves, or branches, created during performance of the 

Work. Bartlett Tree Experts cleans up sawdust and other 
debris it creates in working on a tree, but it is unrealistic to 

expect that it will dispose of every piece of sawdust or 

debris. The client is responsible for ensuring that pets and 
other animals are kept from any area where debris created 

during the Work is present until such time as exposure of 

any remaining debris to the elements has sufficiently 

reduced the risk of harm to animals. 

2.8 Weather-Event Damage 

The Client acknowledges that because remediating 

weather-event damage might result in further damage to a 
structure, property, or landscaping feature already damaged 

in that weather event regardless of the care taken, Bartlett 

Tree Experts will not be responsible for any such further 
damage to any structure, property or landscaping feature 

when remediating or removing trees or tree parts that have 

fallen on structures, patios, decks, fences, driveways, or 

hardscapes are part of the Work. 

2.9 Cables, Braces and Tree-Support Systems 

(a) The Client acknowledges that cables, braces or tree support 

systems are intended to reduce the risk associated with tree

part breakage by providing supplemental support to certain 
areas within trees and in some cases by limiting the 

movement of leaders, limbs, or entire trees, and are 

intended to mitigate the potential damage associated with 
tree part breakage; but that such supplemental support 

systems cannot eliminate the risk of breakage or failure to 

trees or tree parts entirely, and future breakage and damage 

is still possible.

(b) The Client acknowledges that for cables, braces or tree-

support systems to function optimally, the Client must 

arrange for them to be inspected and maintained by a 
qualified arborist periodically and after each major weather 

event. 

2.10 Lightning Protection Systems 

(a) The Client acknowledges that lightning protection systems

are intended to direct a portion of the electricity from a 
lightning strike down through the system into the ground, 

and mitigate the potential damage to the tree from a 

lightning strike, but that such systems cannot prevent 
damage to structures, nor can such systems prevent damage 

to trees caused by lightning entirely.    

(b) The Client acknowledges that for lightning protection 

systems to function optimally, the Client must arrange for 
them to be inspected and maintained by a qualified arborist 

periodically and after each major weather event.

2.11 Recreational Features 

(a) The Client acknowledges that Bartlett Tree Experts

recommends stopping the use of, and removing, any tree
house, ropes course, swing, or other recreational feature 

attached to a tree. Regardless of the health or condition of 

the tree, such features might be unsuited for the intended 
use or might place unpredictable forces on the feature or the 

tree, resulting in failure of the feature or the tree and injury 

to persons or damage to property. Bartlett Tree Experts is 
not responsible for the consequences of use of any such 

feature.

(b) The Client acknowledges that if a recommendation is made 

to mitigate an observed and immediate safety issue on a tree 
with any such device or feature attached, such as the 

removal of a dead, dying, or broken limb that could fall and 

injure a person or damage property, the Client should not 

infer that following the recommendation and mitigating the 

immediate safety issue makes the tree in question safe for 

the use of the attached device or feature.

2.12 Tree Removal and Pruning 

(a) The Client acknowledges that in removing or cutting down

a tree as part of the Work, Bartlett Tree Experts will cut the 

tree approximately 12 inches from the ground.   The Client 
understands that any remaining stump may present a 

tripping hazard, and the Client should mark the area if 

necessary.  Removing or grinding stumps is not included as 

part of tree removal unless stated in the Client Agreement.

(b) If pruning tree limbs or shrubs is part of the Work, Bartlett 

Tree Experts will develop specifications to help meet the 

present goals of the Client, in accordance with industry 
standards.  Trees and shrubs will typically require follow up 

pruning at various intervals to maintain a Client’s goals. 

Based on those goals; and the species, size, location, health, 
and growth pattern of the tree(s) or shrub(s) which are 

pruned, the Client should conduct routine monitoring of 

each tree or shrub and communicate the need for future 
pruning to a qualified arborist in order to maintain the 

established or desired plant form or objectives.

2.13 Trees Infested with Emerald Ash Borer 

(a) The Client acknowledges that Ash trees or other trees

infested with emerald ash borer can become extremely 
brittle and dangerous within a short period of the 

infestation, and the conditions of such trees could adversely 

change between the time a proposal to work on such a tree
was written, and the time that the work is scheduled for 

completion. 

(b) The Client understands that if any tree or trees infested with 

emerald ash borer have become too dangerous to access, 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
78



    General Terms Commercial 

Page 3 of 6  The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company 
Sales.011.US.CA.10-19

climb, prune, or rig from without risking injury or damage 
to the Client’s property, then that portion of the proposal 

will be considered nullified, with neither Bartlett Tree 

Experts nor the Client owing anything to the other for that 
portion of the Work, and a new proposal will need to be 

written and agreed upon before any work can proceed on 

any such infested tree.  

2.14 Tree Care Maintenance or Recurring Programs 

(a) If the Client Agreement is for ongoing tree care or 

landscape maintenance or for a recurring maintenance or 

plant health care program for trees, plants or turf areas, the 

Client acknowledges that the purpose of this type of
agreement is to maintain tree, shrub, or turf health and 

beauty.

(b) The Client understands that any inspections that may be 

conducted during any such ongoing tree care, landscape 
maintenance, or recurring maintenance or plant health care 

type contracts are for the purpose of evaluating plant health, 

and determining any appropriate treatment 
recommendations according to the client’s tree, shrub or 

turf health needs, and are not meant to be a safety 

inspections, or tree risk assessments. 

(c) The Client also understands that in no way does Bartlett

Tree Experts imply nor should the Client infer that Bartlett 

Tree Experts assumes the responsibility for inspecting, 
identifying, or correcting  hazards or safety issues on or near 

the Client’s property, or conducting tree risk assessments 

during the course of any of its ongoing tree care, landscape 

maintenance, or reoccurring maintenance contracts.

2.15 Stump Grinding 

(a) If the Work includes stump-grinding services, the Client 

acknowledges that grinding will take place well below 

ground level, and the Client understands that the stump 
grinding area might present a tripping hazard, and the Client 

should mark the area if necessary until the Client removes

the stump grinding debris and fills the stump grinding holes

with soil to grade.

(b) Unless the Client Agreement states otherwise, Bartlett Tree

Experts is not required to remove stump-grinding debris 

filling stump-grinding holes, or fill stump grinding holes to 

grade with soil. 

(c) If tree grates or metal grates or other man made protective 

features existed prior to the stump removal, it is the Client’s 

responsibility to ensure that the grates or manmade features
are re-installed correctly after the stump removal and do not 

pose a tripping hazard. 

2.16 Root Pruning 

In the right circumstances, root pruning is a valuable and 

necessary service, but it might pose a risk to the health and 

structural integrity of trees. To limit that risk, Bartlett Tree 

Experts performs root pruning to industry standards, but the 

Client acknowledges that the health and structural integrity 
of trees within the scope of the Work might nevertheless be 

adversely affected by any root pruning performed as part of 

the Work. Bartlett Tree Experts shall assist the Client in 

understanding the risks involved before opting for root 
pruning, but the Client will be responsible for deciding to 

proceed with root pruning. 

2.17 Tree Risk Assessments and Inventories 

(a) If the Client Agreement is specifically for Bartlett Tree

Experts to provide a level I, II, or III Tree Risk Assessment
for any tree or group of trees to the Client in accordance 

with industry standards, the Client understands that any risk 

ratings and recommendations for mitigating such risks will

be based on the observed defects, conditions, and factors at 

the time of the tree risk assessment or inventory,

(b) The Client acknowledges that any recommendations made 

to mitigate risk factors or manage tree populations will be 
made in accordance with industry best practices and 

standards, but that the decision to implement the 

recommended mitigation practices, remove the risk factors, 

or manage the trees rests solely with the client.

(c) The Client understands that all risk ratings used are 

intended to assist the Client with understanding the 

potential for tree or tree part failure, and are not meant to be 
used to declare any tree or tree part to be safe or free from

any defect.  As such, the Client should not infer that any 

tree or trees not having a condition class of poor or dead, or 

not showing a potential failure to be likely or imminent, are 

“safe” or will not fail in any manner.

(d) The Client understands that it is the Client’s responsibility 
to ensure that the assessed tree or trees are continually 

inspected and reassessed periodically, or after any major 

weather event, in order to ensure that risk rating information 
or any other information is kept current, and to enter any 

changes to risk ratings or mitigation measures to the 

inventory or tracking system used by the Client.

2.18 Client Trees in Hazardous Condition 

If the Client Agreement specifies that one or more trees 
within the scope of the Work are in hazardous condition, 

are high or moderate risk, or should be removed for safety 

reasons, the Client acknowledges that removing those trees 
would prevent future damage from trees or tree limbs 

falling. If the Client requests that one or more of those trees 

be pruned instead of removed, the Client acknowledges that 
although pruning might reduce the immediate risk of limbs 

falling, it does not preclude the possibility of future limb, 

stem, or root failure. Bartlett Tree Experts is not responsible 

for any such future failure. 

2.19 Plant Health Care or Soil Care and Fertilization 

Treatments  

(a) Bartlett Tree Experts states that plant health care and/or soil 

care and fertilization treatments will be conducted in 

accordance with industry standards for such services.

(b) The Client acknowledges that if the Client Agreement

requires markers or notification signs to be left on the 

property, then the signs must be left in place for twenty-four
hours or however long is stated on the Client Agreement, 

whichever is longer.  At the end of the prescribed period, it 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
79



    General Terms Commercial 

Page 4 of 6  The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company 
Sales.011.US.CA.10-19

will be the Client’s responsibility to remove and dispose of 

the signs. 

(c) Bartlett Tree Experts will provide the Client with copies of 

all pertinent product label or safety data sheet information 

upon request. 

(d) The Client acknowledges that plant health care treatments 
are intended to mitigate pest levels to an acceptable degree,

and are not intended to eradicate or eliminate any insect, 

disease, or other pest entirely.

(e) The Client acknowledges that soil care and fertilization 
treatments may not have the intended effect if drought 

conditions or lack of irrigation prevent the tree, shrub, or 

turf area from receiving adequate water throughout the 

growing season. 

2.20 Schedule of Plant Health Care or Soil Care and 

Fertilization Treatments 

(a) Bartlett Tree Experts will schedule all treatments for the 

appropriate period, given the type of plant, pest, infestation 
levels, weather patterns, the objectives, and other 

environmental considerations. 

(b) If the Client has requested a specific date within that period 

for the Client’s plant health care treatment, the date will be
placed on the agreement.  If Bartlett Tree Experts is unable 

to perform the services on the agreed upon date, due to 

weather conditions, or other unforeseeable delays, Bartlett 
Tree Experts will reschedule the treatment for a date 

agreeable to the Client. 

(c) If weather conditions or other unforeseen conditions 
prevent or delay treatment during periods specified in the 

Client Agreement, and the Client has not requested a 

specific date, then Bartlett Tree Experts will automatically 
reschedule the treatments for the next most appropriate 

period and notify the Client. 

2.21 Integrated Pest Management 

(a) If the Work includes integrated pest management services, 

the Client understands that this service will involve plant 
health care treatments which will be tailored to meet the 

Client’s needs for specific trees, shrubs, turf areas, or plants. 

In delivering this service, Bartlett Tree Experts will
consider the Client’s objectives, priorities, budgetary 

concerns, plant materials, site conditions, pest and disease 

infestation levels and the expectations of those levels, and 

timing issues. 

(b) The Client acknowledges that this service may involve one 

or more inspections of specific plants to help determine 

insect and disease concerns, the sampling of specific plant 
materials or soil areas, an understanding of the cultural 

needs of certain plants, consideration of biological control 

concepts and limitations (natural and/or introduced 

predators), recommended improvements to physical site 

conditions, or the use of pesticide treatments.  The 

integrated pest management service does not combine all
possible controls and concepts for every tree, shrub, turf 

area, or plant, but rather it considers the most reasonable 

option or options for control of and mitigation of insect and 

disease damages to the specific trees, shrubs, turf areas or 

plants as designated by the Client to meet the Client’s goals. 

(c) The Client also understands and acknowledges that during 

the course of an integrated pest management program, as 

inspections are taking place, and  treatments or other 
services are being performed to certain trees or shrubs, not 

every tree or shrub inspected will require a specific 

treatment or other service, and in fact, some trees or shrubs 
may not require any specific treatment or other service 

throughout the course of a season to maintain health and 

vigor if the inspections show insignificant pest thresholds, 

and sound environmental and cultural conditions.

(d) The Client also understands that tree, shrub, plant and turf 

inspections conducted during the integrated pest 

management program are for the purpose of determining 
plant health issues and, insect and disease thresholds; and 

are not conducted for the purposes of determining tree,

shrub, plant, or turf safety.

2.22 Trees in Poor Health or a Severe State of Decline 

The Client acknowledges that if a tree is in poor health or 
in a severe state of decline, Bartlett Tree Experts cannot 

predict how that tree will respond to any recommended 

plant health care or soil care and fertilization treatment and 

might not be able to prevent that tree from getting worse or 

dying. 

2.23 Fruit-Reduction Treatment 

If fruit-reduction (including olive-reduction) treatment 
forms part of the Work, the Client acknowledges that 

although Bartlett Tree Experts will take steps to minimize 

the extent to which the pesticide used in in this treatment 
comes into contact with plants under or near the treated 

trees or shrubs, it is likely that some contact will occur and 

might damage or kill understory plants. Bartlett Tree 

Experts will not be liable for any such damage. 

2.24 Fruit Tree or Crop Treatment 

If the Work includes plant health care treatments to mitigate 

pest damage to fruit trees or other crops, the Client will be 

responsible for instructing Bartlett Tree Experts which fruit 
trees or other crops to treat. The Client acknowledges that 

no such treatments can eliminate pests entirely and such 

treatments might not increase crop yield or value and might 

not prevent the plants in question from dying. 

2.25 Tick, Mosquito, or Biting Fly Treatment 

The Client acknowledges that if the Client Agreement 

specifies a treatment program to mitigate the presence of 

ticks, mosquitos, or biting flies, such treatment can only 
lower pest thresholds, and cannot eliminate the pests or 

prevent such pests from biting, stinging, or entering the 

treated area. 

2.26 Termite or Wood Destroying Organism Treatment 

(a) The Client acknowledges that if the Client Agreement

specifies a treatment program to mitigate Formosan 

termites or any other wood destroying organism from any 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
80



    General Terms Commercial 

Page 5 of 6  The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company 
Sales.011.US.CA.10-19

tree or trees, that the treatment cannot provide protection 
against any present or future damage to any structure or 

structures on the property, nor can it reverse any damage 

already caused to any such structure or structures on the 

property.   

(b) If Formosan termites or other wood destroying organisms 

are present on the property, Bartlett Tree Experts

recommends that the Client has a qualified structural home 
inspector inspect the structure or structures for the presence 

of any termites or wood decaying organisms, as well as any 

damage, and provide the Client with an appropriate 
recommendation and report to treat, mitigate or repair the 

damage.

2.27 Plant Nursery Services 

If the Work includes treatment to mitigate pest damage to 

nursery trees or plants, the Client will be responsible for 
instructing Bartlett Tree Experts which trees or plants to 

treat.   The Client acknowledges that no such treatments can 

eliminate pests entirely and such treatments might not 
increase the value of nursery plants and might not prevent 

the trees or plants in question from dying. 

2.28 Trees Planted and Maintained by Other Contractors 

The Client acknowledges that if trees within the scope of 

the Work were recently planted or are being maintained by 
one or more other contractors or if one or more other 

contractors will be watering and providing services with 
respect to trees within the scope of the Work, how those 

trees respond to treatment in the course of the Work might 

be unpredictable, and Bartlett Tree Experts cannot be 

responsible for the health of such trees or plants. 

2.29 Trees with Cones and Large Seed Pods 

The Client acknowledges that large tree cones or seedpods 

on some trees can become dislodged and fall without notice, 

creating a hazard to persons or property.  If the Client  has 
the type of tree on their property that produces large, heavy 

cones or seedpods, and the Client does not wish to remove 

the tree, Bartlett Tree Experts recommends that the Client 
marks off and restricts the area under and near the tree from 

pedestrian and vehicle traffic whenever possible, places a 

warning sign near the tree, remains aware of the hazardous 
conditions the falling cones can create, and inspects the tree 

annually and removes any observable cones if possible in 

order to mitigate the potential for damage from falling 

cones.     

2.30 Snow Removal 

(a) If snow removal forms part of the Work, the Client 

acknowledges that the condition of snow and ice on a roof 

or other structure will vary based on the rate at which snow 
accumulates, how it is distributed, and the weather it has 

been exposed to.  In removing snow, Bartlett Tree Experts

aims to reduce the weight of snow and ice, not remove it 
entirely. The Client acknowledges that in most cases, 

existing snow will only be removed down to within a few 

inches of the roof surface or the ice covering the roof 
surface, as the case may be, and that any remaining snow 

and ice might still cause damage.

(b) Bartlett Tree Experts will not be responsible for damage 
done during snow removal as a result of Concealed Features

that the Client does not notify Bartlett of.

(c) The Client acknowledges that because removing snow from

a structure or landscaping feature that has already been 
damaged might result in further damage regardless of the 

care taken by Bartlett Tree Experts, Bartlett will not be 

responsible for any further damage to a previously-
damaged structure or landscaping feature from which 

Bartlett Tree Experts removes snow as part of the Work.

2.31 Installing Lights 

If installing lights and other lighting equipment forms part 

of the Work, the Client is responsible for providing the 
lighting equipment and instructing Bartlett Tree Experts 

where to install it. Bartlett Tree Experts is not responsible 

for performance and safety of the lighting equipment. The 
Client is responsible for retaining a licensed electrician to 

inspect the lighting equipment to check that it is in working 

order, is safe, and complies with the relevant codes. Bartlett 
Tree Experts is not responsible for damage done during 

installation and removal of lighting equipment to any 

structures (including gutters, decking, and patios), 

landscaping features (including trees and plants). 

2.32 Tarpaulins 

The Client acknowledges that if as part of the Work Bartlett 

Tree Experts places a tarpaulin, or touches a tarpaulin, over 
a damaged structure, that might not prevent further damage 

to the structure and its contents, and the tarpaulin might not 

stay secure during subsequent weather events, even if it is 
competently secured. Bartlett Tree Experts is not 

responsible for damage to a structure and its contents that 

occurs after Bartlett Tree Experts places or adjusts a 
tarpaulin over the structure. The Client acknowledges that 

if a structure experiences damage that requires placement 

of a tarpaulin, the Client should promptly contact an 
appropriate roofing or water-restoration contractor to assess 

any damage and conduct any needed repairs. 

2.33 Fire Damage 

(a) Regardless of the species, trees exposed to fire can suffer 

structural damage that goes beyond whatever external
damage might be visible. Fire can cause cracking and 

brittleness in tree structure and integrity; it can make 

preexisting defects worse; it can make roots less stable; and 
it can weaken the overall health of the tree, making it 

susceptible to disease and pest infestations. The effects of 

fire damage are unpredictable and difficult to determine. 
Bartlett Tree Experts is not responsible for any injury to 

persons or damage to property resulting from services

performed on fire-damaged trees as part of the Work.

(b) The Client acknowledges that if trees and shrubs on the 
Client’s property have been exposed to fire, the Client 

should have qualified arborist periodically inspect trees and 

shrubs on the property for fire damage.

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
81



    General Terms Commercial 

Page 6 of 6  The F.A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company 
Sales.011.US.CA.10-19

2.34 Cancellation 

If the Client cancels or reduces the Work after the Work has 
started, the Client shall pay Bartlett for all the items of the 

Work that have been completed and all reasonable costs 

Bartlett has incurred in preparing to perform the remainder 

of the Work. 

2.35 Payment 

The Client shall pay for the Work when the Client receives 

Bartlett Tree Experts’ invoice for the Work. If any amount 

remains unpaid 30 days after the date of the invoice or any 
period stated in the Client Agreement, whichever is longer, 

as a service charge the unpaid amount will accrue interest 

at the rate of 1.5% per month (or 18% per year) or the 
maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is lower. The 

Client shall reimburse Bartlett for any expenses (including 

attorneys’ fees and court costs) it incurs in collecting 

amounts that the Client owes under the Client Agreement. 

Article 3 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

3.1 Arbitration 

(a) As the exclusive means of initiating adversarial 
proceedings to resolve any dispute arising out of or related

to the Client Agreement or Bartlett Tree Experts’ 

performance of the Work, a party may demand that the 
dispute be resolved by arbitration administered by the 

American Arbitration Association in accordance with its 
commercial arbitration rules, and each party hereby 

consents to any such dispute being so resolved. Any 

arbitration commenced in accordance with this section must 
be conducted by one arbitrator. Judgment on any award 

rendered in any such arbitration may be entered in any court 

having jurisdiction.  The parties also agree that the issue of 
whether any such dispute is arbitrable will be decided by an 

arbitrator, not a court. 

(b) The arbitrator must not award punitive damages in excess

of compensatory damages. Each party hereby waives any 

right to recover any such damages in any arbitration.

3.2 Limitation of Liability 

The maximum liability of Bartlett for any losses incurred 

by the Client arising out of the Client Agreement or 

Bartlett’s performance of the Work will be the amount paid 
by the Client for the Work, except in the case of negligence 

or intentional misconduct by Bartlett. 

Article 4 

MISCELLANEOUS 

4.1 Client Responsibilities 

(a) The Client is responsible for the maintenance of the client’s 

trees, shrubs, and turf and for all decisions as to whether or 

not to prune, remove, or conduct other types of tree work
on each respective tree, or when to prune, remove, or

conduct other tree work on any respective tree, and all 

decisions related to the safety of each respective tree, shrub, 

and turf area.    

(b) Nothing in this Agreement creates an ongoing duty of care 

for Bartlett Tree Experts to provide safety maintenance or 

safety inspections in and around the client’s property.  It is 
the responsibility of the client to ensure the safety of its

trees and landscape, and to take appropriate actions to 

prevent any future tree or tree part breakage or failures, or 
otherwise remove any hazardous conditions which may be 

present or may develop in the future. 

4.2 Unrelated Court Proceedings 

The Client acknowledges that Bartlett Tree Experts has 

prepared the Client Agreement solely to help the Client 
understand the scope of the Work and the related costs. If a 

court subpoenas Bartlett Tree Experts’ records regarding, 

or requires that a Bartlett representative testify about, the 
Client Agreement or the Work in connection with any 

Proceeding to which Bartlett Tree Experts is not a party or 

in connection with which Bartlett Tree Experts has not 
agreed to provide expert testimony, the Client shall pay 

Bartlett Tree Experts Two Hundred dollars ($200.00) per 

hour for time spent by Bartlett representatives in collecting 
and submitting documents for those Proceedings and 

attending depositions or testifying as part of those 

Proceedings. 

4.3 Notices 

For a notice or other communication under the Client 

Agreement to be valid, it must be in writing and delivered 

(1) by hand, (2) by a national transportation company (with 
all fees prepaid), or (3) by email.  If a notice or other 

communication addressed to a party is received after 

5:00 p.m. on a business day at the location specified for that 
party, or on a day that is not a business day, then the notice 

will be deemed received at 9:00 a.m. on the next business

day.

4.4  Amendment; Waiver 

No amendment of the Client Agreement will be effective 
unless it is in writing and signed by the parties. No waiver 

under the Client Agreement will be effective unless it is in 

writing and signed by the party granting the waiver. A 
waiver granted on one occasion will not operate as a waiver 

on other occasions. 

4.5 Conflicting Terms 

If these terms conflict with the rest of the Client Agreement, 

the rest of the Client Agreement will prevail.  If these terms 
conflict with any other client documentation, terms, or 

purchase order agreement, then the Client Agreement and 

these terms will prevail.  

4.6 Entire Agreement 

The Client Agreement with these terms constitutes the 
entire understanding between the parties regarding Bartlett 

Tree Experts’ performance of the Work and 

supersedes all other agreements, whether 

written or oral, between the parties. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
82



1

Town Manager

From: Kelli Webster 
Sent: Wednesday, July 5, 2023 11:27 AM
To: Town Manager
Subject: Re: Learning Tree lease

Hi Angus, 
There were no other issues other than rent. I was hoping to be able to keep it the same, my enrollment is very low this 
year and it’s already kind of a struggle so that would be all I’m asking.  
I’m hoping they could keep it the same if possible. 
I can talk anytime, let me know what works for you.  
Kelli  

Sent from my iPhone 

On Jul 5, 2023, at 10:15, Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> wrote: 

Hi, 
   I wasn’t able to call on Friday.  I’m flexible today, or tomorrow after about noon.  The Board has asked 
me to look into what market rents are in the area, for purposes of revisiting the current rent 
amount.  Other than rent level, are there other items you’d like to talk over with regard to the 
lease?  (Obviously the building painting underway now is a short-term inconvenience). 

Thanks, 
 Angus 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111
townmanager@wnewbury.org

From: Kelli Webster   
Sent: Friday, June 30, 2023 2:08 PM 
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: Re: Learning Tree lease 

Hi I can talk on the phone today if you want.  Let me know what time works. 
Kelli  

Sent from my iPhone 

H

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
83



2

 
 
 

On Jun 30, 2023, at 12:08, Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> wrote: 

  
Kelli, 
   I hope you are well.  I’d like to schedule a conversation, next week if possible, to talk 
over the Learning Tree lease.  The lease was last renewed for a 2-year term beginning 
July 2021 through today, so we will need to get this back on a Select Board agenda for 
their review of a new lease.  As part of that, we’ll take a look at the rent amount, and it’s 
an opportunity to review any other items that may need discussion, if any. 
  
Please let me know your availability.  I’ll be in all next week other than Tuesday July 4th, 
and would be happy to stop by to meet in person if that works out. 
  
Thanks, 
  Angus 
  
  
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 
  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
84



1

Town Manager

From: Kelli Webster 
Sent: Friday, July 28, 2023 2:01 PM
To: Town Manager
Subject: Re: Learning Tree sq ft

Hi Angus,  
Thank you for meeting with me as well. Thank you for helping  take care of the driveway and play yard it will make such 
a difference with the  appearance of the property.  
I couldn’t find it on my email, but I know it’s on my early education and care portal. I will take care of it today and send it 
over Monday.  
I have a couple different sketches, because different licensers requires different things. I will send what I have.  
Kelli  

Sent from my iPhone 
 
 

On Jul 28, 2023, at 12:39, Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> wrote: 

  
Kelli, 
   Thanks for meeting yesterday.  Once you track down the measured square footage of the space, 
please let me know.  I’ll be out on vacation next week, so we won’t be putting the lease renewal on the 
Select Board agenda for Aug 7, but would like to get this wrapped up in time for their Aug 21 mtg. 
   I spoke with our Highway Foreman Butch Hills, and he’ll take a look at the rear portion of the lot – 
cleaning up the gravel from the paving/drainage improvements, which will allow the routine mowing to 
get back into that section of the lot as it had previously.  When I’m back from vacation I’ll talk with him 
and Brian further re your suggestions about mowing the yard as well as potentially paving a small 
portion of the existing yard (near the back of the building) to simplify future maintenance. 
  
Thanks, 
  Angus 
  
  
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 
  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
85



1

Town Manager

From: Kelli Webster 
Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 4:48 PM
To: Town Manager
Subject: INDOOR SPACE SKETCH
Attachments: INDOOR SPACE SKETCH.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

 
Hi Angus,  
I have two different sketches.  
However my capacity is based on the room size only.  
So, although it’s 844 on one and 956.5 on another. Early education and care will not allow me to use hallways and 
bathrooms at square footage.  
I realize the town has to charge me for complete square footage, which is fine, I’m just stating that they base my 
capacity off the three rooms only. Because that is where the children will be playing etc.  Unfortunately, where they 
don’t allow complete sf it effects my salary and enrollment.   
I just wanted to make the selectmen aware of how that works. It’s the square footage per child.   
Kelli  

 

 

Sent from my iPhone 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
86



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
87



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
88



Learning Tree lease workbook 2023 Learning Tree

Learning Tree lease Learning Tree lease

Area 844           sq. ft. (measured) Area 956.5       sq. ft. (measured)
Rent 1207.44 per month Rent 1207.44 per month
Rent 14489.28 per year Rent 14489.28 per year
Rent 17.17        sq. ft. (est.) Rent 15.15       sq. ft. (est.)

T:\Contracts\TM contract files\Contracts\Learning Tree lease\2023-2025\Learning Tree lease workbook 20238/17/2023 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
89



Learning Tree lease workbook 2023 Comps

Comparable rents, analysis of Learning Tree lease, July 2023

Location (address)
Type of space (i.e. retail, office, etc.)
Class (if available)
Utilities
Area 718          sq. ft. (est.)
Rent/month 718 per month
Rent/yr 8616 per year
Rent/SF 12.00       sq. ft. (est.)

Location (address)
Type of space (i.e. retail, office, etc.)
Class (if available)
Utilities
Area 2,200       sq. ft. (est.)
Rent/month 2249.5 per month
Rent/yr 26994 per year
Rent/SF 12.27       sq. ft. (est.)

Location (address)
Type of space (i.e. retail, office, etc.)
Class (if available)
Utilities
Area 1,600       sq. ft. (est.)
Rent/month 3333.33 per month
Rent/yr 39999.96 per year
Rent/SF 25.00       sq. ft. (est.)

Location (address)
Type of space (i.e. retail, office, etc.)
Class (if available)
Utilities
Area 2,249       sq. ft. (est.)
Rent/month 2811.25 per month
Rent/yr 33735 per year
Rent/SF 15.00       sq. ft. (est.)

Location (address)
Type of space (i.e. retail, office, etc.)
Class (if available)
Utilities
Area 2,800       sq. ft. (est.)
Rent/month 3033.33 per month
Rent/yr 36399.96 per year
Rent/SF 13.00       sq. ft. (est.)

Not Included

45 Storey Ave
Retail/Storefront

30 Main Street 
Retail/Store front

117 E Main Street
Retail/Office

Not Included

Not Included

Amesbury

Georgetown

Topsfield 

Merrimac

Newburyport

58 Macy St
Retail/zoned for daycare

1 W Main Street
Retail/Office

Not Included

Not Included

T:\Contracts\TM contract files\Contracts\Learning Tree lease\2023-2025\Learning Tree lease workbook 2023 8/17/2023 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
90



 

 1 

TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY AND LEARNING TREE PRESCHOOL  
LEASE 

 
1. PARTIES The Board of Selectmen of the Town of West Newbury, pursuant to Massachusetts 

General Laws Chapter 40 Section 3 and every other lawful authority, (hereinafter 
LESSOR), which expression shall include its  successors and assigns where the context 
so admits, does hereby lease to Kelli J. Webster doing business as Learning Tree 
Preschool,  

  (hereinafter LESSEE), which expression shall include LESSEE and its successors, 
executors, administrators, and assigns where the context so admits, and the LESSEE 
hereby leases the following described premises: 

 
 
2.  PREMISES The portion of West Newbury Town Hall outlined in red on the attached Exhibit A 
  and an outdoor fenced in area of approximately 750 square feet on the easterly side of 
  Town Hall together with the right to use in common, with others entitled thereto, the  
  hallways and stairways, necessary for access to said Premises, and lavatories near- 
  est thereto and the non-exclusive right to parking spaces in the rear of  the Town Hall. 
 
 
3.  TERM The term of this lease shall be for two (2) years commencing on July 1, 2023, and ending 

on June 30, 2025. 
 
 
4.  RENT The LESSEE shall pay to the LESSOR rent at the rate of Fourteen Thousand Four 

Hundred Eighty Nine Dollars and Twenty Eight Cents ($14,489.28) for the year of this 
lease beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2025, payable in advance in monthly 
installments of  One Thousand Two Hundred Seven Dollars and Forty Four Cents 
($1,207.44) on the first day of each month, the first monthly payment to be made on July 
1, 2023, and a like installment on the first day of each succeeding month.  

 
 
5.  UTILITIES The LESSOR agrees to furnish water, electricity and  reasonable heat to the 
  Premises, the hallways, stairways, and lavatories during normal business hours on regular 
  business days of the heating season of each year, and to light passageways and 
  stairways during business hours  all subject to interruption due to any accident, to the 

making of repairs, alterations or improvements, to labor difficulties, to trouble in 
obtaining fuel, electricity, service or supplies from the sources from which they are 
usually obtained for the Premises or the property of which the Premises are a part, or to 
any cause beyond the LESSOR’s control. Any additional services or utilities shall be at 
LESSEE’S sole cost and expense, subject to LESSOR’S approval, which approval shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
 
6. PERMITTED USE The LESSEE shall use the leased premises only for the operation of a Day Care 
  Center as defined in Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 28A Section 9 for not more 

than  twenty-three (23) students. No other use, whether a principal use or an or incidental 
use, shall be allowed on the Premises, nor shall the maximum number of students allowed 
under this paragraph be exceeded, except with the express written consent of  the 
LESSOR, which consent may be granted or withheld in LESSOR’s sole and absolute 
discretion. 

 
 
 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
91



 

 2 

7. COMPLIANCE The LESSEE acknowledges that no trade or occupation shall be conducted in or on the  
 WITH LAWS Premises or use made thereof other than a Permitted Use as permitted under Part 6 hereof 

and no activity shall be suffered or allowed which is unlawful, improper, noisy or 
offensive, or contrary to any federal or state law or any municipal by-law or ordinance in 
force in the town in which the Premises are situated.  LESSEE covenants and agrees at all 
times during the term of this lease to comply with all  applicable laws, whether federal, 
state, or local, pertaining to LESSEE’s use of the Premises. 

 
 
8. FIRE The LESSEE shall not permit any use of the Premises which will make voidable  
 INSURANCE any insurance on the property of which the Premises are a part, or on the contents  
  of said property or which shall be contrary to any law or regulation from time to time  
  established by the New England Fire Insurance Rating Association, or any similar body  
  succeeding to its powers.   The LESSEE shall on demand reimburse the LESSOR, and  
  all other tenants, all extra insurance premiums caused by the LESSEE’s use of the  
  premises. 
 
 
9. MAINTENANCE The LESSEE  agrees to maintain the Premises in the same condition as they are  
 OF PREMISES at the commencement of the term or as they may be put in during the term of this lease,  
  reasonable wear and tear, damage by fire and other casualty only excepted, and   
  whenever necessary, to replace plate glass and other glass therein, acknowledging that  
  the Premises are now in good order and the glass whole.  The LESSEE shall not   
  permit the Premises to be overloaded, damaged, stripped, or defaced, nor suffer   
  any waste.  LESSEE shall obtain written consent of LESSOR before erecting any sign  
  on  the Premises. 
 
 
10. ALTERATIONS- The LESSEE shall not make alterations or additions to the Premises, 
 ADDITIONS unless the LESSOR  consents thereto in writing, which consent may be granted or 

withheld  in LESSOR’s sole discretion.   All such allowed alterations shall be at 
LESSEE’s expense and shall be in quality at least equal to the present construction.  
LESSEE shall not permit any mechanics’ liens, or similar liens, to remain upon the 
Premises, or the property of which the Premises are a part, for labor and material 
furnished to LESSEE or claimed to have been furnished to LESSEE in connection with 
work of any character performed or claimed to have been performed at the direction of 
LESSEE and shall cause any such lien to be  released of record forthwith without cost to 
LESSOR.  Any fixtures, alterations or improvements made by the LESSEE shall become 
the property of the LESSOR at the termination of occupancy as provided herein. 

 
 
11.  ASSIGNMENT- The LESSEE shall not assign or sublet the whole or any part of the Premises,  without 
 SUBLETTING LESSOR’s prior written consent, which consent may be granted or withheld in 

LESSOR’S sole discretion.  Notwithstanding such consent, LESSEE shall remain liable 
to LESSOR for the payment of all rent and for the full performance of the covenants and 
conditions of this lease. 

 
12.  SUBORDINATION This lease shall be subject and subordinate to any and all mortgages, deeds of trust and  

 other instruments in the nature of a mortgage, now or at any time hereafter, a lien or  
 liens on the property of which the Premises are a part and the LESSEE shall,   
 when requested, promptly execute and deliver such written instruments as shall be  
 necessary to subordinate this lease to said mortgages, deeds of trust or other such 

   instruments in the nature of a mortgage. 
 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
92



 

 3 

13. LESSOR’s The LESSOR or agents of the LESSOR may, at reasonable times, enter to view the  
 ACCESS Premises and may remove placards and signs not approved and affixed as herein  
  provided, and make repairs and alterations as LESSOR may elect to do and may show  
  the Premises to others, and at any time within three (3) months before the   
  expiration of the term, may affix to any suitable part of the Premises a notice for  
  letting or selling the leased premises or property of which the Premises are a part  
  and keep the same so affixed without hindrance or molestation. 
  
 
14. INDEMNIFICATION The LESSEE hereby indemnifies and holds harmless the Town of West Newbury,  
 AND LIABILITY and its officers, agents, employees, servants, successors and assigns of and from  any and 

all liability, damages, claims, and causes of action, including but not limited to attorney’s 
fees and costs of litigation, arising out of or in any way related to LESSEE’s use of the 
Premises including, but not by way of limitation, arising out of or related to damage 
occasioned by the use or escape of water or by the bursting of pipes, as well as from any 
claim or damage resulting from neglect in not removing snow and ice from the roof of the 
building or from the sidewalks and/or walkways bordering or located on the Premises, or 
by any nuisance made or suffered on the Premises, unless such loss is caused by the gross 
negligence of the LESSOR.   The removal of snow and ice from the roof and the 
sidewalks and /or walkways bordering or located on the Premises shall be LESSEE’s sole 
responsibility.  

 
 
15. LESSEE’s The LESSEE shall maintain with respect to the Premises and the property of  
 LIABILITY - which the Premises are a part, comprehensive public liability insurance in the 
  INSURANCE   amount of at least One Million ($1,000,000.00) Dollars in the aggregate,  with property 

damage insurance in limits of full replacement cost with respect to LESSEE’s personal 
property, and Bodily Injury and Property Damage coverage in combined single limits of 
at least One Million ($1,000,000.00) Dollars in responsible companies qualified to do 
business in  Massachusetts and in good standing therein insuring the Town of West 
Newbury, its officers, agents, servants, employees, successors and assigns as well as 
LESSEE against injury to persons or damage to property as provided.   The LESSEE 
shall deposit with the LESSOR certificates for such insurance at or prior to the 
commencement of the term, and thereafter certificates of renewal within thirty (30) days 
prior to the expiration of any such policies. All such insurance certificates shall provide 
that such policies shall not be canceled without at least ten (10) days prior written notice 
to each insured named therein and the Town of West Newbury, its officers, agents, 
servants, employees, successors and assigns shall be named additional insureds. 

 
 
16.  FIRE CASUALTY- Should a substantial portion of the Premises, or of the property of which they are  
 EMINENT a part, be substantially damaged by fire or other casualty, or be taken by eminent  
 DOMAIN domain, the LESSOR may elect to terminate this lease.  When such fire, casualty, or  
  taking renders the Premises substantially unsuitable for their intended use, a just   
  and proportionate abatement of rent shall be made, and the LESSEE may elect to  
  terminate this lease as LESSEE’s sole and exclusive remedy if: 

(a)  The LESSOR fails to give written notice within thirty (30) days thereof of 
its intention to restore the Premises, or 
(b) The LESSOR fails to restore the Premises to a condition     

substantially suitable for their intended use within ninety (90) days of said 
fire, casualty, or taking. 

  
  The LESSOR reserves, and the LESSEE grants to the LESSOR, all rights which the  
  LESSEE may have for damages or injury to the Premises for any taking by   
  eminent domain, except for damage to the LESSEE’s, property, or equipment. 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
93



 

 4 

 
17. DEFAULT AND In the event that: 
 BANKRUPTCY  (a) The LESSEE shall default in the payment of any installment of rent or  

 other sum herein specified and such default shall continue for five (5)  
    days after written notice thereof; or 
   (b) The LESSEE shall default in the observance or performance of any   

   other of the LESSEE’s covenants, agreements, or obligations hereunder  
   and such default shall be not corrected within thirty (30) days after  
   written notice thereof; or  

   (c) The LESSEE shall be declared bankrupt or insolvent according to law,   
    or, if any assignment shall be made of LESSEE’s property for the  
    benefit of creditors; 
 
  then the LESSOR shall have the right thereafter, while such default continues, to re-enter 
  and take complete possession of the Premises, to declare the term of this lease ended, and 
  remove the LESSEE’s effects, without prejudice to any remedies which might otherwise 

be available to LESSOR. The LESSEE  shall indemnify the LESSOR from and against 
all loss of rent and costs, including but not limited to reasonable court costs and 
attorney’s fees, which the LESSOR may incur by reason of such termination, for the 
balance of the original term of this lease.  If the LESSEE shall default, after reasonable 
notice thereof, in the observance or performance of any conditions or covenants on 
LESSEE’s part to be observed or performed under or by virtue of any of the provisions in 
any article of this lease, the LESSOR, without being under any obligation to do so and 
without thereby waiving such default, may remedy such default for the account and at the 
expense of the LESSEE.  If the LESSOR makes any expenditures or incurs any 
obligations for the payment of money in connection therewith, including but not limited 
to court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees, in instituting, prosecuting or defending any 
action or proceeding, such sums paid, costs or obligations incurred, with interest at the 
rate of ten (10%) per cent per annum , shall be paid to the LESSOR by the LESSEE as 
additional rent.  

 
 
18.  NOTICE Any notice from the LESSOR to the LESSEE relating to the Premises or to the    

  occupancy thereof, shall be deemed duly served, if left at the Premises addressed  
 to the LESSEE, or, if mailed to the Premises, registered or certified mail, return   
 receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the LESSEE.   Any notice from the  
 LESSEE to the LESSOR relating to the Premises or to the occupancy thereof, and all rent 

 payments , shall be deemed duly served or tendered, if mailed to the LESSOR by 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the LESSOR at: 

        Town Manager 
      Town Office Building     
      381 Main Street 
      West Newbury, MA   01985 
 

or to such other address as the LESSOR may from time to time designate in writing to the 
LESSEE.  

 
19.  SURRENDER The LESSEE shall at the expiration or other termination of this lease remove all   
  LESSEE’s goods and effects from the Premises, (including, without hereby   
  limiting the generality of the foregoing, all signs and lettering affixed or painted by the  
  LESSEE, either inside or outside the Premises).  LESSEE shall deliver to the   
  LESSOR the Premises and all keys, locks thereto, and other fixtures connected   
  therewith and all alterations and additions made to or upon the Premises, in the   
  same condition as they were at the commencement of the term, or as they were put in  
  during the term hereof, reasonable wear and tear and damage by fire or other casualty  
  only excepted.   In the event of the LESSEE’s failure to remove any of LESSEE’s  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
94



 

 5 

  property from the premises, LESSOR is hereby authorized, without liability to LESSEE  
  for loss or damage thereto, and at the sole risk of LESSEE, to remove and store any of  
  the property at LESSEE’s expense, or to retain same under LESSOR’s control or to sell  
  at public or private sale, without notice any or all of the property not so removed and to  
  apply the net proceeds of such sale to the payment of any sums due hereunder, or to  
  destroy such property. 
 
 
20.  ADDITIONAL It is also understood and agreed that:   
       PROVISIONS 1)  those portions of Town Hall not forming a part of the Premises exclusively   
       for the use of LESSEE  will be used and occupied for Town purposes, and  
         such use and occupancy shall not be grounds for LESSEE’s claims for breach  
       of any covenant of quiet enjoyment, express or  implied, or otherwise.   

2)  use of unisex bathroom  shall be allowed pursuant to the terms  
       of the attached letter dated May 23, 2008. 
 3)  FUEL ESCALATION CLAUSE:  During the term of this Lease, LESSEE shall pay as  
      additional rent, any increase over the base price paid by the LESSOR for heating oil  
    for the building. The base price is equal to the unit price for Number 2 Heating Oil  
      stated as the Journal of Commerce, Boston Low Tank Car Price as of July 1, 2023.  
      LESSOR shall calculate the additional rent, if any, on a periodic basis, submit a  
      statement for the sum owed  to the LESSOR and such sum shall be paid within twenty  
      days or the first day of the next month, whichever date is later.  
 4)  LESSOR shall permit the LESSEE to use the Town Hall facility three times per year   
       for holiday recital and graduation purposes, without charge. LESSEE shall complete a 
       Request for Use of  Facilities Form and confirm availability of the Town             
       Hall. LESSEE agrees to leave Town Hall facility in broom clean condition. 

5)  LESSOR agrees to make following improvements to outdoor play area adjunct to the 
   leased permises, including removing grass area, removing gravel path, removing 
  wooden edging, assist with installing engineered wood fibers and LESSEE agrees to 
  purchase engineered wood fibers all as shown on sketch plan attached hereto 
  LESSOR also agrees to repave portion of property as shown on said sketch plan when  
  and if parking lot is repaved. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the LESSOR and LESSEE have hereunto set their hands and this _______ day of  
    , 2023. 
 
 
LESSOR      LESSEE 
TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY     Kelli  J. Webster 
 
______________________________________   _______________________________ 
 Angus Jennings, Town Manager    Kelli J. Webster 
 
Duly authorized by ____ vote of Select Board on _______, 2023                 
        

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
95



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
96



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
97



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
98



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Select Board 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: August 18, 2023 

RE:  Known / Potential articles for Fall Special Town Meeting 

This is a preview of known or potential articles for Fall STM; please understand, this list is my own 

working draft, and should not be considered complete or conclusive. The Board can consider articles 

submitted anytime up to the advertised deadline of Thursday, Aug. 31st (or, in fact, until it votes to 

close the warrant, expected to take place at the Board meeting on Tuesday, Sept. 5th). Please also 

understand that when I refer to “known” articles it means that I know they’ll be proposed – not that 

they’ll necessarily be included on the warrant (which will be up to the Board).  

Issue Proponent 

Known Article Proposals 

Adopt MGL Ch. 59 Sec. 21A regarding certification 

stipends to Assessors 

Town Manager 

Allocation of funds into Retirement Stabilization Fund Finance Committee 

Amendment to Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Bylaw Planning Board 

Assessing Revaluation consultant support costs Board of Assessors 

Establish Special Stabilization Fund to deposit opioid 

settlement payments 

Town Manager / Town Accountant 

Establishment of Council on Aging Revolving Fund COA Director / COA 

Funds for 911 audio recording equipment (historically, 

but no longer, funded by State 911) 

Chief Dwyer 

Funds for Whittier School special election Town Clerk 

Prior fiscal year unpaid bills Town Accountant 

Repeal Short Term Rental Bylaw Select Board 

Water: reduction of FY24 budget; and/or authorization of 

transfer from Retained Earnings to balance FY24 budget 

BOWC 

Potential Article Proposals 

Amendment to FY24 Essex Ag ed budget Town Manager (if needed) 

Funds for invasive species management and/or invasive 

species intern/steward program, for early summer 2024 

Conservation Agent / OSC 

Funds for water testing at 31 Dole Place and/or other 

locations 

Select Board / BOWC (potential) 

Page School 3D interior scan ? 

Radar traffic trailer Chief Dwyer / Select Board (potential) 

Revise or repeal Personnel Committee Bylaw ? 

The West Newbury Empower Act: A petition to lower 

the voting age in town elections 

Citizen petition (potential) 

This is offered solely as a preview. It is not the intent of the 8/21 Board meeting to get into 

substantive discussion/deliberation of these specific items. A draft calendar with key dates is attached. 

I

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
99

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


Key Dates/Milestones – Fall 2023 Special Town Mee�ng – DISCUSSION DRAFT 

 

Thurs., Aug 31  Deadline for receipt of proposed ar�cles (to Town Clerk) 

Tues., Sept 5  Select Board vote to close warrant 

SEPT (DATES TBD) FinCom ar�cle review 

(Note: following the 8/21 Select Board mtg, including discussion of whether the SB and FinCom 
may hold joint meetings to consider proposed warrant articles, the FinCom will establish a 
schedule of meeting dates in September). 

Mon., Sept 18  Select Board review of dra� language for ar�cles; refer for Town Counsel review 

Thurs., Sept 21  Cont’d CPC review of proposed CPA-funded ar�cle(s) (if needed) 

By Fri., Oct 6  Finalize and distribute FinCom booklet 

By Fri., Oct 6  Post Warrant  

Mon., Oct 16  Joint mee�ng – Select Board, Moderator, FinCom, Town Manager, Town Counsel, 
   Town Clerk; finalize Mo�ons 

Mon. Oct 23  Special Town Mee�ng 

 

By Wedn., Nov 1 Submital of proposed updated dra� Capital Improvements Program (for FY25+) 

 

Mon., Nov 27  FY24 Tax Classifica�on Hearing (with Board of Assessors) 

 

By late Nov/early Dec Select Board approval of FY25 Budget policy direc�on 

By early/mid Dec Town Manager distribute FY25 budget policy direc�on and calendar 

 

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager, 8/18/23 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
100



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Select Board 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: August 18, 2023 

RE:  Scheduling coordinated planning forum, or separate tracks for separate projects 

Due to the number of major ongoing planning initiatives, I have discussed with staff (at our biweekly 

Planning & Land Management “huddles”) the potential to hold a major public event in the fall 

(working date, Thurs., Oct. 5th) in order to create a “critical mass” to attract as many residents as we 

can; and to illustrate the interrelationships between some of the ongoing initiatives (such as housing / 

zoning planning, Route 113 corridor / pedestrian safety planning, water system study / planning). 

Although we recognize the level of effort that would be needed to accomplish this, the idea has 

gained some traction at the staff level. We see as an alternative the traditional approach of each major 

project proceeding on its own track to gain public input, but given the number, scale and scope of 

initiatives, we’re concerned that proceeding with all major projects in parallel could lead to fatigue 

(from staff, BCC members, and residents), and result in lower attendance at some or all events. 

The attached is a preliminary working draft of a format that could work for a coordinated public 

event. At Monday’s Board meeting, I’ll be looking to gain agreement as to whether to proceed toward 

this type of event – in which case we’ll want to get a “Save the Date” circulated soon – or whether to 

instead plan the public input processes for the various major ongoing initiatives in parallel. 

K

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
101

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


Highlighted Projects – DRAFT  

Type    Name      Presenter 
• Housing   (MBTA) Housing Opportuni�es Ini�a�ve  Consultant (Dodson & Flinker) 
• Transporta�on  Route 113 Corridor Improvement Study  Consultant (TEC) 
• Resiliency  River Road Resiliency Planning   Consultant (or CCRC/staff)

     
 

Each to have a 15-20 min presenta�on with Q&A 

• Presenta�on – take-a-way summary document? 
• Sta�on with Feedback mechanism?? 
• Project webpage  

 

Other Projects 

Water:   Water Modeling/Expense Study, poten�al Land Acquisi�on for Water Source 

Housing:    HPP Update, AHT programs (exis�ng and underway), ADU Bylaw 

Facili�es/Services: Page School Condi�ons Assessment, Solar Facili�es site feasibility study 

Environmental: Poten�al new Wetlands Bylaw (spring 2024), Hazard Mi�ga�on Plan Update, Land 
Acquisi�ons (Sawmill Brook, Ar�choke River Woods, Coffin Street) 

 

Each or some to have: 

Boards, maps, visuals on easels or dividers. 

Project summary:  name, purpose/scope, �meline, project manager, who’s involved 

Public Input mechanism 

 

Possible general land management and planning board – goals, ques�ons etc. 

 

Outreach 

• Email blasts 
• News ar�cle 
• Posters 
• Mailing 
• Announcements at Board and Commitee mee�ngs 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
102



1

Town Manager

From: Chris Wile
Sent: Friday, August 11, 2023 9:10 PM
To: Town Manager; Wendy Reed
Subject: Agenda item request 

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Angus and Wendy 
 I hope that this is the appropriate method to request an item to be placed on the agenda and that I do not violate any 
open meeting law regulations. If I do, please let me know.  
I am very frustrated that the Select Board members are somehow prohibited from any conversation outside of a posted 
public meeting. It seems to me that we should, in some way, be able to exchange thoughts without violating the open 
meeting laws.  
Our own Massachusetts legislature is allowed to meet behind closed doors, yet we cannot discuss our local issues with 
each other outside of our posted meetings, which have full agendas. Simply insane!!! 
So, are we allowed to have say a biweekly gathering in a public place, town hall, maybe on Saturday mornings, for open 
discussion, without deliberation and voting?  Public welcome as well and open discussion on any issue?  How do we get 
this issue onto the agenda for discussion? 
Thank 
Chris 

Get Outlook for iOS 

M

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
103



MEMORANDUM 

To: Select Board, Town Manager 

From: Wendy Reed 

Re: Town Manager Project/Initiatives Priority Rankings 

Date: August 4, 2023 

The individual rankings received from Select Board members are compiled on pages 5 – 7.  This is still a 
draft so if on reviewing or after discussion Monday night you’d like to change/add your ranking, the 
table can be updated.  The combined rankings that follow were determined by: 

1. Assigning a point value to timeframe (A=1, B=2) and averaging SB members ranking
a. FY24 indicates all SB members in agreement on A
b. FY24/FY25 indicates partial agreement between A and B
c. FY25 indicates all SB in agreement on B

2. Averaging point value of priority (1, 2 or 3)
3. Sorting combined rankings by timeframe point value and then priority.

The following legend applies to both tables: 

Legend 
Project Rankings Project Completion Status 
A FY24 Complete 

B FY25 and later Underway 

1 Vital Not Underway (at all; or in a meaningful way) 

2 Important 
3 Optional 

N

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
104



Town Manager Project/Initiative Priority Ranking 

Draft - August 3, 2023  Page 2 
 

Combined Select Board Rankings – July 2023 
Town Manager Projects/Initiatives Timeframe Priority 
Peer Review: Dole Place cost estimates; permitting/design review ($) FY24 1.0 
Water financial plan FY24 1.0 
Water hydraulic plan ($) FY24 1.0 
Water Rate Study ($) FY24 1.0 
MOU with Newburyport: Water FY24 1.3 
Page School Conditions Assessment ($) FY24 1.3 
Realistic/sustainable water capital program/plan FY24 1.3 
Restructure DPW; figure out FY24 expense and FY25 budget implications FY24 1.3 
Form of Government: Review Town Manager legislation; begin process to 
consider potential amendments to improve efficiency and effectiveness. 
Consider establishment of Charter Committee or Commission. 

FY24 1.7 

Page School lintels evaluation ($) FY24 1.7 
Emerald Ash Borer: treatments / tracking ($) FY24 2.0 
Expand/empower “Land Agent” role with BCCs FY24 2.0 
Remote Work (personnel policy) FY24 2.0 
Solar: feasibility study of Town-owned parcels ($) FY24 2.0 
Stabilization Fund: refine account structure to distinguish Capital Stabilization 
from regular Stabilization funds 

FY24 2.0 

Summer Rec Program FY24 2.0 
Town Hall Restoration (painting) ($) FY24 2.0 
Investment Manager procurement process FY24 2.5 
Acquire site for new public water source FY24/FY25 1.0 
Replace phone systems: Town Offices and Public Safety ($) FY24/FY25 1.3 
Adopt financial policies: Employee Reimbursement, Procurement, 
Procurement Conflict-of-Interest (priority 1) 

FY24/FY25 1.7 

Adopt financial policies: Grant Management; Overlay; Reconciliations; 
Revenue Turnover; Tailings; Tax Recapitulation; and Year-End Closing (priority 
2) 

FY24/FY25 1.7 

HVAC equipment upgrades: Annex/COA ($) FY24/FY25 1.7 
Identify and apply for grants: Middle Street Bridge FY24/FY25 1.7 
MBTA Communities planning/zoning ($) FY24/FY25 1.7 
MOU with Newburyport: Middle Street Bridge FY24/FY25 1.7 
Road paving IFB FY24/FY25 1.7 
Wage/Classification study (cont’d implementation: job desc.; perf. evals) FY24/FY25 1.7 
Ash Street management plan FY24/FY25 2.0 
Build multi-year budget forecasting tool FY24/FY25 2.0 
Hazard Mitigation Plan updates FY24/FY25 2.0 
Housing Production Plan updates ($) FY24/FY25 2.0 
Zoning amendments: ADUs FY24/FY25 2.0 
Capital Bylaw: revise for consistency with policy FY24/FY25 2.3 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
105



Town Manager Project/Initiative Priority Ranking 

Draft - August 3, 2023  Page 3 
 

Combined Select Board Rankings – July 2023 
Town Manager Projects/Initiatives Timeframe Priority 
Coffin Street land acquisition (establish parking, access) ($) FY24/FY25 2.3 
Hearing Room improvements, cont’d ($) FY24/FY25 2.3 
New resident info/welcome package FY24/FY25 3.0 
Establish reliable accrual tracking process in payroll software FY24/FY25 1.0 
Self-evaluation of pay practices (MGL Ch. 149) FY24/FY25 1.5 
Expand/broaden GIS user group FY24/FY25 2.0 
Invasive Species (permitting, contractor management) ($) FY24/FY25 2.0 
Stormwater/culvert mapping/engineering (beyond River Rd) FY24/FY25 2.0 
Surface Water Protection Bylaw (within MOU with Newburyport) FY24/FY25 2.0 
Invasive Species intern program ($) FY24/FY25 2.5 
Building security/access protocols FY24/FY25 1.7 
Improve structure/utilization of network servers, records management in 
Town Offices 

FY24/FY25 1.7 

Review EMA dept. structure/function FY24/FY25 1.7 
Review/update employee classifications/grades FY24/FY25 1.7 
River Road resiliency: engineering study FY24/FY25 1.7 
Advance consideration of regionalization FY24/FY25 2.0 
Cable License Agreement renewal, Verizon (2026) FY24/FY25 2.0 
GAR Library: implementation of 5-year strategic plan FY24/FY25 2.0 
Page/Pipestave crossing (25% design) FY24/FY25 2.0 
Pentucket Regional Agreement: review/update FY24/FY25 2.0 
Route 113 Corridor Plan / TIP ($) FY24/FY25 2.0 
Sawmill Brook land acquisition; incl. LAND grant; land management plan ($) FY24/FY25 2.0 
Soldiers & Sailors Building: resolve public plan, whether by authorizing 
disposition to a third party (subject to historic preservation restriction) or 
otherwise 

FY24/FY25 2.0 

Propose new Wetlands Bylaw FY24/FY25 2.3 
Town Center traffic calming ($50k earmark) ($) FY24/FY25 2.3 
Mowing: Town-wide fields management/mowing plan FY24/FY25 2.3 
LED streetlight conversion FY24/FY25 2.7 
Parks/Rec capital planning FY24/FY25 2.7 
Relocate public safety equipment from Parks/ Rec bldg.; propose bldg. demo 
($) 

FY24/FY25 2.7 

Update 2001 Committee Handbook FY24/FY25 2.7 
Special Legislation: Select Board name FY24/FY25 3.0 
Improvements recommended in ADA facilities audit, cont’d ($) FY25 1.5 
New/Updated Comp Master Plan FY25 1.7 
Establish COA Revolving Fund FY25 2.0 
Evaluate applicability, administration of Scenic Roads Bylaw FY25 2.0 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
106



Town Manager Project/Initiative Priority Ranking 

Draft - August 3, 2023  Page 4 
 

Combined Select Board Rankings – July 2023 
Town Manager Projects/Initiatives Timeframe Priority 
Fire Dept operational/asset structure review (incl. improve daytime 
coverage/ops) 

FY25 2.0 

Pipestave/Dunn access/parking/circulation/management plan FY25 2.0 
Potential land disposition for housing FY25 2.0 
River Road boat launch FY25 2.0 
Secure “Complete Streets” community designation FY25 2.0 
Sustainable long-term plan for cemeteries O&M, capacity FY25 2.0 
Zoning amendments: wireless comm facilities FY25 2.0 
Artichoke River Woods land acquisition (establish parking, access) FY25 2.3 
Establish public access to Merrimack River FY25 2.3 
Parks/Rec O&M plans FY25 2.3 
Mill Pond All Access trail (with or without broader reorientation plan) ($) FY25 2.5 
Pursue “Housing Choice” community designation FY25 2.5 
Whetstone Greenway ($) FY25 2.5 
Edits/Updates to Mill Pond Management Plan FY25 2.7 
Way to the River: vehicle access questions FY25 2.7 
Potential Mooring Field FY25 3.0 

 
  

 

Legend 
Project Rankings Project Completion Status 
A FY24 Complete 

B FY25 and later Underway 

1 Vital Not Underway (at all; or in a meaningful way) 

2 Important  

3 Optional  
 

  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
107



Town Manager Project/Initiative Priority Ranking 

Draft - August 3, 2023  Page 5 
 

TOWN MANAGER PROJECTS / INITIATIVES 
Select Board Member Priorities – July 2023 

WR RP CW  Project/Initiative 
A1 A1 B1 Acquire site for new public water source 

A2 A1 B2 Adopt financial policies: Employee Reimbursement, Procurement, Procurement 
Conflict-of-Interest (priority 1) 

B2 A1 A2 Adopt financial policies: Grant Management; Overlay; Reconciliations; Revenue 
Turnover; Tailings; Tax Recapitulation; and Year-End Closing (priority 2) 

B2 A1 B3 Advance consideration of regionalization 

B2 B2 B3 Artichoke River Woods land acquisition (establish parking, access) 

A2 A2 B2 Ash Street management plan 

B2 A2 A2 Build multi-year budget forecasting tool 

A2 B1 B2 Building security/access protocols 

A2 B1 B3 Cable License Agreement renewal, Verizon (2026) 

A3 A2 B2 Capital Bylaw: revise for consistency with policy 

A2 A2 B3 Coffin Street land acquisition (establish parking, access) ($) 

B3 B2 B3 Edits/Updates to Mill Pond Management Plan 

A2 A1 A3 Emerald Ash Borer: treatments / tracking ($) 

B2 B2 B2 Establish COA Revolving Fund 

B2 B2 B3 Establish public access to Merrimack River 

B1 A1   Establish reliable accrual tracking process in payroll software 

B2 B2   Evaluate applicability, administration of Scenic Roads Bylaw 

B2 A2   Expand/broaden GIS user group 

A2 A2   Expand/empower “Land Agent” role with BCCs 

B2 B2   Fire Dept operational/asset structure review (incl. improve daytime coverage/ops) 

A2 A2 A1 
Form of Government: Review Town Manager legislation; begin process to consider 
potential amendments to improve efficiency and effectiveness. Consider 
establishment of Charter Committee or Commission. 

B2 A2 B2 GAR Library: implementation of 5-year strategic plan 

A2 A1 B3 Hazard Mitigation Plan updates 

A2 A3 B2 Hearing Room improvements, cont’d ($) 

A2 A2 B2 Housing Production Plan updates ($) 

B2 A1 A2 HVAC equipment upgrades: Annex/COA ($) 

B2 A1 A2 Identify and apply for grants: Middle Street Bridge 

B2 A1 B2 Improve structure/utilization of network servers, records management in Town 
Offices 

B2 B1   Improvements recommended in ADA facilities audit, cont’d ($) 

B2 A2   Invasive Species (permitting, contractor management) ($) 

B3 A2   Invasive Species intern program ($) 

A3 A2   Investment Manager procurement process 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
108



Town Manager Project/Initiative Priority Ranking 

Draft - August 3, 2023  Page 6 
 

TOWN MANAGER PROJECTS / INITIATIVES 
Select Board Member Priorities – July 2023 

WR RP CW  Project/Initiative 
B3 A2 B3 LED streetlight conversion 

A2 A1 B2 MBTA Communities planning/zoning ($) 

B3 B2   Mill Pond All Access trail (with or without broader reorientation plan) ($) 

B2 A1 A2 MOU with Newburyport: Middle Street Bridge 

A1 A1 A2 MOU with Newburyport: Water 

A3 A3 B3 New resident info/welcome package 

B2 B1 B2 New/Updated Comp Master Plan 

A2 A1 A1 Page School Conditions Assessment ($) 

A2 A2 A1 Page School lintels evaluation ($) 

B2 A2 B2 Page/Pipestave crossing (25% design) 

B3 A2 B3 Parks/Rec capital planning 

B2 B2 B3 Parks/Rec O&M plans 

A1 A1 A1 Peer Review: Dole Place cost estimates; permitting/design review ($) 

B2 B2 A2 Pentucket Regional Agreement: review/update 

B2 B2 B2 Pipestave/Dunn access/parking/circulation/management plan 

B2 B2 B2 Potential land disposition for housing 

B3 B3 B3 Potential Mooring Field 

A2 B2 B3 Propose new Wetlands Bylaw 

B3 B2   Pursue “Housing Choice” community designation 

A1 A1 A2 Realistic/sustainable water capital program/plan 

B3 A2 B3 Relocate public safety equipment from Parks & Rec bldg.; propose bldg. demo ($) 

A2 A2 A2 Remote Work (personnel policy) 

A2 A1 B1 Replace phone systems: Town Offices and Public Safety ($) 

A1 A1 A2 Restructure DPW; figure out FY24 expense and FY25 budget implications 

A2 B1 B2 Review EMA dept. structure/function 

B2 A1 B2 Review/update employee classifications/grades 

B2 B1 B3 River Road boat launch 

B2 A1 B2 River Road resiliency: engineering study 

A2 A1 B2 Road paving IFB 

B2 A2 B2 Route 113 Corridor Plan / TIP ($) 

B2 A2 B2 Sawmill Brook land acquisition; incl. LAND grant; land management plan ($) 

  B2   Secure “Complete Streets” community designation 

A2 B1   Self-evaluation of pay practices (MGL Ch. 149) 

A2 A2   Solar: feasibility study of Town-owned parcels ($) 

B2 B2 A2 Soldiers & Sailors Building: resolve public plan, whether by authorizing disposition 
to a third party (subject to historic preservation restriction) or otherwise 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
109



Town Manager Project/Initiative Priority Ranking 

Draft - August 3, 2023  Page 7 
 

TOWN MANAGER PROJECTS / INITIATIVES 
Select Board Member Priorities – July 2023 

WR RP CW  Project/Initiative 
B3 A3 B3 Special Legislation: Select Board name 

A2 A2 A2 Stabilization Fund: refine account structure to distinguish Capital Stabilization 
from regular Stabilization funds 

A2 B2   Stormwater/culvert mapping/engineering (beyond River Rd) 

A2 A2   Summer Rec Program 

B2 A2   Surface Water Protection Bylaw (within MOU with Newburyport) 

B2 B2   Sustainable long-term plan for cemeteries O&M, capacity 

B3 A2 B2 Town Center traffic calming ($50k earmark) ($) 

Comp A2 Done Town Hall Restoration (painting) ($) 

B2 A2 B3 Mowing: Town-wide fields management/mowing plan 

B3 A3 B2 Update 2001 Committee Handbook 

A2 A1 B2 Wage/Classification study (cont’d implementation: job desc.; perf. evals) 

A1 A1 A1 Water financial plan 

A1 A1 A1 Water hydraulic plan ($) 

A1 A1 A1 Water Rate Study ($) 

B3 B2 B3 Way to the River: vehicle access questions 

B3 B2   Whetstone Greenway ($) 

A2 B2 A2 Zoning amendments: ADUs 

B2 B2   Zoning amendments: wireless comm facilities 

    
 

Legend 
Project Rankings Project Completion Status 
A FY24 Complete 

B FY25 and later Underway 

1 Vital Not Underway (at all; or in a meaningful way) 

2 Important  

3 Optional  
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
110



August 17, 2023 

Appointed BCC Date Sent to BCC Date for SB Mee�ng SB Liaison 

Affordable Housing Trust 8/7/23 Wendy Reed 

Board of Fire Engineers 

Cable Advisory Commitee 7/26/23 

Capital Improvements Commitee 8/10/23 Rick Parker 

Climate Change Resiliency Commitee 8/9/23 Rick Parker 

Community Preserva�on Commitee 7/18/23 8/7/23 Wendy Reed 

Conserva�on Commission 7/19/23 8/7/23 Rick Parker 

Council on Aging 8/9/23 

Cultural Council 8/10/23 

Energy & Sustainability Commitee 8/9/23 Rick Parker 

Finance Commitee 7/12/23 9/5/23 Chris Wile 

Harbor Commitee 7/19/23 7/24/23 

Historic District Commission 8/9/23 

Historical Commission 8/9/23 

Investment Policy Commitee 7/19/23 8/21/23 Chris Wile 

Mill Pond Commitee 8/9/23 

Open Space Commitee 8/8/23 

Personnel Advisory Commitee - 7/24/23 

River Access Commitee ? 

Tree Commitee 8/8/23 

Whi�er School Commitee 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Elected BCC 
Board of Health 

Board of Library Trustees 

Board of Water Commissioners 

Parks and Rec Commission 

Planning Board 

O

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
111



Select Board Open Session Meeting July 17, 2023. Minutes approved XXXX 
Posted Agenda on July 13, 2023 at the Town’s Offices and the Town’s Official Website www.wnewbury.org 

Town of West Newbury 
Select Board 

Monday, July 17, 2023 @ 6:00pm   
381 Main Street, Town Office Building 

www.wnewbury.org  
Meeting Minutes 

Open Session: Chairwoman Reed opened the session at 6:04pm. 

Participation at the Meeting: 
• Rick Parker, Wendy Reed, Chris Wile- Select Board
• Angus Jennings- Town Manager
• Rob Phillips- Finance Committee

Announcements: 
No announcements were read aloud, but included on the Meeting Agenda. 

Regular Business 

A. Presentation regarding ongoing/active projects/initiatives, discussion of priorities- Angus Jennings, Town Manager
(See Select Board packet for Monday, July 17, 2023 for accompanying slideshow). Jennings used the opportunity of the
Select Board meeting to go over various priorities that could be followed up on at a future meeting. “Doing things right, not
cutting corners” was the main message of Jennings’ introduction, as the Town government tries to work in its decentralized
fashion on a backlog of projects with new items needing addressing piling up all the time. The presentation the Manager
provided covered how he proposed time management in a format that lumped priorities into three categories:
“unplanned/crisis”, “value added”, and “baseline services” based on his experiences implementing this sort of structure in
Westford, Massachusetts. Jennings reflected that West Newbury’s municipal employees were operating on robust, up-to-date
job descriptions. Despite this, he stated that based on evidence, some Town offices were stretched thin based on the amount
of work expected of them. Jennings unveiled the Project Management Matrix which laid out which projects which employees
were responsible for, what the category of the project was, what the timeline was, and other metrics, to provide an at-a-glance
reference for all Town Offices to consult.

Looking over the list of projects, Reed wondered what projects in the backlog over the last few years had been completed- 
had any progress been made? Jennings stated that such progress had occurred. The Project Matrix would enable Town
employees to be assigned to and find their priorities quicker, and to stay on target with them. Jennings reflected on how
working groups were functioning currently and his involvement in them, and later explained how the Matrix system would
work in practice. He reiterated his support for having a Select Board Member as a liaison to each Board, Committee, and
Commission.

Wile stated he hoped (for the Town Manager’s sake/sanity) that he would delegate to trusted members of his team more.
Parker and Wile discussed the value of having a sit-down group discussion to fully understand each of the projects being
considered for priority ranking, so as to better determine their opinion on the priority for each project. Jennings stated he felt
that collaboration on establishing priorities would be a good idea, and the group hashed out the efficacy of this method and
how long it might take to do in a one-day retreat. The Board determined that they would chip away at identifying the
priorities prior to a group meeting before Labor Day. No motion was made at this time.

Reed motioned to enter Executive Session. Parker seconded. The motion unanimously passed. (3 Yes, 0 No, 0 Abstain). The 
Board entered Executive Session. 

To access a video recording of the meeting, use the link below: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=poz7GYSZHo8 

P

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
112

http://www.wnewbury.org/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=poz7GYSZHo8


 

Select Board Open Session Meeting July 24, 2023.  Minutes approved XXXX 
Posted Agenda on July 20, 2023 at the Town’s Offices and the Town’s Official Website www.wnewbury.org 
 
 

 
Town of West Newbury 

Select Board 
Monday, July 24, 2023 @ 7:00pm   

381 Main Street, Town Office Building 
www.wnewbury.org  
Meeting Minutes 

 
Open Session: Chairwoman Reed opened the session at 7:06pm.  
 
Participation at the Meeting: 

• Wendy Reed, Chris Wile- Select Board 
• Rick Parker- Select Board, via Zoom 
• Angus Jennings- Town Manager 
• Jim Blatchford- Town Clerk 
• Michael Dwyer- West Newbury Fire and Police Chief 
• Rob Phillips- Finance Committee Representative 
• Fred Chanania, Tree Committee Representative 
• Ron Ross- EEDDVS Representative 
• Haley McCraven- Applicant for appointment to the Conservation Committee, via Zoom 
• Alejandra Chandler- Applicant for appointment to the Conservation Committee 
• Vanessa- Greenbelt Representative 
• Mark- Owner of 31 Dole Place land 

 
Announcements: 

• This meeting is being broadcast on local cable TV and recorded for rebroadcast on the local cable 
channels and on the internet. Meeting also accessible by remote participation; instructions below. 

• 2023 Summer Bandstand Concert Series – Thursdays at 6:30pm – list of performers located on Town 
website 

• Call for volunteers! FY24 positions on Boards/Commissions/Committees. See 
www.wnewbury.org/volunteer  

• Reminder to subscribe for emailed Town agendas/news/announcements at 
www.wnewbury.org/subscribe  

 
Regular Business 

A. Update regarding Eastern Essex District Department of Veterans’ Services – Ron Ross, West 
Newbury Representative 
(See Exhibit A). Ross announced that the Veterans’ Services Director Karen Tyler was leaving her post 
7/31/2023. He provided additional information on how the Services would be maintained and staffing 
changes in the near future until a replacement for Tyler would be brought on. Jennings stated that the 
Town Offices would promote the job listing when it was available. No motion was made at this time. 

B. Requests for appointment to Conservation Commission 
a. Haley McCraven 

(See Exhibit B.a.) McCraven presented her credentials and background to the Board, Manager, 
and Clerk, and why she was interested in participating in conservation work in West Newbury. 
Chris Wile stated he would endorse the appointment, but felt that she would be a good potential 
member of the Finance Committee, as well. Reed asked if McCraven had any issues before the 
Commission. 

b. Alejandra Chandler 
(See Exhibit B.b.) Chandler presented her credentials and background to the Board, Manager, 
and Clerk, and why she was interested in joining the Commission (largely stemming from her 
prior participation on the Conservation Committee for the Town of Merrimac). 
 
The Board asked McCraven if she would be open to joining the Finance Committee if not 
selected for Conservation Commission. McCraven asked for more details about the work to be 
done on the Committee, and Phillips and Wile provided further information. McCraven stated 
she wanted more information about the role before accepting any appointment to the Committee.  
Wile motioned to appoint Chandler to the Commission. Reed seconded. The motion 
unanimously passed (3 Yes, 0 No, 0 Abstain). 

C. Request for authorization to pursue Edward J. Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant to 
support costs to replace aging computers in police cruisers – Police Chief Dwyer  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
113

http://www.wnewbury.org/
http://www.wnewbury.org/volunteer
https://www.wnewbury.org/subscribe


 

Select Board Open Session Meeting July 24, 2023.  Minutes approved XXXX 
Posted Agenda on July 20, 2023 at the Town’s Offices and the Town’s Official Website www.wnewbury.org 
 
 

(See Exhibit C). Dwyer informed the Board that this tech upgrade grant would replace computers in all 
cruisers, to offset costs incurred by the Town of West Newbury in purchasing the items. Wile asked if 
the costs included software or other expenses, and Dwyer responded that the costs would include 
everything upfront from installation to software. Wile motioned to authorize pursuing the grant for 
the upgrade in conjunction with the Town Manager’s Office. Parker seconded. The motion 
unanimously passed. (3 Yes, 0 No, 0 Abstain). 

D. Request for authorization to pursue Office of Grants and Research Grant to support costs to 
purchase body cams – Police Chief Dwyer 
(See Exhibit D). Chief Dwyer explained the Department was hoping to partner with the Town 
Manager’s office to pursue both grants- for body cameras and technology upgrades. Dwyer stated the 
Department would also need to replace their Tasers, and it might be possible to get a package deal from 
the manufacturer of the cameras and the Tasers. Dwyer stated with regard to the infrastructure, they 
were examining the costs of local digital storage or cloud-based storage. Reed asked if the bodycams 
were mandated by law, and the Chief responded that “the [State] would like to get to that point” but it 
would stretch the Department’s resources. Not every officer would be equipped the cameras at any given 
time, but nonetheless Dwyer raised concerns about the storage of the videos. Parker asked how long the 
Police Department would be required to hold onto the data. Dwyer responded that the grant would 
require a plan to develop and manage a retention schedule, within the constraints of the law. Wile asked 
what the Town’s financial obligation for the cameras going forward would be, and Dwyer said that 
replacement costs and storage costs would need to be analyzed, and could not at that time offer Wile the 
exact number. Wile confirmed that the officer’s union would not be a major player in the usage and 
procurement of the cameras. The grant could be applied for but would require sign-off at Fall Town 
Meeting in order to raise the funds (for reimbursement from the grant). Parker reflected on the high cost 
of the cameras when this issue had previously been discussed some years back, and Dwyer said that the 
prices had come down to some degree and that they would be cross-shopping vendors just to be sure the 
Town was getting the best deal. Wile motioned to authorize pursuing the grant for the bodycams in 
conjunction with the Town Manager’s Office. Reed seconded. The motion unanimously passed. (3 
Yes, 0 No, 0 Abstain). 

E. Follow-up re EAB tree injection program – Fred Chanania, Tree Committee Chair 
The Town Manager offered a brief history of the program to date, stating that the company doing the 
work had charged far below what Town Meeting had authorized for the injections of the ash trees. Fred 
Chanania of the Tree Committee proposed using the balance of the funds to conduct monitoring of the 
efficacy. The follow-up assessment would take place in early October, according to Chanania, and it 
would determine which trees should receive additional injections next year with the balance of the Town 
Meeting funds, and which trees were a lost cause. The expense, according to Chanania, could possibly 
even be less than before, with the benefit of re-bidding the job, and much of the legwork already done in 
IDing the trees and having them tagged and mapped. The group debated if the continued activities 
would be outside of the scope of the Town Meeting article that brought in the funding, and whether it 
should be reintroduced at Town Meeting to largely make voters aware of the funding situation, with 
Reed feeling that it was and Chanania, Wile, and Jennings feeling that it might not be. No motion was 
made at this time. 

F. Request from Essex County Greenbelt for authorization to conduct fundraising activities and 
install temporary sign at Pipestave/Mill Pond in support of proposed Sawmill Brook land 
acquisition  
(See Exhibit F). In a two-fold request, the Greenbelt representative wanted to utilize heavily-trafficked 
Town-owned areas and events to raise awareness through information stations and signage to promote 
fundraising efforts for purchase of local land. The Board considered the temporary signage separate 
from the fundraising activities. Reed outlined the temporary sign guidelines to the representative, and 
asked what the signs would look like and where they would go specifically. The representative 
explained as best she could, and confirmed the process of getting approval for the signs. The Board 
tabled a decision on the signage to their August 7th meeting. With regard to fundraising activities and 
information, Reed was apprehensive about setting the precedent. Parker felt that the approval of this 
activity would benefit the Town, who were actively partnering with Greenbelt to conserve the land, and 
furthermore that in that case the use of Town space would be justified. He furthermore felt that it would 
not cause future problems with non-Town affiliated or commercial entities. The representative did not 
know where the stations would be set up, and suggested they would follow Town guidance on that front. 
Reed asked the representative to supply times and locations for the August 7th meeting. No motion was 
made at this time. 

G. Continued review of draft Elliot Fund program summary and loan application 
(See Exhibit G). The Board continued their previous discussion on the Fund, particularly with regard to 
the use of loans or grants with regard to disbursing the money. Wile suggested that it be at the Select 
Board’s discretion, and Parker agreed. The Board nailed down the age and residency requirements for 
applicants- Reed stated that the Housing Trust was using a three-year requirement for access to their 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
114



 

Select Board Open Session Meeting July 24, 2023.  Minutes approved XXXX 
Posted Agenda on July 20, 2023 at the Town’s Offices and the Town’s Official Website www.wnewbury.org 
 
 

small grant program. Parker preferred a year as the requirement. It was determined that the applicant 
was to be 18 years old, and a resident of at least one year. The discussion ranged through several topics, 
including on what language might be used with regard to the flexibility of the loans. The Board tabled 
this Item to a future meeting. 

H. Select Board review of Committees’ charge / function 
a. Personnel Advisory Committee  

(See Exhibit H.a.). Jennings provided a history of the Committee to the Board including his 
involvement therein. He felt that the Select Board served the function of the Committee under 
the Town Manager form of government, perhaps outmoding the Committee. Jennings thought it 
would be good to have a separate body to hear grievances- but suggested that an overhaul of the 
1999 Personnel Bylaw should be undertaken in the near future to better reflect the Town 
Manager form of government. The group agreed to bring the matter before Town Meeting to nail 
down the purpose and future of the Committee. No motion was made at this time. 

b. Harbor Committee 
(See Exhibit H.b.) Reed pointed out that the Committee’s functions were mainly devoted to the 
role of the Harbormaster. Jennings provided insight on the history of the Committee, the reasons 
for its establishment, after Reed read out the scope of the Committee. Jennings said over his 
tenure that the Committee had only met eight or nine times, much of it focusing on mooring 
fields, but other than a feasibility study for this, nothing had been accomplished. Other activities 
the Committee had looked into was stiffening enforcement of laws governing use of waterways. 
The group also discussed utilizing the Harbormaster in Salisbury for West Newbury enforcement 
duties. Like with the Personnel Advisory Committee, the Board determined that the functions 
and activities of the Harbor Committee should be fleshed out at Town Meeting, but vowed to 
explore using the Salisbury Harbormaster for enforcement activities. No motion was made at 
this time. 

I. Set warrant closing date for Special Town Meeting to be held on October 23, 2023 
Parker motioned that the last day to submit STM Articles would be at close of business, Thursday, 
August 31st, 2023. Wile seconded. The motion unanimously passed. (3 Yes, 0 No, 0 Abstain). 
 

Town Manager Updates 
J. Progress update regarding Tata & Howard water hydraulic plan/capital plan/rate study; and 

Weston & Sampson engineering study of 31 Dole Place 
Jennings recapped what he told the Select Board at their most recent prior meeting regarding the success 
of the site visit with Weston and Sampson, and what next steps were going to be. Things were “off to a 
good start”, in Jennings’ words. Tata and Howard have yet to submit a rate study to the Town despite its 
criticality to the project and the ability to predict future financial loads on the town. Reed pointed out 
that this delay was breach of contract. Jennings stated he wasn’t sure how the Water Commission felt 
about the delays, but that he has repeatedly followed up with the Water Commissioners to determine a 
timeline. There have been extenuating factors contributing to the delays, such as the death of a Tata and 
Howard engineer, but the Board discussed how best to reiterate in firm terms their desire for the delivery 
of the study. The group discussed the potential impacts of not knowing the budgetary needs of the Water 
Department and Commissioners both last year and potentially in the future. Wile suggested that it might 
be time to terminate the contract with Tata and Howard. Reed said she would draft a memo to send to 
the contractors in conjunction with the Commissioners. The owner of the land at 31 Dole Place, sitting 
in at the meeting, chimed in to discredit a damning article in the Daily News about the history of the 
Dole Place negotiations, and a spirited back and forth between Board and owner took place on the 
negotiations and the process of purchase as a whole, the owner feeling that he was being lowballed by 
the Town’s offers to date. No motion was made at this time. 

K. Ash Street updates  
Jennings updated the Board on the search for any documentation related to Ash Street paving and 
conservation efforts. Initial discussions with the Dept. of Fish and Wildlife had yielded next steps, 
Jennings stating that an inventory of Blandings turtles would be undertaken each week to appraise the 
situation (taking into account other animal fatalities as well). Other meetings with State agencies both 
on- and off-site were scheduled to continue determining the parameters the Town has to operate within. 
The DPW and WNPD are in the process of determining appropriate enhanced signage. No motion was 
made at this time. 

L. Update regarding MassWorks grant for Middle Street Bridge  
(See Exhibit L). The Town has not received an extension of the MassWorks Grant previously offered to 
West Newbury. Wile expressed his frustration with the bridge replacement and its prohibitive expense- 
urging the Town to look into alternative arrangements (repair v. replacement). No motion was made at 
this time. 

M. Upcoming Planning Board meeting (Aug. 15th) regarding MBTA Communities planning process 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
115



 

Select Board Open Session Meeting July 24, 2023.  Minutes approved XXXX 
Posted Agenda on July 20, 2023 at the Town’s Offices and the Town’s Official Website www.wnewbury.org 
 
 

(See Exhibit M). Jennings said that this August 15th meeting would be a “big meeting” with conceptual 
renderings of West Newbury housing options to satisfy the MBTA Communities requirements being 
revealed to the public. 

N. Work with Town Planner and DPW Projects Manager toward planning fall “land use summit”  
Jennings clarified the focus of the summit, possibly to take place in early October, to aggregate the 
leadership of ongoing development projects in West Newbury (113 improvements, MBTA 
Communities, etc.) and have community discussion and further public understanding of ongoing 
projects. No motion was made at this time. 

O. Work with MVPC regarding Rte. 113 Corridor Planning 
Jennings said that planners from MVPC had met with the Town to see what the Town was doing with 
regard with the 113 Corridor- with focus on specific areas pedestrian safety concern. MVPC stated they 
would reach out to MassDOT regarding the need for a crosswalk in front of the school buildings versus 
farther up the road where it is presently. No motion was made at this time. 

P. Review of draft West Newbury Welcome Packet 
(See Exhibit P). The Board provided feedback on the Packet. The Item was tabled for future 
discussion. 

Q. Update on work to prepare investment manager RFP 
Jennings said that the Investment Policy Committee would be meeting August 10th as local government 
moves toward a new investment management service. No motion was made at this time. 

R. Updates on other ongoing/active projects/initiatives 
No motion was made at this time. 

S. Follow up meeting assignment; placing items for future agendas  
Reed stated that future meetings would include discussion of the goals and priorities matrix developed 
by the Town Manager for final approval for a future meeting. No motion was made at this time. 

 
Reed motioned to adjourn the session. Wile seconded. The motion unanimously passed. (3 Yes, 0 No, 0 
Abstain). The session adjourned at 9:46pm. 
 
 
To access a video recording of the meeting, use the link below: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2sQu7Z5MeNU 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
116

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2sQu7Z5MeNU


1

Town Manager

From: Kevin Dandrade <KDandrade@theengineeringcorp.com>
Sent: Friday, August 11, 2023 1:51 PM
To: DPW Projects
Cc: Town Manager; Sam Gregorio; Rebecca Dean
Subject: Route 113 - Draft Graphics & Data

Good a ernoon, Chris ne. 

Please use the link below to obtain the ini al base plan graphics that we planned to use to solicit input from the public 
on the current issues and needs.  We compiled the crash data under the first (grant) contract as the “scope trade” since 
we knew the ming of the first public outreach mee ng was not going to fit in that meline. 

Rt 113 Maps-Data 

I will be away next week.  Please let us know if you have any ques ons with a reply-to-all. 

Thank you. 

-Kev

Kevin R. Dandrade, P.E., PTOE, Principal 
T 978.794.1792 
M 508.868.5104 
kdandrade@theengineeringcorp.com 

Q

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
117



Table 1 – Crash Data Summary 
Parameter Main Street  Percent of 

Total 

Crash Year 

2017 32 23% 
2018 23 17% 

2019 20 15% 

2020 24 17% 

2021 22 16% 

2022 17 12% 

TOTAL 138 100% 
Average Annual Crashes 23.0  

Manner of 
Crash 

Angle 10 7% 
Rear-end 35 25% 

Single Vehicle 62 45% 

Sideswipe 15 11% 

Head-on 4 3% 

Pedestrian / Cyclist 3 2% 

Other / Not Reported 9 7% 

TOTAL 138 100% 

Road 
Surface 

Conditions 

Dry 115 83% 
Wet 12 9% 

Snow / Ice 6 4% 

Other / Unknown 5 4% 

TOTAL 138 100% 

Injury 
Status 
(Crash 

Severity) 

Property Damage 112 81% 
Non-Fatal Injury 24 17% 

Fatal Injury 1 1% 
Not Reported 1 1% 

TOTAL 138 100% 

Day of 
Week 

Monday-Friday 111 80% 
Saturday-Sunday 27 20% 

TOTAL 138 100% 

Time of Day 

6:00AM-9:00AM 11 8% 
9:00AM-3:00PM 46 33% 
3:00PM-6:00PM 42 31% 
6:00PM-6:00AM 39 28% 

TOTAL 138 100% 
 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
118



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
119



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
120



January 23, 2024 Whi�er Tech 2 ½ Override Elec�on 

In September, official numbers will be published on the cost of the project and what the impact on each 
community will be. 

Tenta�ve elec�on date and �me: January 23, 2024, 11am-7pm. All Towns and Ci�es will vote at the same 
�mes on the same day. 

Whi�er expects low turnout with limited poll-workers needed. They will provide the ballot, the vo�ng 
machine programming, and will publish no�ce in the newspapers, but we must provide the materials for 
the ballots, and post no�ce of the elec�on on the Clerk’s no�ceboard. Whi�er has legal control over the 
opera�on of this elec�on, but seems reasonably flexible to accommodate the needs of Town Clerks in 
the conduct of the elec�on. 

The total number of votes cast across each of the 11 communi�es will determine whether the ballot 
ques�on will pass and will not hinge on the way each community votes. 

There will be no vote-by-mail, no early vo�ng, only absentee vo�ng. Whi�er says they will “take under 
considera�on” funding a no�ce to alert voters to the special condi�ons of this elec�on and how 
individuals must vote. 

Kara Kosmes is the point person with the School District for all ques�ons related to this process, and will 
be the handler of all bills submited for reimbursement costs from Town Accountant. No cap on 
reimbursement refund. 

District encourages consul�ng with Town Counsel as needed to establish regula�ons, answer any 
localized ques�ons. 

The next elec�on mee�ng will take place October 19, 2023 at 9am. 

S

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
121



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
122



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
123



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
124



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
125



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
126



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
127



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
128



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
129



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
130



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
131



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
132



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
133



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
134



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
135



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
136



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
137



To: The Environmental Monitor 

From: Town of West Newbury

Date: August 15, 2023 

Re: Notification of filing a Notice of Intent (NOI), “Cherry Hill Conservation Land” 

Parcels: R17-6E, R17-6D, R17-6F; “Riverbend & Tupelo Trails” Parcel R23-23 and town 

right-of-way along abandoned portion of River Road; & “Middle Street / Indian Hill 

Street Field” Parcel: R16-12, West Newbury, MA.      

Anticipated date of submission: NOI was submitted to MA DEP on 7/13/2023, 

amendment to NOI for ecological restoration limited project submission anticipated 

8/15/2023 

The proposed project is seeking approval to restore bordering vegetated wetland and riverfront 

area by invasive species removal in limited areas at 3 town owned properties in West Newbury, 

MA. This proposed project involves ecological restoration work that will improve the function and 

value of the resource areas. Following the removal and management of the invasive plant 

species, the area will be monitored by town staff and volunteers for revegetation. It is 

anticipated the seedbank is robust enough to support revelation of native species with volunteer 

efforts to pull emergent invasive plant species. The proposed project aims to protect the interests 

of the Wetlands Protection Act by improving the wetland resource areas which in turn will 

improve the habitat value. 

Reviewing Conservation Commission(s): 

West Newbury Conservation Commission 

Town Hall 

381 Main Street 

West Newbury, MA 01985 

Copies of the NOI may be examined or acquired from the Conservation Commission, by 

contacting the Conservation Agent, Michelle Greene, at conservation@wnewbury.org or 978-

891-0238.

See Conservation Commission website for the meeting schedule for exact dates and agendas. 

T

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
138

mailto:conservation@wnewbury.org


 

wpaform3.doc • rev. 6/18/2020 Page 1 of 9 

 

4 

 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection  
Bureau of Resource Protection - Wetlands 

WPA Form 3 – Notice of Intent 
Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act M.G.L. c. 131, §40  

Provided by MassDEP: 

  
MassDEP File Number 

 
Document Transaction Number 

West Newbury 
City/Town 

Important: 
When filling out 
forms on the 
computer, use 
only the tab key 
to move your 
cursor - do not 
use the return 
key. 

 
 
 
Note:  
Before 
completing this 
form consult  
your local 
Conservation 
Commission 
regarding any 
municipal bylaw 
or ordinance. 

A. General Information 

1. Project Location (Note: electronic filers will click on button to locate project site): 

See Attachment 1 
a. Street Address  

West Newbury 
b. City/Town 

01985 
c. Zip Code 

Latitude and Longitude: 
      
d. Latitude 

      
e. Longitude 

      
f. Assessors Map/Plat Number   

      
g. Parcel /Lot Number 

2.  Applicant: 

Angus  
a. First Name 

Jennings 
b. Last Name 

Town of West Newbury 
c. Organization 

381 Main Street 
d. Street Address 

West Newbury 
e. City/Town 

 MA 
f. State 

    

01985 
g. Zip Code 

 978-363-1100 x111 
h. Phone Number 

      
i. Fax Number 

 townmanager@wnewbury.org 
j. Email Address 

3. Property owner (required if different from applicant):   Check if more than one owner 

      
a. First Name 

      
b. Last Name 

 See Attachment 1 
c. Organization 

 
381 Main Street 
d. Street Address 

  West Newbury 
e. City/Town 

 MA 
f. State 

    

01985 
g. Zip Code 

        
h. Phone Number 

      
i. Fax Number 

       
j. Email address 

 
4.  Representative (if any): 

 N/A 
a. First Name 

      
b. Last Name 

       
c. Company 

       
d. Street Address 

       
e. City/Town 

  

      
f. State 

        
g. Zip Code 

        
h. Phone Number 

      
i. Fax Number 

      
j. Email address 

 
  

5.  Total WPA Fee Paid (from NOI Wetland Fee Transmittal Form): 

 Fee exempt - municipality  
a. Total Fee Paid 

0 
b. State Fee Paid 

0 
c. City/Town Fee Paid 

  
 
 

 

  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
139



 

wpaform3.doc • rev. 6/18/2020 Page 2 of 9 

 

4 

 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection  
Bureau of Resource Protection - Wetlands 

WPA Form 3 – Notice of Intent 
Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act M.G.L. c. 131, §40  

Provided by MassDEP: 

  
MassDEP File Number 

 
Document Transaction Number 

West Newbury 
City/Town 

 A.  General Information (continued) 

 
6. General Project Description:  

 Invasive plant removal through mechanical and chemical methods. See attached proposal for 
narrative and timeline for work at each parcel.  
  

 
7a. Project Type Checklist:  (Limited Project Types see Section A. 7b.) 

  1.  Single Family Home  2.  Residential Subdivision 

  3.  Commercial/Industrial  4.  Dock/Pier 

  5.    Utilities 6.    Coastal engineering Structure 

  7.  Agriculture (e.g., cranberries, forestry)  8.  Transportation 

  9.  Other  

 
7b. Is any portion of the proposed activity eligible to be treated as a limited project (including Ecological 

Restoration Limited Project) subject to 310 CMR 10.24 (coastal) or 310 CMR 10.53 (inland)? 

 
 1.   Yes  No 

If yes, describe which limited project applies to this project. (See 310 CMR 
10.24 and 10.53 for a complete list and description of limited project types) 

  310 CMR 10.53 (4)(e)(5) invasive species management & the thinning or planting of vegetation to 
improve habitat value 

2. Limited Project Type  
 If the proposed activity is eligible to be treated as an Ecological Restoration Limited Project (310 

CMR10.24(8), 310 CMR 10.53(4)), complete and attach Appendix A: Ecological Restoration Limited 
Project Checklist and Signed Certification.  

 
8. Property recorded at the Registry of Deeds for: 

 See Attachment 1  
a. County 

      
b. Certificate # (if registered land) 

       
c. Book 

      
d. Page Number 

 B. Buffer Zone & Resource Area Impacts (temporary & permanent) 

 
1.   Buffer Zone Only – Check if the project is located only in the Buffer Zone of a Bordering   
  Vegetated Wetland, Inland Bank, or Coastal Resource Area. 

 
2.  Inland Resource Areas (see 310 CMR 10.54-10.58; if not applicable, go to Section B.3,   
  Coastal Resource Areas). 

 Check all that apply below. Attach narrative and any supporting documentation describing how the 
project will meet all performance standards for each of the resource areas altered, including 
standards requiring consideration of alternative project design or location.  

  

  

  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
140



 

wpaform3.doc • rev. 6/18/2020 Page 3 of 9 

 

4 

 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection  
Bureau of Resource Protection - Wetlands 

WPA Form 3 – Notice of Intent 
Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act M.G.L. c. 131, §40  

Provided by MassDEP: 

  
MassDEP File Number 

 
Document Transaction Number 

West Newbury 
City/Town 

 B. Buffer Zone & Resource Area Impacts (temporary & permanent) (cont’d) 

For all projects 
affecting other 
Resource Areas, 
please attach a 
narrative 
explaining how 
the resource 
area was 
delineated. 

Resource Area Size of Proposed Alteration Proposed Replacement (if any) 

a.   Bank 
      
1. linear feet 

      
2. linear feet 

b.  Bordering Vegetated 
  Wetland 

~14,000 (temp for phrag 
mgmnt @ Cherry Hill) 
1. square feet 

0 
2. square feet 

c.  Land Under 
 Waterbodies and 
 Waterways 

      
1. square feet 

      
2. square feet 

      
3. cubic yards dredged 

 

Resource Area Size of Proposed Alteration Proposed Replacement (if any) 

d.  Bordering Land 
 Subject to Flooding 

      
1. square feet 

      
2. square feet 

  
      
3. cubic feet of flood storage lost 

      
4. cubic feet replaced 

 
e.  Isolated Land   
  Subject to Flooding 

      
1. square feet 

 

  
      
2. cubic feet of flood storage lost 

      
3. cubic feet replaced 

 f.   Riverfront Area 
Merrimack River and Indian River - both inland  
1. Name of Waterway (if available)  - specify coastal or inland 

 
  2.  Width of Riverfront Area (check one): 

 
   25 ft. - Designated Densely Developed Areas only 
  

  100 ft. - New agricultural projects only 
 

   200 ft. - All other projects 

 

 

 
  3. Total area of Riverfront Area on the site of the proposed project:  

 ~ 520,000 
square feet 

 
 4. Proposed alteration of the Riverfront Area:  

 ~242,000 Temporary 
a. total square feet  

~242,000 Temporary 
b. square feet within 100 ft. 

0 
c. square feet between 100 ft. and 200 ft. 

 
 5. Has an alternatives analysis been done and is it attached to this NOI?     Yes   No 

 
 6. Was the lot where the activity is proposed created prior to August 1, 1996?     Yes   No 

 
3.  Coastal Resource Areas: (See 310 CMR 10.25-10.35)  

 
Note: for coastal riverfront areas, please complete Section B.2.f. above. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
141



 

wpaform3.doc • rev. 6/18/2020 Page 4 of 9 

 

4 

 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection  
Bureau of Resource Protection - Wetlands 

WPA Form 3 – Notice of Intent 
Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act M.G.L. c. 131, §40  

Provided by MassDEP: 

  
MassDEP File Number 

 
Document Transaction Number 

West Newbury 
City/Town 

 B. Buffer Zone & Resource Area Impacts (temporary & permanent) (cont’d) 

 
Check all that apply below.  Attach narrative and supporting documentation describing how the 
project will meet all performance standards for each of the resource areas altered, including 
standards requiring consideration of alternative project design or location.  

 

Online Users: 
Include your 
document 
transaction 
number 
(provided on your 
receipt page) 
with all 
supplementary 
information you 
submit to the 
Department. 

Resource Area Size of Proposed Alteration Proposed Replacement (if any) 

a.  Designated Port Areas  Indicate size under Land Under the Ocean, below 

b.  Land Under the Ocean 
      
1. square feet 

 

 
      
2. cubic yards dredged 

 

c.  Barrier Beach Indicate size under Coastal Beaches and/or Coastal Dunes below 

d.  Coastal Beaches 
      
1. square feet 

      
2. cubic yards beach nourishment 

 
e.  Coastal Dunes 

      
1. square feet 

      
2. cubic yards dune nourishment 

 
 Size of Proposed Alteration Proposed Replacement (if any) 

 
f.   Coastal Banks 

      
1. linear feet 

 

 g.  Rocky Intertidal   
  Shores 

      
1. square feet 

 

 
h.  Salt Marshes 

      
1. square feet 

      
2. sq ft restoration, rehab., creation 

 i.   Land Under Salt  
  Ponds 

      
1. square feet 

 

  
      
2. cubic yards dredged 

 

 
j.   Land Containing  
  Shellfish 

      
1. square feet 

 

  k.  Fish Runs Indicate size under Coastal Banks, inland Bank, Land Under the 
Ocean, and/or inland Land Under Waterbodies and Waterways, 
above    

  
      
1. cubic yards dredged 

 

 
 l.  Land Subject to   

   Coastal Storm Flowage 

      
1. square feet 

 

 
4.  Restoration/Enhancement 

If the project is for the purpose of restoring or enhancing a wetland resource area in addition to the 
square footage that has been entered in Section B.2.b or B.3.h above, please enter the additional 
amount here. 

 

 
      
a. square feet of BVW 

      
b. square feet of Salt Marsh 

 
5.  Project Involves Stream Crossings 

       
a. number of new stream crossings 

      
b. number of replacement stream crossings 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
142



 

wpaform3.doc • rev. 6/18/2020 Page 5 of 9 

 

4 

 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection  
Bureau of Resource Protection - Wetlands 

WPA Form 3 – Notice of Intent 
Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act M.G.L. c. 131, §40  

Provided by MassDEP: 

  
MassDEP File Number 

 
Document Transaction Number 

West Newbury 
City/Town 

 C. Other Applicable Standards and Requirements 

 
 This is a proposal for an Ecological Restoration Limited Project. Skip Section C and 
complete Appendix A: Ecological Restoration Limited Project Checklists – Required Actions 
(310 CMR 10.11). 

 

 
Streamlined Massachusetts Endangered Species Act/Wetlands Protection Act Review 

 
1. Is any portion of the proposed project located in Estimated Habitat of Rare Wildlife as indicated on 

the most recent Estimated Habitat Map of State-Listed Rare Wetland Wildlife published by the 
Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program (NHESP)? To view habitat maps, see the 
Massachusetts Natural Heritage Atlas or go to 
http://maps.massgis.state.ma.us/PRI_EST_HAB/viewer.htm.  

 

 

 
a.   Yes   No 

 If yes, include proof of mailing or hand delivery of NOI to: 
   
  Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program 
  Division of Fisheries and Wildlife 
               1 Rabbit Hill Road 
               Westborough, MA 01581 

Phone: (508) 389-6360 

 
 

 
 

 08/01/2021 
b. Date of map 

 
 

 

 If yes, the project is also subject to Massachusetts Endangered Species Act (MESA) review (321 
CMR 10.18). To qualify for a streamlined, 30-day, MESA/Wetlands Protection Act review, please 
complete Section C.1.c, and include requested materials with this Notice of Intent (NOI); OR 
complete Section C.2.f, if applicable. If MESA supplemental information is not included with the NOI, 
by completing Section 1 of this form, the NHESP will require a separate MESA filing which may take 
up to 90 days to review (unless noted exceptions in Section 2 apply, see below). 

 

 

 
 c.  Submit Supplemental Information for Endangered Species Review  

 
  1.   Percentage/acreage of property to be altered:  

 
   (a) within wetland Resource Area 

~242,000 sq ft of temporary impacts in Riverfront 
area, no permanent alteration proposed 
percentage/acreage  

   (b) outside Resource Area 
0 
percentage/acreage 

 
  2.   Assessor’s Map or right-of-way plan of site 

 
2.  Project plans for entire project site, including wetland resource areas and areas outside of 

wetlands jurisdiction, showing existing and proposed conditions, existing and proposed 

tree/vegetation clearing line, and clearly demarcated limits of work    
 

 (a)    Project description (including description of impacts outside of wetland resource area & 
 buffer zone) 

 
(b)    Photographs representative of the site 

 
 Some projects not in Estimated Habitat may be located in Priority Habitat, and require NHESP review (see https://www.mass.gov/ma-

endangered-species-act-mesa-regulatory-review). 
Priority Habitat includes habitat for state-listed plants and strictly upland species not protected by the Wetlands Protection Act. 
 MESA projects may not be segmented (321 CMR 10.16). The applicant must disclose full development plans even if such plans are 

not required as part of the Notice of Intent process. 
 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
143

http://maps.massgis.state.ma.us/PRI_EST_HAB/viewer.htm
https://www.mass.gov/ma-endangered-species-act-mesa-regulatory-review
https://www.mass.gov/ma-endangered-species-act-mesa-regulatory-review


 

wpaform3.doc • rev. 6/18/2020 Page 6 of 9 

 

4 

 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection  
Bureau of Resource Protection - Wetlands 

WPA Form 3 – Notice of Intent 
Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act M.G.L. c. 131, §40  

Provided by MassDEP: 

  
MassDEP File Number 

 
Document Transaction Number 

West Newbury 
City/Town 

 C. Other Applicable Standards and Requirements (cont’d) 

 

(c)   MESA filing fee (fee information available at https://www.mass.gov/how-to/how-to-file-for-
a-mesa-project-review). 
Make check payable to “Commonwealth of Massachusetts - NHESP” and mail to NHESP at 
above address 

 

 

 
  Projects altering 10 or more acres of land, also submit: 

 
 (d)  Vegetation cover type map of site 

 
 (e)   Project plans showing Priority & Estimated Habitat boundaries 

 
 (f)  OR Check One of the Following 

 
1.    Project is exempt from MESA review.   

Attach applicant letter indicating which MESA exemption applies. (See 321 CMR 10.14, 
https://www.mass.gov/service-details/exemptions-from-review-for-projectsactivities-in-
priority-habitat; the NOI must still be sent to NHESP if the project is within estimated 
habitat pursuant to 310 CMR 10.37 and 10.59.)         

 

 

 
 2.    Separate MESA review ongoing.   

      
a. NHESP Tracking # 

      
b. Date submitted to NHESP 

 
3.  Separate MESA review completed.  

   Include copy of NHESP “no Take” determination or valid Conservation & Management 
   Permit with approved plan. 

 

 3. For coastal projects only, is any portion of the proposed project located below the mean high water 
 line or in a fish run? 

 
 a.   Not applicable – project is in inland resource area only   b.   Yes  No 

 
If yes, include proof of mailing, hand delivery, or electronic delivery of NOI to either: 

 South Shore - Cohasset to Rhode Island border, and 
the Cape & Islands: 

 
Division of Marine Fisheries -  
Southeast Marine Fisheries Station 
Attn: Environmental Reviewer 
836 South Rodney French Blvd. 
New Bedford, MA  02744 

Email: dmf.envreview-south@mass.gov  

North Shore - Hull to New Hampshire border: 

 
 
Division of Marine Fisheries -  
North Shore Office 

Attn: Environmental Reviewer 
30 Emerson Avenue 

Gloucester, MA 01930 

Email:  dmf.envreview-north@mass.gov  

 

 

 

 Also if yes, the project may require a Chapter 91 license. For coastal towns in the Northeast Region, 
please contact MassDEP’s Boston Office. For coastal towns in the Southeast Region, please contact 
MassDEP’s Southeast Regional Office.   

  c.  Is this an aquaculture project?     d.   Yes  No 

 
 If yes, include a copy of the Division of Marine Fisheries Certification Letter (M.G.L. c. 130, § 57). 
 
 

  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
144

https://www.mass.gov/how-to/how-to-file-for-a-mesa-project-review
https://www.mass.gov/how-to/how-to-file-for-a-mesa-project-review
https://www.mass.gov/service-details/exemptions-from-review-for-projectsactivities-in-priority-habitat
https://www.mass.gov/service-details/exemptions-from-review-for-projectsactivities-in-priority-habitat
mailto:dmf.envreview-south@mass.gov
mailto:dmf.envreview-north@mass.gov


 

wpaform3.doc • rev. 6/18/2020 Page 7 of 9 

 

4 

 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection  
Bureau of Resource Protection - Wetlands 

WPA Form 3 – Notice of Intent 
Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act M.G.L. c. 131, §40  

Provided by MassDEP: 

  
MassDEP File Number 

 
Document Transaction Number 

West Newbury 
City/Town 

 C. Other Applicable Standards and Requirements (cont’d) 

Online Users: 
Include your 
document 
transaction 
number 
(provided on your 
receipt page) 
with all 
supplementary 
information you 
submit to the 
Department. 

4. Is any portion of the proposed project within an Area of Critical Environmental Concern (ACEC)? 

a.   Yes  No 
If yes, provide name of ACEC (see instructions to WPA Form 3 or MassDEP 
Website for ACEC locations). Note: electronic filers click on Website. 

       
b. ACEC 

5. Is any portion of the proposed project within an area designated as an Outstanding Resource Water 
 (ORW) as designated in the Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standards, 314 CMR 4.00? 

 a.   Yes  No 

6. Is any portion of the site subject to a Wetlands Restriction Order under the Inland Wetlands 
 Restriction Act (M.G.L. c. 131, § 40A) or the Coastal Wetlands Restriction Act (M.G.L. c. 130, § 105)? 

a.   Yes  No 

 7. Is this project subject to provisions of the MassDEP Stormwater Management Standards? 

 
a.  Yes. Attach a copy of the Stormwater Report as required by the Stormwater Management 
  Standards per 310 CMR 10.05(6)(k)-(q) and check if: 

 
1.  Applying for Low Impact Development (LID) site design credits (as described in   
  Stormwater  Management Handbook Vol. 2, Chapter 3) 

 2.  A portion of the site constitutes redevelopment 

  3.  Proprietary BMPs are included in the Stormwater Management System. 

 b.  No. Check why the project is exempt: 

 1.  Single-family house 

 2.  Emergency road repair 

 
3.  Small Residential Subdivision (less than or equal to 4 single-family houses or less than 
  or equal to 4 units in multi-family housing project) with no discharge to Critical Areas. 

 D.  Additional Information 

  This is a proposal for an Ecological Restoration Limited Project. Skip Section D and complete 
Appendix A: Ecological Restoration Notice of Intent – Minimum Required Documents (310 CMR 
10.12).  

  Applicants must include the following with this Notice of Intent (NOI). See instructions for details. 

 
Online Users: Attach the document transaction number (provided on your receipt page) for any of 
the following information you submit to the Department.  

 1.  USGS or other map of the area (along with a narrative description, if necessary) containing 
sufficient information for the Conservation Commission and the Department to locate the site. 
(Electronic filers may omit this item.)  

 2.  Plans identifying the location of proposed activities (including activities proposed to serve as 
a Bordering Vegetated Wetland [BVW] replication area or other mitigating measure) relative 
to the boundaries of each affected resource area.  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
145



wpaform3.doc • rev. 6/18/2020 Page 8 of 9 

4 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection 
Bureau of Resource Protection - Wetlands 

WPA Form 3 – Notice of Intent 
Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act M.G.L. c. 131, §40 

Provided by MassDEP: 

MassDEP File Number 

Document Transaction Number 

West Newbury 
City/Town 

D. Additional Information (cont’d)

3. Identify the method for BVW and other resource area boundary delineations (MassDEP BVW 
Field Data Form(s), Determination of Applicability, Order of Resource Area Delineation, etc.), 

and attach documentation of the methodology. 

4. List the titles and dates for all plans and other materials submitted with this NOI. 

a. Plan Title

b. Prepared By c. Signed and Stamped by

d. Final Revision Date e. Scale

USGS Maps, Aerial Maps of parcels 
f. Additional Plan or Document Title g. Date

5. If there is more than one property owner, please attach a list of these property owners not 
listed on this form. 

6. Attach proof of mailing for Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program, if needed. 

7. Attach proof of mailing for Massachusetts Division of Marine Fisheries, if needed. 

8. Attach NOI Wetland Fee Transmittal Form  

9. Attach Stormwater Report, if needed.  

E. Fees

1. Fee Exempt: No filing fee shall be assessed for projects of any city, town, county, or district 
of the Commonwealth, federally recognized Indian tribe housing authority, municipal housing 
authority, or the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority.  

Applicants must submit the following information (in addition to pages 1 and 2 of the NOI Wetland 
Fee Transmittal Form) to confirm fee payment:  

2. Municipal Check Number 3. Check date

4. State Check Number 5. Check date

6. Payor name on check: First Name 7. Payor name on check: Last Name

8/15/2023

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
146



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
147



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
148



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
149



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
150



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
151



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
152



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
153



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
154



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
155



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
156



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
157



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
158



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
159



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
160



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
161



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
162



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
163



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
164



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
165



KEY:

Property lines of town 
owned parcels

Approximate extent of 
BVW on town land (based 
on field observation and 
GIS review)

Approximate extent of 
phragmites population to 
be managed. The 
phragmites in this area is 
a dense population.

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
166



KEY:

Property lines of town 
owned parcels

Approximate extent of 
BVW on town land (based 
on field observation and 
GIS review)

Approximate extent of 
phragmites population to 
be managed. The 
phragmites population 
here is sparse growing in 
ruts that hold water 
created through years of 
agricultural use. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
167



KEY:

Approximate extent 
of BVW on town land 
(based on field 
observation and GIS 
review)

Area of woody 
invasive plant 
management. The 
management area is 
limited to within 5-10’ 
of the town’s 
Riverbend and Tupelo 
Trails

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
168



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
169



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
170



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
171



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
172



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
173



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
174



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
175



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
176



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
177



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
178



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
179



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
180



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
181



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
182



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
183



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
184



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
185



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
186



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
187



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
188



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
189



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
190



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
191



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
192



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
193



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
194



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
195



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
196



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
197



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
198



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
199



August 03, 2023

Town of West Newbury
381 Main Street
West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985

W. Newbury Conservation Commission
381 Main St
West Newbury, MA 01985

RE:        Applicant:                        Town of West Newbury
              Project Location:            Cherry Hill Conservation Land, Riverbend and Tupelo Trail, Middle Street/Indian 
Hill Street Field
              Project Description:       Invasive plant control
              DEP Wetlands File No.:  -
NHESP File No.:               23-8414

Dear Commissioners and Applicant:

The Natural Heritage & Endangered Species Program of the Massachusetts Division of Fisheries & Wildlife (the 
“Division”) received a Notice of Intent and a project narrative for Invasive Plant Control in compliance with the 
rare wildlife species section of the Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act Regulations (310 CMR  10.58(4)(b), 
 10.59).  The Project proposes to manage invasive species using manual, mechanical and chemical means at 
multiple properties in West Newbury.
 
The Division has determined that this Project, as currently proposed, will occur within the actual habitat of the 
following species:

Scientific Name Common Name Taxonomic Group State Status

EndangeredFishShortnose SturgeonAcipenser brevirostrum

EndangeredFishAtlantic SturgeonAcipenser oxyrinchus

EndangeredPlantEaton's Beggar-ticksBidens eatonii

EndangeredPlantParker's PipewortEriocaulon parkeri

Special ConcernSnailNew England SiltsnailFloridobia winkleyi

EndangeredPlantEstuary ArrowheadSagittaria montevidensis ssp. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
200



NHESP No. 23-8414 Page 2 of 4August 03, 2023 Issued

spongiosa

State-listed species and their habitats are protected in accordance with the MESA and state-listed rare wetland 
wildlife habitat is protected pursuant to the rare wildlife provisions of the WPA. In addition, the two fishes are 
also listed as Endangered pursuant to the federal Endangered Species Act of 1973 and its implementing 
regulations (16 USCA§§1531-1544, 50 CFR§17 & 402) administered by the United States Fish and Wildlife 
Service. 
 
Wetlands Protection Act (WPA)
Based on a review of the information that was provided and the information that is currently contained in our 
database, the Division has determined that this project, as currently proposed, will not adversely affect the 
actual Resource Area Habitat of state-protected rare wildlife species. Therefore, it is our opinion that this 
project meets the state-listed species performance standard for the issuance of an Order of Conditions.

Please note that this determination addresses only the matter of rare wildlife habitat and does not pertain to 
other wildlife habitat issues that may be pertinent to the proposed project.

Massachusetts Endangered Species Act (MESA)
The MESA is administered by the Division, and prohibits the Take of state-listed species. The Take of 
state-listed species is defined as “in reference to animals…harm…kill…disrupt the nesting, breeding, feeding or 
migratory activity…and in reference to plants…collect, pick, kill, transplant, cut or process…Disruption of 
nesting, breeding, feeding, or migratory activity may result from, but is not limited to, the modification, 
degradation, or destruction of Habitat” of state-listed species (321 CMR 10.02).

The Division approves the Invasive Plant Control Plan provided that the attached conditions are met.
Therefore, the proposed activities are exempt from MESA review pursuant to 321 CMR 10.14 which states: 
“[t]he following Projects and Activities shall be exempt from the requirements of 321 CMR 10.18 through 
10.23…”. 
 
(15) The active management of State-listed Species habitat, including but not limited to mowing, cutting, 
burning, or pruning of vegetation, or removing exotic or invasive species, for the purpose of maintaining or 
enhancing the habitat for the benefit of rare species, provided that the management is carried out in 
accordance with a habitat management plan approved in writing by the Division” 
 
Any changes to the proposed activities or any additional work beyond that described in the approved 
management plan may require a filing with the Division pursuant to MESA.
 
This approval is valid for five (5) years from the date of issuance. If you have any questions about this letter, 
please contact Alexandra Echandi at alexandra.echandi@mass.gov or 617-903-7977. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
201

mailto:alexandra.echandi@mass.gov
mailto:alexandra.echandi@mass.gov
mailto:alexandra.echandi@mass.gov
mailto:alexandra.echandi@mass.gov
mailto:alexandra.echandi@mass.gov
mailto:alexandra.echandi@mass.gov
mailto:alexandra.echandi@mass.gov


NHESP No. 23-8414 Page 3 of 4August 03, 2023 Issued

Sincerely,

Everose Schlüter, Ph.D.
Assistant Director

cc:

Attachment: List of Conditions

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
202



NHESP No. 23-8414 Page 4 of 4August 03, 2023 Issued

List of Conditions

Applicant:                        Town of West Newbury
Project Location:            Cherry Hill Conservation Land, Riverbend and Tupelo Trail, Middle Street/Indian Hill 
Street Field
Project Description:       Invasive plant control
NHESP File No.:              23-8414
Heritage Hub Form ID: RC-64792
Approved Plan:              Invasive Plant Control Proposal
Plan date: 5/31/2023  Revised Date: N/A

To avoid a prohibited Take of state-listed species, the following condition(s) must be met:

1. Rare Plant Avoidance Measures: The Applicant shall implement the following state-listed plant avoidance 
measures when managing invasives within Priority Habitat 2154 (PH 2154):

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Division, invasive management within Bordering Vegetated 
Wetlands (BVW) and below the Bank shall be limited to cut/paint applications by licensed herbicide 
applicators. Other management methods, including manual removal, require rare plant surveys by a Division 
approved botanist.

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
203



August 7, 2023 

Ms. Sue Brown, Town Planner 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 

Subject:   Hydraulic Evaluation 
MBTA Communities (3A) Zoning Compliance Initiative – Water Planning 
Assistance 
West Newbury, MA 
T&H No. 7520 

Dear Ms. Brown: 

Tata & Howard, Inc. (T&H) has completed a hydraulic evaluation of three potential 
locations for a multi-family development to assist with the water planning aspect of the 
MBTA Communities (3A) Zoning Compliance Initiative. 

Background 
An electronic copy of the PowerPoint presentation titled “West Newbury Housing 
Opportunities Initiative (aka MBTA Communities Zoning Compliance) Potential Zoning 
District Sites” prepared by Dodson & Flinker, dated June 27, 2023, was provided to T&H 
for review. The presentation indicates three potential locations/parcels for a future multi-
family district development including the Mullen Property, the Dunn Property, and the 
Knapp Property. All three potential locations are located along Main Street in West 
Newbury, MA.   

The Town’s MBTA (3A) Zoning Compliance Initiative is currently in the early stages of 
planning and evaluation. The PowerPoint presentation does not indicate the proposed 
number of units for the multi-family district development, nor does it show the proposed 
utility configurations for the development. A high-level evaluation was completed for the 
three potential locations to determine if any one location or combination thereof is more 
favorable in regard to water supply from the existing West Newbury water distribution 
system.  

The estimated domestic demand at the potential multi-family district development is 
currently unknown. The demand will heavily depend upon the number of housing units 

U

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
204



 
Ms. Sue Brown, Town Planner August 7, 2023 
Town of West Newbury Page 2 of 6 

 
 

 

and number of bedrooms proposed for the development. Therefore, an evaluation of the 
impact of the potential demand from the development on the West Newbury water 
distribution system was not included as part of this analysis. If an estimated domestic 
demand for the potential development is provided, or assumptions can be made as to the 
size of the development and estimated demand per unit, the existing hydraulic model of 
the West Newbury water system can be updated with the potential development demand 
and the effects on the rest of the system can be evaluated. 
 
In addition, the estimated needed fire flow at the potential development is unknown. The 
estimated needed fire flow should be determined by a fire protection engineer once a 
draft plan for the proposed development is in place. If the proposed development includes 
sprinkler systems, the needed fire flow will depend on the requirements of the sprinkler 
systems. In general, the 2014 ISO Guidelines for Determination of Needed Fire Flows 
states that where evidence is available from local fire or building officials to document 
the installation, approval, testing, and maintenance of the sprinkler system as defined in 
Chapter 6 of the NFPA Standard, the needed fire flow shall be the greater of the demand 
at the base of the sprinkler system riser or 1,000 gallons per minute (gpm) at 20 pounds 
per square inch (psi). As part of this analysis, the available fire flow was estimated in the 
West Newbury water distribution system to determine the estimated available fire flow at 
each potential development location. However, at present, it cannot be determined if the 
estimated available fire flow is adequate for the potential development. 
 
Hydraulic Model Simulations 
The existing hydraulic model of the West Newbury distribution system was updated and 
verified in October 2022 by T&H as part of the Town’s Water Distribution System Study 
Update. The updated hydraulic model was used to estimate the existing pressures and 
estimated available fire flows along Main Street at the three potential development 
locations. Static pressures and estimated available fire flows were evaluated with the 
Brake Hill Tank at a water level of 295 feet above MSL (five feet below overflow 
elevation). The Pipestave Booster Pump Station was offline, and the interconnection with 
the Town of Groveland was closed. The hydraulic model was run under a 2022 system 
maximum day demand (MDD) of approximately 264 gallons per minutes (gpm).  
 
Hydraulic model simulations were first completed under existing pipe conditions. Please 
note that the Town is currently in the design phase to upgrade the existing 6-inch 
diameter water main in Church Street from Main Street to Bridge Street and in Prospect 
Street from Main Street to Church Street to new 8-inch diameter ductile iron water main. 
Construction of this water main improvement is scheduled to begin in the summer of 
2024. Therefore, it was assumed that the improvement would be completed prior to the 
start of construction on the potential new development.  Thus, the new 8-inch diameter 
water mains along Church Street and Prospect Street were incorporated into the model 
and included as part of the existing pipe conditions. 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
205



 
Ms. Sue Brown, Town Planner August 7, 2023 
Town of West Newbury Page 3 of 6 

 
 

 

The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Projection published Guidelines for 
Public Water Systems recommend a minimum pressure of 35 psi at ground level under 
average day, maximum day, and peak hour demand conditions. For water mains or 
individual service lines where static pressure is above 100 psi, it is recommended that 
pressure reducing devices be utilized. Pressure above this level can result in increased 
water use and leaks from fixtures and also increased leakage throughout the distribution 
system. Under the existing pipe conditions with a system MDD, the estimated static 
pressure along Main Street ranges from approximately 65 to 95 pounds per square inch 
(psi).  
 
It is recommended that a distribution system provide a minimum pressure of 20 psi at 
ground level throughout the system under MDD during a fire flow event. The estimated 
available fire flow along Main Street while maintaining a minimum system pressure of 
20 psi ranges from approximately 500 gpm near the Pipestave Booster Pump Station to 
approximately 3,200 gpm adjacent to the Brake Hill Tank. Please note that changes in 
system conditions, including changes in tank operating levels, water supplies operating, 
and changes in water usage patterns, could decrease or increase the static pressure or 
available fire flow in an area. The attached Figure No. 1 indicates the resultant estimated 
available fire flows in this area with the existing pipe conditions. The three potential 
development locations are also shown on this figure. Table No. 1 summarizes the 
resultant estimated static pressure and available fire flows at the three potential 
development locations. It is assumed that water service for all three potential 
development locations will connect to the existing distribution system on Main Street. 
For the Mullen Property, it is assumed that the development would connect to the 
existing distribution system at both Main Street and Church Street. 
 

Table No. 1 
Estimated Static Pressure and Available Fire Flow – Existing Pipe Conditions 

 

Potential 
Development 

Location 

Estimated Static 
Pressure (psi) 

Estimated 
Available Fire 

Flow (gpm) while 
Maintaining 20 psi 

Mullen Property 
76 (Main Street) 

115 (Church Street) 
700 (Main Street) 

800 (Church Street) 

Dunn Property 80 800 

Knapp Property 87 1,100 

 
As noted above, it is currently unknown what the needed fire flow would be for the 
potential development. However, the needed fire flow will likely be at least 1,000 gpm 
based on the 2014 ISO Guidelines for Determination of Needed Fire Flows. For a 
minimum needed fire flow of 1,000 gpm, the estimated available fire flow along Main 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
206



 
Ms. Sue Brown, Town Planner August 7, 2023 
Town of West Newbury Page 4 of 6 

 
 

 

Street or Church Street under existing pipe conditions would not be adequate at the 
Mullen Property or Dunn Property. 
 
Hydraulic model simulations were completed with recommended water main 
improvements along Main Street. As part of the Town’s Water Distribution System Study 
Update, it is recommended that the existing 8-inch diameter and 10-inch diameter water 
mains on Main Street from Church Street to the Pipestave Booster Pump Station be 
replaced with new 12-inch diameter ductile iron water main. It is also recommended that 
the existing 10-inch diameter water main on Main Street from the Brake Hill Tank to 
Church Street be replaced with new 16-inch diameter ductile iron water main. These 
improvements were included in the hydraulic model under this simulation.  
 
With the recommended pipe improvements in place and the system under MDD 
conditions, the estimated static pressure along Main Street ranges from approximately 65 
to 95 psi. The estimated available fire flow along Main Street while maintaining a 
minimum system pressure of 20 psi ranges from approximately 1,100 gpm near the 
Pipestave Booster Pump Station to approximately 3,200 gpm adjacent to the Brake Hill 
Tank. The attached Figure No. 2 indicates the resultant estimated available fire flows in 
this area with the recommended pipe improvements on Main Street. The three potential 
development locations are also shown on this figure. Table No. 2 summarizes the 
resultant estimated static pressure and available fire flows at the three potential 
development locations. It is assumed that water service for all three potential 
development locations will connect to the existing distribution system on Main Street, 
and the Mullen Property will also connect to the existing distribution system on Church 
Street. 
 

Table No. 2 
Estimated Static Pressure and Available Fire Flow – Proposed Future Main Street 

Water Main Improvements 
 

Potential 
Development 

Location 

Estimated Static 
Pressure (psi) 

Estimated 
Available Fire 

Flow (gpm) while 
Maintaining 20 psi 

Mullen Property 
76 (Main Street) 

116 (Church Street) 
2,400 (Main Street) 

1,700 (Church Street) 

Dunn Property 80 3,100 

Knapp Property 87 3,300 

 
For a minimum needed fire flow of 1,000 gpm, the estimated available fire flow along 
Main Street or Church Street with the proposed future Main Street water main 
improvements would be adequate at any of the three properties proposed for the new 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
207



 
Ms. Sue Brown, Town Planner August 7, 2023 
Town of West Newbury Page 5 of 6 

 
 

 

development. However, as stated above, it is currently unknown what the needed fire 
flow at the potential development would be. 
 
Other Considerations 
Other factors in addition to hydraulic capacity may be considered when determining the 
best location for a future housing development. Such factors may include the availability 
of water infrastructure to connect a water service to, the age or material of the water main 
which the water service will connect to, ability to loop or have multiple service 
connections, etc. Each of the three potential development properties could connect to 
existing water infrastructure and would not require the extension of the distribution 
system for water supply.  
 
Under existing water main conditions, each of the three potential development properties 
would connect to an existing 10-inch diameter water main that is known to have a 
hydraulic deficiency. Although the needed fire flow at the potential development is 
unknown, it is unlikely that the existing estimated fire flow would be sufficient with 
existing pipe conditions for the Mullen and Dunn Properties, and potentially the Knapp 
Property. 
 
The potential future Main Street water main improvements would result in the Mullen 
and Dunn Properties connecting to a new 12-inch diameter ductile iron water main and 
the Knapp Property connecting to a new 16-inch diameter ductile iron water main. 
Connecting to new ductile iron water main would create a more reliable supply 
connection for the development. In addition, the upgraded water mains on Main Street 
would increase the inherent capacity for fire flows at the potential development 
properties. Therefore, depending on the needed fire flow for the development, the 
potential future Main Street water main improvements may result in a sufficient available 
fire flow at the development. 
 
Under each hydraulic scenario, the Knapp Property has the highest estimated available 
fire flow of the three potential development locations. This is largely due to the Knapp 
Property being the closest to the Brake Hill Tank resulting in less headloss along the path 
of flow from the tank to the property location. However, as stated, the needed fire flow at 
the potential development is currently unknown. 
 
Under either hydraulic scenario, the Mullen Property could have two connections to the 
existing distribution system: one at Main Street and one at Church Street. Having two 
water service connections would provide the added benefit of redundancy for the Mullen 
Property. If a water main break were to occur in the vicinity of one of the water service 
connections, water could continue to be supplied to the development from the other 
connection. The two connections could also yield higher available flows throughout the 
development depending upon the proposed configuration of the water infrastructure in 
the new development. 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
208



 
Ms. Sue Brown, Town Planner August 7, 2023 
Town of West Newbury Page 6 of 6 

 
 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to assist you on this important project. If you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
TATA & HOWARD, INC. 
 

 
 
Jon W. Gregory, P.E. 

 Vice President  
 
 
Enclosures 
 
cc: Mr. Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 Town of West Newbury 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
209



Brake Hill Tank
Capacity: 0.4 mg
Overflow Elevation: 300 feet

Knapp Property

Dunn Property

Mullen Property

Church Street and Prospect Street
New 8-inch diameter water main
to be constructed in 2024

¬«11
3

REEDS
LANE

BOYNTON

COURT

HIL
LS C

OURT

DOLE PLACE

STEWARTSTREET

RIVER

MEADOW

COURT

ALBIO
N LANE

BRAKE HILL

TERRACE

H
E

M
IN

G
W

A
Y

PL
A

C
E

R
IV

E
R

M
E

A
D

O
W

D
R

IV
E

PO
O

R
 H

O
U

SE
L

A
N

E

G
E

O
R

G
E

T
O

W
N

 R
O

A
D

C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

TW
IGRUSHLANE

RIV
ER

M
EA

D
O

W
PL

A
CE

BEAVER

BROOK

LANE

HIC
KORY

LANE

AV
O

N

LA
N

E

SUM
M

ER

SW
EET L

ANE

R
IV

E
R

M
E

A
D

O
W

C
O

U
R

T

K
E

N
T

S
C

O
U

R
T

FARM LANE

H
IL

LT
O

P
CIR

CLE

PH
EA

SA
N

T
H

O
LL

O
W

M
ID

D
LE

 S
TR

EE
T

CHESTNUT

HILL STREET

APPLETON
COURT

G
U

N
N

ER
S

H
IL

L 
R

O
A

D

C
O

F
F

IN
S

T
R

E
E

T

TRAINING
FIELD
ROAD

W
H

ETSTO
N

E STR
EET

COLBY
LANE

CARLSENROAD

H
A

RRISO
N

AV
EN

U
E

BAILEYS LANE

MARSHALL
DRIVE

FOLLIN
SBEE LANE

NEWELL

FARM DRIVE

ROBIN ROAD

W
A

T
E

R
SID

E

L
A

N
E

BRIDGE STREET

SULLIVANS

COURT

ST
EED

AV
EN

U
E

MERRILL STREET

B
A

C
H

ELO
R

 STR
EET

ALBION LANE

R
IV

E
R

M
E

A
D

O
W

D
R

IV
E

OLD W
HARF

ROAD

DONOVAN D
RIV

E

MECHANICS STREET

SAWMILL

BROOK ROAD

CHESTNUT
STREET

M
APLE STREET

M
EE

TI
N

G
H

O
U

SE
 H

IL
L 

RO
A

D

TEWKSBURY LANE

BARBERRY LANE

PLEASANT STREET

PRO
SPECT STREET

KIM
BALL ROAD

ASH STREET

ARCHELAUS PLACE

RIV
ERCREST

 D
RIV

E

M
E

A
D

O
W

 SW
E

E
T

 R
O

A
D

CRANE NECK STREET

STEW
A

RT STREET

E
st

im
at

ed
 A

va
il

ab
le

 F
ir

e 
F

lo
w

 -
 E

xi
st

in
g 

C
on

di
ti

on
s

M
B

TA
 C

om
m

un
it

ie
s 

(3
A

) 
Z

on
in

g 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
In

it
ia

ti
ve

W
at

er
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

W
es

t N
ew

bu
ry

, M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts

F
ig

ur
e 

N
o. 1

D
at

e:
 A

ug
us

t 2
02

3
A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e 

S
ca

le
: 1

' =
 1

,0
00

'

Legend

Estimated Available Fire Flow

500 gpm and less

500 - 1,000 gpm

1,000 - 1,500 gpm

1,500 - 2,000 gpm

2,000 - 2,500 gpm

2,500 - 3,000 gpm

3,000 - 3,500 gpm

3,500 gpm and greater

Water Main Diameter

4-inch and smaller

6-inch

8-inch

10-inch

12-inch
 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
210



Brake Hill Tank
Capacity: 0.4 mg
Overflow Elevation: 300 feet

Knapp Property

Dunn Property

Mullen Property

Church Street and Prospect Street
New 8-inch diameter water main
to be constructed in 2024

¬«11
3

REEDS
LANE

BOYNTON

COURT

HIL
LS C

OURT

DOLE PLACE

STEWARTSTREET

RIVER

MEADOW

COURT

ALBIO
N LANE

BRAKE HILL

TERRACE

H
E

M
IN

G
W

A
Y

PL
A

C
E

R
IV

E
R

M
E

A
D

O
W

D
R

IV
E

PO
O

R
 H

O
U

SE
L

A
N

E

G
E

O
R

G
E

T
O

W
N

 R
O

A
D

C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

TW
IGRUSHLANE

RIV
ER

M
EA

D
O

W
PL

A
CE

BEAVER

BROOK

LANE

HIC
KORY

LANE

AV
O

N

LA
N

E

SUM
M

ER

SW
EET L

ANE

R
IV

E
R

M
E

A
D

O
W

C
O

U
R

T

K
E

N
T

S
C

O
U

R
T

FARM LANE

H
IL

LT
O

P
CIR

CLE

PH
EA

SA
N

T
H

O
LL

O
W

M
ID

D
LE

 S
TR

EE
T

CHESTNUT

HILL STREET

APPLETON
COURT

G
U

N
N

ER
S

H
IL

L 
R

O
A

D

C
O

F
F

IN
S

T
R

E
E

T

TRAINING
FIELD
ROAD

W
H

ETSTO
N

E STR
EET

COLBY
LANE

CARLSENROAD

H
A

RRISO
N

AV
EN

U
E

BAILEYS LANE

MARSHALL
DRIVE

FOLLIN
SBEE LANE

NEWELL

FARM DRIVE

ROBIN ROAD

W
A

T
E

R
SID

E

L
A

N
E

BRIDGE STREET

SULLIVANS

COURT

ST
EED

AV
EN

U
E

MERRILL STREET

B
A

C
H

ELO
R

 STR
EET

ALBION LANE

R
IV

E
R

M
E

A
D

O
W

D
R

IV
E

OLD W
HARF

ROAD

DONOVAN D
RIV

E

MECHANICS STREET

SAWMILL

BROOK ROAD

CHESTNUT
STREET

M
APLE STREET

M
EE

TI
N

G
H

O
U

SE
 H

IL
L 

RO
A

D

TEWKSBURY LANE

BARBERRY LANE

PLEASANT STREET

PRO
SPECT STREET

KIM
BALL ROAD

ASH STREET

ARCHELAUS PLACE

RIV
ERCREST

 D
RIV

E

M
E

A
D

O
W

 SW
E

E
T

 R
O

A
D

CRANE NECK STREET

STEW
A

RT STREET

E
st

im
at

ed
 A

va
il

ab
le

 F
ir

e 
F

lo
w

 -
 P

ro
po

se
d 

F
ut

ur
e 

M
ai

n 
S

tr
ee

t
W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

M
B

TA
 C

om
m

un
it

ie
s 

(3
A

) 
Z

on
in

g 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
In

it
ia

ti
ve

W
at

er
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

W
es

t N
ew

bu
ry

, M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts

F
ig

ur
e 

N
o. 2

D
at

e:
 A

ug
us

t 2
02

3
A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e 

S
ca

le
: 1

' =
 1

,0
00

'

Legend

Water Main Diameter

4-inch and smaller

6-inch

8-inch

10-inch

12-inch

16-inch

Estimated Available Fire Flow

Less than 500 gpm

500 - 1,000 gpm

1,000 - 1,500 gpm

1,500 - 2,000 gpm

2,000 - 2,500 gpm

2,500 - 3,000 gpm

3,000 - 3,500 gpm

3,500 gpm and greater
 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
211



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

381 Main Street, West Newbury, Mass. 01985 

978-363-1100 x126 | conservation@wnewbury.org

August 16, 2023 

Essex County Greenbelt Association, Inc. 

82 Eastern Avenue 

Essex, MA 01929 

Attn: Director of Stewardship 

Re: Approval of proposed gravel parking area at “Artichoke River Woods”, Tax Map 27, Lot 28, 

West Newbury, MA 

Dear Director of Stewardship, 

This letter is to confirm that at their meeting of August 8, 2023, the West Newbury Conservation 

Commission voted to approve the construction, routine maintenance, marking and use of a single 

unpaved parking area with gravel or other pervious surface to provide off-street parking 

associated with the public recreational use of the Premises for up to six (6) passenger vehicles as 

proposed on a plan entitled “Layout & Grading Plan”, Sheet C1, for Artichoke Trail Access 

Project located at Tax Map 27, Lot 28, Middle St. West Newbury, MA. This written approval is 

given per the provisions of the Conservation Restriction and Easements document for the 

property for which the West Newbury Conservation Commission is one of the Grantees.  

Please reach out with any questions 

Sincerely, 

Michelle Greene  

Town of West Newbury 

Conservation Agent 

V

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
212



1

Town Manager

From: Carlucci, Nathan (OCD) <nathan.carlucci@state.ma.us>
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 2:49 PM
Subject: Update to Compliance Guidelines for MBTA Communities
Attachments: REVISION to Section 3A Compliance Guidelines (August 17 2023) CLEAN.pdf; REVISION 

to Section 3A Compliance Guidelines (August 17 2023) REDLINE.pdf; Summary of 
Changes 8-17-2023.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear MBTA Community Stakeholder: 
 
The Execu ve Office of Housing and Livable Communi es is announcing revisions to the Compliance Guidelines for 
Mul -Family Zoning Districts under Sec on 3A of the Zoning Act (Guidelines).   
We are pleased to announce that MBTA communi es may now receive some credit for zoning districts that require a 
non-residen al component on the ground floor of buildings in a mixed-use development district.  Several MBTA 
communi es wish to locate new zoning districts in mixed-use, walkable neighborhoods, where residents of future 
housing can easily access resources, ameni es, and transit sta ons as pedestrians...  Today’s revision to the Guidelines 
modifies the “reasonable size” sec on of the Guidelines and provides flexibility for communi es that want to require a 
non-residen al component in housing developments.   
 
Please note that the Guidelines were also revised to include a list of discre onary grant programs that will take MBTA 
communi es’ compliance into considera on.   
A ached to this email are: a one page summary of the changes, clean and redlined versions of the Guidelines. 
 
Please make other stakeholders such as Planning Boards and/or working groups aware of the revised Guidelines. Here is 
a link to the revised Guidelines posted on the MBTA Communi es website:  h ps://www.mass.gov/info-details/mul -
family-zoning-requirement-for-mbta-communi es#sec on-3a-guidelines-  
 
Please stay tuned for addi onal resources further explaining and implemen ng these revisions, including an updated 
compliance model and an eligible loca on determina on applica on. The addi onal resources will be on the website, as 
well as distributed via email. If you have any ques ons about these changes, please contact program staff at 
nathan.carlucci@mass.gov and emma.snellings@mass.gov. 
 
***If you are receiving this message a second me, it is because your name was listed as both the contact person, and 
the municipal CEO of an MBTA Community*** 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Nathan Carlucci 
MBTA Communities Compliance Coordinator (he - him) 
Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities 
nathan.carlucci@mass.gov 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
213



   
TO:  Municipal Officials in MBTA Communities   

 
FROM: Secretary Edward M. Augustus, Jr.  

 
DATE: August 17, 2023 

 
RE: Revisions to Section 3A Compliance Guidelines 

 

On August 10, 2022, EOHLC released Compliance Guidelines for Multi-Family Zoning Districts Under 
Section 3A of the Zoning Act (the “Guidelines”).  One revision was made in October 2022. This is a 
summary of the second change.  In response to feedback from municipal leaders in several MBTA 
communities, EOHLC is revising the Guidelines to offer MBTA communities a path to receive some credit 
for mixed-use development zoning districts. The revision also specifies how Section 3A compliance may 
affect certain discretionary grant award decisions. These revisions: 
 
1. Allow an MBTA community to “offset” the minimum multi-family unit capacity requirement in 

certain multi-family zoning district(s) by up to 25%, based on the unit capacity of a mixed-use 
zoning district that meets key requirements of Section 3A and the Guidelines, but for requiring a 
ground floor non-residential component.  Such “offset” – only available where existing village-style 
or downtown development is essential to preserve pedestrian access to amenities – still requires a 
municipality to demonstrate the same total amount of unit capacity. 
 

2. Protect the financial feasibility of achieving housing goals where mixed-use zoning requires ground-
floor non-residential uses by (i) setting forth location criteria for mixed-use development districts 
and requiring that EOHLC has pre-approved the location before the MBTA community’s vote on its 
zoning changes; (ii) capping the percentage floor area of each development that may be required to 
be non-residential (ground floor only); (iii) requiring a broad mix of non-residential uses allowed as 
of right; and (iv) prohibiting minimum parking requirements for non-residential uses.  

 
3. Allow MBTA communities to locate more housing in walkable and transit-oriented neighborhoods 

without jeopardizing existing non-residential resources and amenities. Many MBTA communities 
expressed a desire to locate districts in village-style or downtown neighborhoods but feared that 
allowing multi-family housing as of right in those areas could risk a loss of existing businesses and 
buildings. Many residents expressed a desire to live in village-style, downtown, and transit-oriented 
neighborhoods.  

 
4. Add a list of thirteen discretionary grants programs to Section 9 to alert MBTA communities of 

additional grant programs that will consider compliance with Section 3A in making grant awards. 
 

These revisions to the Guidelines are intended to provide greater flexibility to MBTA communities to 
adopt new zoning districts in mixed-use neighborhoods, and to promote housing opportunities for 
residents in such neighborhoods.  The revisions do not reduce the total unit capacity required by the 
Guidelines.  

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF HOUSING & 

LIVABLE COMMUNITIES 
Maura T. Healey, Governor      Kimberley Driscoll, Lieutenant Governor      Edward M. Augustus, Jr., Secretary 

 

100 Cambridge Street, Suite 300    www.mass.gov 
Boston, Massachusetts  02114  617.573.1100  

 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
214



Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF HOUSING &  
LIVABLE COMMUNITIES 

 

                    Maura T. Healey, Governor    Kimberley Driscoll, Lieutenant Governor    Edward M. Augustus, Jr., Secretary 
 

Issue Date: August 10, 2022 
Revised:  October 21, 2022 
Revised:  August 17, 2023 

 
 

Compliance Guidelines for Multi-family Zoning Districts 
Under Section 3A of the Zoning Act 

 
1. Overview of Section 3A of the Zoning Act 
 

Section 3A of the Zoning Act provides:  An MBTA community shall have a zoning ordinance or 
by-law that provides for at least 1 district of reasonable size in which multi-family housing is permitted 
as of right; provided, however, that such multi-family housing shall be without age restrictions and shall 
be suitable for families with children. For the purposes of this section, a district of reasonable size shall: 
(i) have a minimum gross density of 15 units per acre, subject to any further limitations imposed 
by section 40 of chapter 131 and title 5 of the state environmental code established pursuant to section 
13 of chapter 21A; and (ii) be located not more than 0.5 miles from a commuter rail station, subway 
station, ferry terminal or bus station, if applicable. 

 
The purpose of Section 3A is to encourage the production of multi-family housing by requiring 

MBTA communities to adopt zoning districts where multi-family housing is allowed as of right, and that 
meet other requirements set forth in the statute. 
 

The Department of Housing and Community DevelopmentExecutive Office of Housing and 
Livable Communities (EOHLC), in consultation with Executive Office of Economic Development,  the 
Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority and the Massachusetts Department of Transportation, is 
required to promulgate guidelines to determine if an MBTA community is in compliance with Section 
3A.  DHCDEOHLC promulgated preliminary guidance on January 29, 2021.  DHCDEOHLC updated 
that preliminary guidance on December 15, 2021, and on that same date issued draft guidelines for 
public comment.  These final guidelines supersede all prior guidance and set forth how MBTA 
communities may achieve compliance with Section 3A. 
 
2. Definitions 
 

“Adjacent community” means an MBTA community that (i) has within its boundaries less than 
100 acres of developable station area, and (ii) is not an adjacent small town. 
 

“Adjacent small town” means an MBTA community that (i) has within its boundaries less than 
100 acres of developable station area, and (ii) either has a population density of less than 500 persons 
per square mile, or a population of not more than 7,000 year-round residents as determined in the most 
recently published United States Decennial Census of Population and Housing. 

 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
215



2 

“Affordable unit” means a multi-family housing unit that is subject to a restriction in its chain of 
title limiting the sale price or rent, or limiting occupancy to an individual or household of a specified 
income, or both.  Affordable units may be, but are not required to be, eligible for inclusion on 
DHCDEOHLC’s Subsidized Housing Inventory.  Nothing in these Guidelines changes the Subsidized 
Housing Inventory eligibility criteria, and no affordable unit shall be counted on the Subsidized Housing 
Inventory unless it satisfies the requirements for inclusion under 760 CMR 56.03(2) or any other 
regulation or guidance issued by DHCDEOHLC. 

 
“Age-restricted housing” means any housing unit encumbered by a title restriction requiring a 

minimum age for some or all occupants. 
 
“As of right” means development that may proceed under a zoning ordinance or by-law without 

the need for a special permit, variance, zoning amendment, waiver, or other discretionary zoning 
approval. 

 
“Bus station” means a location with a passenger platform and other fixed infrastructure serving 

as a point of embarkation for the MBTA Silver Line. Upon the request of an MBTA community, 
DHCDEOHLC, in consultation with the MBTA, may determine that other locations qualify as a bus 
station if (i) such location has a sheltered platform or other fixed infrastructure serving a point of 
embarkation for a high-capacity MBTA bus line, and (ii) the area around such fixed infrastructure is 
highly suitable for multi-family housing. 

 
“Commuter rail community” means an MBTA community that (i) does not meet the criteria for a 

rapid transit community, and (ii) has within its borders at least 100 acres of developable station area 
associated with one or more commuter rail stations.   

 
“Commuter rail station” means any MBTA commuter rail station with year-round, rather than 

intermittent, seasonal, or event-based, service, including stations under construction and scheduled to 
being service before the end of 2023, but not including existing stations at which service will be 
terminated, or reduced below regular year-round service, before the end of 2023. 
 

“Compliance model” means the model created by DHCDEOHLC to determine compliance with 
Section 3A’s reasonable size, gross density, and location requirements.  The compliance model is 
described in further detail in Appendix 2. 

 
“Determination of compliance” means a determination made by DHCDEOHLC as to whether an 

MBTA community has a multi-family zoning district that complies with the requirements of Section 3A.  
A determination of compliance may be determination of interim compliance or a determination of 
district compliance, as described in section 9. 

 
“Developable land” means land on which multi-family housing can be permitted and 

constructed.  For purposes of these guidelines, developable land consists of: (i) all privately-owned land 
except lots or portions of lots that meet the definition of excluded land, and (ii) developable public land. 

 
“Developable public land” means any publicly-owned land that (i) is used by a local housing 

authority; (ii) has been identified as a site for housing development in a housing production plan 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
216



3 

approved by DHCDEOHLC; or (iii) has been designated by the public owner for disposition and 
redevelopment. Other publicly-owned land may qualify as developable public land if DHCDEOHLC 
determines, at the request of an MBTA community and after consultation with the public owner, that 
such land is the location of obsolete structures or uses, or otherwise is suitable for conversion to multi-
family housing, and will be converted to or made available for multi-family housing within a reasonable 
period of time. 
 
 “Developable station area” means developable land that is within 0.5 miles of a transit station. 
 

“DHCDEOHLC” means the Department Executive Office Executive Office of Housing and 
Community DevelopmentLivable Communities. 

 
“EOHEDEOED” means the Executive Office of Housing and Economic Development. 

 
“Excluded land” means land areas on which it is not possible or practical to construct multi-

family housing.  For purposes of these guidelines, excluded land is defined by reference to the 
ownership, use codes, use restrictions, and hydrological characteristics in MassGIS and consists of the 
following: 

 
(i) All publicly-owned land, except for lots or portions of lots determined to be developable 

public land. 
(ii) All rivers, streams, lakes, ponds and other surface waterbodies. 
(iii) All wetland resource areas, together with a buffer zone around wetlands and waterbodies 

equivalent to the minimum setback required by title 5 of the state environmental code. 
(iv) Protected open space and recreational land that is legally protected in perpetuity (for 

example, land owned by a local land trust or subject to a conservation restriction), or that 
is likely to remain undeveloped due to functional or traditional use (for example, 
cemeteries). 

(v) All public rights-of-way and private rights-of-way. 
(vi) Privately-owned land on which development is prohibited to protect private or public 

water supplies, including, but not limited to, Zone I wellhead protection areas and Zone 
A surface water supply protection areas. 

(vii) Privately-owned land used for educational or institutional uses such as a hospital, prison, 
electric, water, wastewater or other utility, museum, or private school, college or 
university. 

 
“Ferry terminal” means the location where passengers embark and disembark from regular, year-

round MBTA ferry service.   
 
“Gross density” means a units-per-acre density measurement that includes land occupied by 

public rights-of-way and any recreational, civic, commercial, and other nonresidential uses. 
 
“Housing suitable for families” means housing comprised of residential dwelling units that are 

not age-restricted housing, and for which there are no zoning restriction on the number of bedrooms, the 
size of bedrooms, or the number of occupants. 

 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
217



4 

“Listed funding sources” means (i) the Housing Choice Initiative as described by the governor in 
a message to the general court dated December 11, 2017; (ii) the Local Capital Projects Fund established 
in section 2EEEE of chapter 29; and (iii) the MassWorks infrastructure program established in section 
63 of chapter 23A.   

 
“Lot” means an area of land with definite boundaries that is used or available for use as the site 

of a building or buildings.   
 
“MassGIS data” means the comprehensive, statewide database of geospatial information and 

mapping functions maintained by the Commonwealth's Bureau of Geographic Information, within 
the Executive Office of Technology Services and Security, including the lot boundaries and use codes 
provided by municipalities. 

 
“MBTA” means the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority. 
  
“MBTA community” means a city or town that is: (i) one of the 51 cities and towns as defined in 

section 1 of chapter 161A; (ii) one of the 14 cities and towns as defined in said section 1 of said chapter 
161A; (iii) other served communities as defined in said section 1 of said chapter 161A; or (iv) a 
municipality that has been added to the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority under section 6 of 
chapter 161A or in accordance with any special law relative to the area constituting the authority. 

 
“Mixed-use development” means development containing a mix of residential uses and non-

residential uses, including, without limitation, commercial, institutional, industrial or other uses. 
 
''Mixed-use development zoning district” means a zoning district where multiple residential units 

are allowed as of right if, but only if, combined with non-residential uses, including, without limitation, 
commercial, institutional, industrial or other uses. 

 
“Multi-family housing” means a building with 3 or more residential dwelling units or 2 or more 

buildings on the same lot with more than 1 residential dwelling unit in each building. 
 
“Multi-family unit capacity” means an estimate of the total number of multi-family housing units 

that can be developed as of right within a multi-family zoning district, made in accordance with the 
requirements of section 5.b below. 

 
“Multi-family zoning district” means a zoning district, including a base district or an overlay 

district, in which multi-family housing is allowed as of right; provided that the district shall be in a fixed 
location or locations, and shown on a map that is part of the zoning ordinance or by-law. 
 
 “One Stop Application” means the single application portal for the Community One Stop for 
Growth through which (i) the Executive Office of Housing and Economic Development considers 
requests for funding from the MassWorks infrastructure program; (ii) DHCDEOHLC considers requests 
for funding from the Housing Choice Initiative, (iii) EOHED EOED, DHCDEOHLC and other state 
agencies consider requests for funding from other discretionary grant programs. 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
218



5 

 “Private rights-of-way” means land area within which private streets, roads and other ways have 
been laid out and maintained, to the extent such land areas can be reasonably identified by examination 
of available tax parcel data.   
 
 “Publicly-owned land” means (i) any land owned by the United States or a federal agency or 
authority; (ii) any land owned by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or a state agency or authority; 
and (iii) any land owned by a municipality or municipal board or authority. 
 
 “Public rights-of-way” means land area within which public streets, roads and other ways have 
been laid out and maintained, to the extent such land areas can be reasonably identified by examination 
of available tax parcel data.   
 
 “Rapid transit community” means an MBTA community that has within its borders at least 100 
acres of developable station area associated with one or more subway stations, or MBTA Silver Line bus 
rapid transit stations. 
 

“Residential dwelling unit” means a single unit providing complete, independent living facilities 
for one or more persons, including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking and 
sanitation. 
 

“Section 3A” means section 3A of the Zoning Act. 
 

“Sensitive land” means developable land that, due to its soils, slope, hydrology, or other physical 
characteristics, has significant conservation values that could be impaired, or vulnerabilities that could 
be exacerbated, by the development of multi-family housing.  It also includes locations where multi-
family housing would be at increased risk of damage caused by flooding.  Sensitive land includes, but is 
not limited to, wetland buffer zones extending beyond the title 5 setback area; land subject to flooding 
that is not a wetland resource area; priority habitat for rare or threatened species; DEP-approved 
wellhead protection areas in which development may be restricted, but is not prohibited (Zone II and 
interim wellhead protection areas); and land areas with prime agricultural soils that are in active 
agricultural use.  

 
“Site plan review” means a process established by local ordinance or by-law by which a local 

board reviews, and potentially imposes conditions on, the appearance and layout of a specific project 
prior to the issuance of a building permit.   

 
“Subway station” means any of the stops along the MBTA Red Line, Green Line, Orange Line, 

or Blue Line, including any extensions to such lines now under construction and scheduled to begin 
service before the end of 2023. 
 

“Transit station” means an MBTA subway station, commuter rail station, ferry terminal or bus 
station.  

 
“Transit station area” means the land area within 0.5 miles of a transit station. 
 
“Zoning Act” means chapter 40A of the Massachusetts General Laws. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
219



6 

 
3. General Principles of Compliance 
 

These compliance guidelines describe how an MBTA community can comply with the 
requirements of Section 3A.  The guidelines specifically address: 

 
 What it means to allow multi-family housing “as of right.” 
 
 The metrics that determine if a multi-family zoning district is “of reasonable size.” 
 
 How to determine if a multi-family zoning district has a minimum gross density of 15 units 

per acre, subject to any further limitations imposed by section 40 of chapter 131 and title 5 of 
the state environmental code. 

 The meaning of Section 3A’s mandate that “such multi-family housing shall be without age 
restrictions and shall be suitable for families with children.” 

 
 The extent to which MBTA communities have flexibility to choose the location of a multi-

family zoning district. 
 

The following general principles have informed the more specific compliance criteria that 
follow: 

 
 MBTA communities with subway stations, commuter rail stations and other transit stations 

benefit from having these assets located within their boundaries and should provide 
opportunity for multi-family housing development around these assets.  MBTA communities 
with no transit stations within their boundaries benefit from proximity to transit stations in 
nearby communities.  
 

 The multi-family zoning districts required by Section 3A should encourage the development 
of multi-family housing projects of a scale, density and aesthetic that are compatible with 
existing surrounding uses, and minimize impacts to sensitive land.   
 

 “Reasonable size” is a relative rather than an absolute determination.  Because of the 
diversity of MBTA communities, a multi-family zoning district that is “reasonable” in one 
city or town may not be reasonable in another city or town.   
 

 When possible, multi-family zoning districts should be in areas that have safe, accessible, 
and convenient access to transit stations for pedestrians and bicyclists.  

 
4. Allowing Multi-Family Housing “As of Right”  
 
 To comply with Section 3A, a multi-family zoning district must allow multi-family housing “as 
of right,” meaning that the construction and occupancy of multi-family housing is allowed in that district 
without the need for a special permit, variance, zoning amendment, waiver, or other discretionary 
approval.  DHCDEOHLC will determine whether zoning provisions allow for multi-family housing as 
of right consistent with the following guidelines. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
220



7 

 
 a. Site plan review 
 

The Zoning Act does not establish nor recognize site plan review as an independent method of 
regulating land use. However, the Massachusetts courts have recognized site plan review as a 
permissible regulatory tool, including for uses that are permitted as of right.  The court decisions 
establish that when site plan review is required for a use permitted as of right, site plan review involves 
the regulation of a use and not its outright prohibition.  The scope of review is therefore limited to 
imposing reasonable terms and conditions on the proposed use, consistent with applicable case law.1  
These guidelines similarly recognize that site plan review may be required for multi-family housing 
projects that are allowed as of right, within the parameters established by the applicable case law.  Site 
plan approval may regulate matters such as vehicular access and circulation on a site, architectural 
design of a building, and screening of adjacent properties.  Site plan review should not unreasonably 
delay a project nor impose conditions that make it infeasible or impractical to proceed with a project that 
is allowed as of right and complies with applicable dimensional regulations.   

 
b. Affordability requirements 

 
Section 3A does not include any express requirement or authorization for an MBTA community 

to require affordable units in a multi-family housing project that is allowed as of right.  It is a common 
practice in many cities and towns to require affordable units in a multi-family project that requires a 
special permit, or as a condition for building at greater densities than the zoning otherwise would allow.  
These inclusionary zoning requirements serve the policy goal of increasing affordable housing 
production.  If affordability requirements are excessive, however, they can make it economically 
infeasible to construct new multi-family housing. 

 
For purposes of making compliance determinations with Section 3A, DHCDEOHLC will 

consider an affordability requirement to be consistent with as of right zoning as long as the zoning 
requires not more than 10 percent of the units in a project to be affordable units, and the cap on the 
income of families or individuals who are eligible to occupy the affordable units is not less than 80 
percent of area median income.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, DHCDEOHLC may, in its discretion, 
approve a greater percentage of affordable units, or deeper affordability for some or all of the affordable 
units, in either of the following circumstances: 
 

(i)  The affordability requirements applicable in the multi-family zoning district are reviewed 
and approved by DHCDEOHLC as part of a smart growth district under chapter 40R, or 
under another zoning incentive program administered by DHCDEOHLC; or 
 

(ii)   The affordability requirements applicable in the multi-family zoning district are 
supported by an economic feasibility analysis, prepared for the municipality by a 
qualified and independent third party acceptable to DHCDEOHLC, and using a 
methodology and format acceptable to DHCDEOHLC.  The analysis must demonstrate 

 
1   See, e.g., Y.D. Dugout, Inc. v. Board of Appeals of Canton, 357 Mass. 25 (1970); Prudential Insurance Co. of America v. 
Board of Appeals of Westwood, 23 Mass. App. Ct. 278 (1986); Osberg v. Planning Bd. of Sturbridge, 44 Mass. App. Ct. 56, 
59 (1997) (Planning Board “may impose reasonable terms and conditions on the proposed use, but it does not have 
discretionary power to deny the use”). 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
221



8 

that a reasonable variety of multi-family housing types can be feasibly developed at the 
proposed affordability levels, taking into account the densities allowed as of right in the 
district, the dimensional requirements applicable within the district, and the minimum 
number of parking spaces required. 
 

In no case will DHCDEOHLC approve alternative affordability requirements that require more 
than 20 percent of the units in a project to be affordable units, except in a smart growth zoning district 
under chapter 40R with a 25 percent affordability requirement approved and adopted prior to the 
issuance of these guidelines, including any such existing district that is expanded or amended to comply 
with these guidelines.  
 

c. Other requirements that do not apply uniformly in the multi-family zoning district 
 

Zoning will not be deemed compliant with Section 3A’s requirement that multi-family housing 
be allowed as of right if the zoning imposes requirements on multi-family housing that are not generally 
applicable to other uses.  The following are examples of requirements that would be deemed to be 
inconsistent with “as of right” use: (i) a requirement that multi-family housing meet higher energy 
efficiency standards than other uses; (ii) a requirement that a multi-family use achieve a third party 
certification that is not required for other uses in the district; and (iii) a requirement that multi-family use 
must be combined with commercial or other uses on the same lot or as part of a single project.  Mixed 
use projects may be allowed as of right in a multi-family zoning district, as long as multi-family housing 
is separately allowed as of right.   
 
5. Determining “Reasonable Size” 
 
 In making determinations of “reasonable size,” DHCDEOHLC will take into consideration both 
the land area of the multi-family zoning district, and the multi-family zoning district’s multi-family unit 
capacity.   
 

a.  Minimum land area 
 

A zoning district is a specifically delineated land area with uniform regulations and requirements 
governing the use of land and the placement, spacing, and size of buildings.  For purposes of compliance 
with Section 3A, a multi-family zoning district should be a neighborhood-scale district, not a single 
development site on which the municipality is willing to permit a particular multi-family project.  
DHCDEOHLC will certify compliance with Section 3A only if an MBTA community’s multi-family 
zoning district meets the minimum land area applicable to that MBTA community, if any, as set forth in 
Appendix 1.  The minimum land area for each MBTA community has been determined as follows:  

 
(i) In rapid transit communities, commuter rail communities, and adjacent communities, the 

minimum land area of the multi-family zoning district is 50 acres, or 1.5% of the 
developable land in an MBTA community, whichever is less.  In certain cases, noted in 
Appendix 1, a smaller minimum land area applies. 
 

(ii) In adjacent small towns, there is no minimum land area.  In these communities, the multi-
family zoning district may comprise as many or as few acres as the community 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
222



9 

determines is appropriate, as long as the district meets the applicable minimum multi-
family unit capacity and the minimum gross density requirements. 

 
In all cases, at least half of the multi-family zoning district land areas must comprise contiguous 

lots of land.  No portion of the district that is less than 5 contiguous acres land will count toward the 
minimum size requirement.  If the multi-family unit capacity and gross density requirements can be 
achieved in a district of fewer than 5 acres, then the district must consist entirely of contiguous lots. 
 

b. Minimum multi-family unit capacity 
 
A reasonably sized multi-family zoning district must also be able to accommodate a reasonable 

number of multi-family housing units as of right.  For purposes of determinations of compliance with 
Section 3A, DHCDEOHLC will consider a reasonable multi-family unit capacity for each MBTA 
community to be a specified percentage of the total number of housing units within the community, with 
the applicable percentage based on the type of transit service in the community, as shown on Table 1:  

 
Table 1. 

Category Percentage of total housing units 
Rapid transit community 25% 
Commuter rail community 15% 
Adjacent community 10% 
Adjacent small town 5% 

 
To be deemed in compliance with Section 3A, each MBTA community must have a multi-family 

zoning district with a multi-family unit capacity equal to or greater than the minimum unit capacity 
shown for it in Appendix 1.  The minimum multi-family unit capacity for each MBTA community has 
been determined as follows: 

 
(i) First, by multiplying the number of housing units in that community by 0.25, 0.15, 0.10, 

or .05 depending on the MBTA community category.  For example, a rapid transit 
community with 7,500 housing units is required to have a multi-family zoning district 
with a multi-family unit capacity of 7,500 x 0.25 = 1,875 multi-family units.  For 
purposes of these guidelines, the number of total housing units in each MBTA 
community has been established by reference to the most recently published United 
States Decennial Census of Population and Housing. 
 

(ii) Second, when there is a minimum land area applicable to an MBTA community, by 
multiplying that minimum land area (up to 50 acres) by Section 3A’s minimum gross 
density requirement of 15 units per acre.  The product of that multiplication creates a 
floor on multi-family unit capacity.  For example, an MBTA community with a minimum 
land area of 40 acres must have a district with a multi-family unit capacity of at least 600 
(40 x 15) units.   
 

(iii) The minimum unit capacity applicable to each MBTA community is the greater of the 
numbers resulting from steps (i) and (ii) above, but subject to the following limitation:  In 
no case does the minimum multi-family unit capacity exceed 25% of the total housing 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
223



10 

units in that MBTA community.    
 

Example:  The minimum multi-family unit capacity for an adjacent community with 1,000 
housing units and a minimum land area of 50 acres is determined as follows:(i) first, by multiplying 
1,000 x .1 = 100 units; (ii) second, by multiplying 50 x 15 = 750 units;(iii) by taking the larger number, 
but adjusting that number down, if necessary, so that unit capacity is no more than 25% of 1,000 = 250 
units.  In this case, the adjustment in step (iii) results in a minimum unit capacity of 250 units. 

 
c. Reasonable Size – Consideration Given to Unit Capacity in Mixed-Use Development Districts 

 
In making determinations of whether an MBTA Community has a multi-family zoning district of 

“reasonable size” under this section, EOHLC shall also take into consideration the existence and impact 
of mixed-use development zoning districts, subject to the requirements below.   
 

EOHLC shall take these mixed-use development districts into consideration as reducing the unit 
capacity needed for a multi-family zoning district to be “reasonable” (as listed in Appendix I) where:  

 
(i)  the mixed-use development zoning district is in an eligible location where existing 

village-style or downtown development is essential to preserve pedestrian access to 
amenities;  

 
(ii)  there are no age restrictions or limits on unit size, number of bedrooms, bedroom size or 

number of occupants and the residential units permitted are suitable for families with 
children;   

 
(iii)  mixed-used development in the district is allowed “as of right” as that phrase has been 

interpreted by EOHLC (for example, in section 4(c) with respect to affordability 
requirements);  

 
(iv)  the requirement for non-residential uses is limited to the ground floor of buildings, and in 

no case represents a requirement that more than thirty-three percent of the floor area of a 
building, lot, or project must be for non-residential uses;  

 
(v)  the requirement for non-residential uses does not preclude a minimum of three residential 

dwelling units per lot;  
 
(vi)  the requirement for non-residential uses allows a broad mix of non-residential uses as-of-

right in keeping with the nature of the area; and  
 
(vii)  there are no minimum parking requirements associated with the non-residential uses 

allowed as of right.  
 

An MBTA community asking to reduce the unit capacity requirement for its multi-family zoning 
district(s) based on the unit capacity for one or more mixed-use development districts shall submit to 
EOHLC, on a form to be provided by EOHLC, a request for a determination that the mixed-use 
development district is in an eligible location meeting the requirements of subparagraph (i).  This 
request must be submitted at least 90 days prior to the vote of the MBTA community’s legislative body.  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
224



11 

An MBTA community also may submit a broader inquiry as to Section 3A compliance in accordance 
with section 9(b).  EOHLC shall respond prior to the vote of the MBTA community’s legislative body if 
the request is timely submitted. 

 
In any community with both a multi-family zoning district and a mixed-use development district 

that meets these considerations, the unit capacity requirement for the multi-family zoning district listed 
in Appendix I shall be reduced by the lesser of  

 
(i)  the unit capacity of residential dwelling units in the mixed-use development district or 

subdistrict (as calculated by EOHLC using a methodology similar to that in section 5(d) 
which takes into account the impact of non-residential uses), or  

 
(ii)  twenty five percent of the unit capacity requirement listed in Appendix I.  This 

consideration shall not affect the minimum land area acreage or contiguity requirements 
for a multi-family zoning district otherwise required by these Guidelines.   

 
cd. Methodology for determining a multi-family zoning district’s multi-family unit capacity 

 
MBTA communities seeking a determination of compliance must use the DHCDEOHLC 

compliance model to provide an estimate of the number of multi-family housing units that can be 
developed as of right within the multi-family zoning district.  The multi-family unit capacity of an 
existing or proposed district shall be calculated using the unit capacity  worksheet described in 
Appendix 2.   This worksheet produces an estimate of a district’s multi-family unit capacity using inputs 
such as the amount of developable land in the district, the dimensional requirements applicable to lots 
and buildings (including, for example, height limitations, lot coverage limitations, and maximum floor 
area ratio), and the parking space requirements applicable to multi-family uses.   

 
Minimum unit capacity is a measure of whether a multi-family zoning district is of a reasonable 

size, not a requirement to produce housing units.  Nothing in Section 3A or these guidelines should be 
interpreted as a mandate to construct a specified number of housing units, nor as a housing production 
target.  Demonstrating compliance with the minimum multi-family unit capacity requires only that an 
MBTA community show that the zoning allows multi-family housing as of right and that a sufficient 
number of multi-family housing units could be added to or replace existing uses and structures over 
time—even though such additions or replacements may be unlikely to occur soon.   

 
If an MBTA community has two or more zoning districts in which multi-family housing is 

allowed as of right, then two or more districts may be considered cumulatively to meet the minimum 
land area and minimum multi-family unit capacity requirements, as long as each district independently 
complies with Section 3A’s other requirements. 

 
ed. Water and wastewater infrastructure within the multi-family zoning district 

 
MBTA communities are encouraged to consider the availability of water and wastewater 

infrastructure when selecting the location of a new multi-family zoning district.  But compliance with 
Section 3A does not require a municipality to install new water or wastewater infrastructure, or add to 
the capacity of existing infrastructure, to accommodate future multi-family housing production within 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
225



12 

the multi-family zoning district.  In most cases, multi-family housing can be created using private septic 
and wastewater treatment systems that meet state environmental standards.  Where public systems 
currently exist, but capacity is limited, private developers may be able to support the cost of necessary 
water and sewer extensions.  While the zoning must allow for gross average density of at least 15 units 
per acre, there may be other legal or practical limitations, including lack of infrastructure or 
infrastructure capacity, that result in actual housing production at lower density than the zoning allows. 
 

The multi-family unit capacity analysis does not need to take into consideration limitations on 
development resulting from existing water or wastewater infrastructure within the multi-family zoning 
district, or, in areas not served by public sewer, any applicable limitations under title 5 of the state 
environmental code.  For purposes of the unit capacity analysis, it is assumed that housing developers 
will design projects that work within existing water and wastewater constraints, and that developers, the 
municipality, or the Commonwealth will provide funding for infrastructure upgrades as needed for 
individual projects.  

 
6. Minimum Gross Density 

 
Section 3A expressly requires that a multi-family zoning district—not just the individual lots of 

land within the district—must have a minimum gross density of 15 units per acre, subject to any further 
limitations imposed by section 40 of chapter 131 and title 5 of the state environmental code established 
pursuant to section 13 of chapter 21A.  The Zoning Act defines “gross density” as “a units-per-acre 
density measurement that includes land occupied by public rights-of-way and any recreational, civic, 
commercial and other nonresidential uses.” 
 

a. District-wide gross density 
 
To meet the district-wide gross density requirement, the dimensional restrictions and parking 

requirements for the multi-family zoning district must allow for a gross density of 15 units per acre of 
land within the district.  By way of example, to meet that requirement for a 40-acre multi-family zoning 
district, the zoning must allow for at least 15 multi-family units per acre, or a total of at least 600 multi-
family units.   

 
For purposes of determining compliance with Section 3A’s gross density requirement, the 

DHCDEOHLC compliance model will not count in the denominator any excluded land located within 
the multi-family zoning district, except public rights-of-way, private rights-of-way, and publicly-owned 
land used for recreational, civic, commercial, and other nonresidential uses.  This method of calculating 
minimum gross density respects the Zoning Act’s definition of gross density—“a units-per-acre density 
measurement that includes land occupied by public rights-of-way and any recreational, civic, 
commercial and other nonresidential uses”—while making it unnecessary to draw patchwork multi-
family zoning districts that carve out wetlands and other types of excluded land that are not developed or 
developable. 

 
b. Achieving district-wide gross density by sub-districts 
 
Zoning ordinances and by-laws typically limit the unit density on individual lots.  To comply 

with Section 3A’s gross density requirement, an MBTA community may establish reasonable sub-

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
226



13 

districts within a multi-family zoning district, with different density limits for each sub-district, provided 
that the gross density for the district as a whole meets the statutory requirement of not less than 15 
multi-family units per acre.  DHCDEOHLC will review sub-districts to ensure that the density allowed 
as of right in each sub-district is reasonable and not intended to frustrate the purpose of Section 3A by 
allowing projects of a such high density that they are not likely to be constructed. 

 
 c. Wetland and septic considerations relating to density 

 
Section 3A provides that a district of reasonable size shall have a minimum gross density of 15 

units per acre, “subject to any further limitations imposed by section 40 of chapter 131 and title 5 of the 
state environmental code established pursuant to section 13 of chapter 21A.”  This directive means that 
even though the zoning district must permit 15 units per acre as of right, any multi-family housing 
produced within the district is subject to, and must comply with, the state wetlands protection act and 
title 5 of the state environmental code—even if such compliance means a proposed project will be less 
dense than 15 units per acre. 
 
7. Determining Suitability for Families with Children 
 

Section 3A states that a compliant multi-family zoning district must allow multi-family housing 
as of right, and that “such multi-family housing shall be without age restrictions and shall be suitable for 
families with children.”  DHCDEOHLC will deem a multi-family zoning district to comply with these 
requirements as long as the zoning does not require multi-family uses to include units with age 
restrictions, and does not limit or restrict the size of the units, cap the number of bedrooms, the size of 
bedrooms, or the number of occupants, or impose a minimum age of occupants.  Limits, if any, on the 
size of units or number of bedrooms established by state law or regulation are not relevant to Section 3A 
or to determinations of compliance made pursuant to these guidelines. 
 
8. Location of Districts 
 

a. General rule for determining the applicability of Section 3A’s location requirement  
 

Section 3A states that a compliant multi-family zoning district shall “be located not more than 
0.5 miles from a commuter rail station, subway station, ferry terminal or bus station, if applicable.”  
When an MBTA community has only a small amount of transit station area within its boundaries, it may 
not be possible or practical to locate all of the multi-family zoning district within 0.5 miles of a transit 
station.  Transit station area may not be a practical location for a multi-family zoning district if it does 
not include developable land where multi-family housing can actually be constructed.  Therefore, for 
purposes of determining compliance with Section 3A, DHCDEOHLC will consider the statute’s location 
requirement to be “applicable” to a particular MBTA community only if that community has within its 
borders at least 100 acres of developable station area.  DHCDEOHLC will require more or less of the 
multi-family zoning district to be located within transit station areas depending on how much total 
developable station area is in that community, as shown on Table 2: 
  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
227



14 

 
Table 2. 

Total developable station area within  
the MBTA community (acres) 

 

Portion of the multi-family zoning district  
that must be within a transit station area 

0-100 0% 
101-250 20% 
251-400 40% 
401-600 50% 
601-800 75% 

801+ 90% 
 
 The percentages specified in this table apply to both the minimum land area and the minimum 
multi-family unit capacity.  For example, in an MBTA community that has a total of 500 acres of transit 
station area within its boundaries, a multi-family zoning district will comply with Section 3A’s location 
requirement if at least 50 percent of the district’s minimum land area is located within the transit station 
area, and at least 50 percent of the district’s minimum multi-family unit capacity is located within the 
transit station area. 
 

A community with transit station areas associated with more than one transit station may locate 
the multi-family zoning district in any of the transit station areas.  For example, a rapid transit 
community with transit station area around a subway station in one part of town, and transit station area 
around a commuter rail station in another part of town, may locate its multi-family zoning district in 
either or both transit station areas. 

 
b. MBTA communities with limited or no transit station area 

 
When an MBTA community has less than 100 acres of developable station area within its 

boundaries, the MBTA community may locate the multi-family zoning district anywhere within its 
boundaries.  To encourage transit-oriented multi-family housing consistent with the general intent of 
Section 3A, MBTA communities are encouraged to consider locating the multi-family zoning district in 
an area with reasonable access to a transit station based on existing street patterns, pedestrian 
connections, and bicycle lanes, or in an area that qualifies as an “eligible location” as defined in Chapter 
40A—for example, near an existing downtown or village center, near a regional transit authority bus 
stop or line, or in a location with existing under-utilized facilities that can be redeveloped into new 
multi-family housing.   
 

c. General guidance on district location applicable to all MBTA communities 
 

When choosing the location of a new multi-family zoning district, every MBTA community 
should consider how much of a proposed district is sensitive land on which permitting requirements and 
other considerations could make it challenging or inadvisable to construct multi-family housing.  For 
example, an MBTA community may want to avoid including in a multi-family zoning district areas that 
are subject to flooding, or are known habitat for rare or threatened species, or have prime agricultural 
soils in active agricultural use.   
  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
228



15 

 
9. Determinations of Compliance 

 
 Section 3A provides that any MBTA community that fails to comply with Section 3A’s 
requirements will be ineligible for funding from any of the listed funding sources.  DHCDEOHLC will 
make determinations of compliance with Section 3A in accordance with these guidelines to inform state 
agency decisions on which MBTA communities are eligible to receive funding from the listed funding 
sources.  Determinations of compliance also may inform funding decisions by EOHED, DHCD, the 
MBTA and other state agencies which consider local housing policies when evaluating applications for 
discretionary grant programs, or making other discretionary funding decisions.   The following 
discretionary grant programs will take compliance with Section 3A into consideration when making 
grant award recommendations:   
 

i. Community Planning Grants, EOHLC,  
ii. Massachusetts Downtown Initiative, EOED,  

iii. Urban Agenda, EOED,  
iv. Rural and Small Town Development Fund, EOED,  
v. Brownfields Redevelopment Fund, MassDevelopment,  

vi. Site Readiness Program, MassDevelopment,  
vii. Underutilized Properties Program, MassDevelopment,  

viii. Collaborative Workspace Program, MassDevelopment,  
ix. Real Estate Services Technical Assistance, MassDevelopment,  
x. Commonwealth Places Programs, MassDevelopment,  

xi. Land Use Planning Grants, EOEEA,  
xii. Local Acquisitions for Natural Diversity (LAND) Grants, EOEEA, and  

xiii. Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness (MVP) Planning and Project Grants, EOEEA 

 
Determinations of compliance also may inform other funding decisions by EOED, EOHLC, the MBTA 
and other state agencies which consider local housing policies when evaluating applications for 
discretionary grant programs or making other discretionary funding decisions.    
 
 DHCDEOHLC interprets Section 3A as allowing every MBTA community a reasonable 
opportunity to enact zoning amendments as needed to come into compliance. Accordingly, 
DHCDEOHLC will recognize both interim compliance, which means an MBTA community is taking 
active steps to enact a multi-family zoning district that complies with Section 3A, and district 
compliance, which is achieved when DHCDEOHLC determines that an MBTA community has a multi-
family zoning district that complies with Section 3A.  The requirements for interim and district 
compliance are described in more detail below.    
 
Table 3. 

Transit Category (# of 
municipalities) 

Deadline to Submit 
Action Plan  

 

Deadline to Submit  
District Compliance Application 

Rapid transit community (12) January 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 
Commuter rail community (71) January 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
229



16 

Transit Category (# of 
municipalities) 

Deadline to Submit 
Action Plan  

 

Deadline to Submit  
District Compliance Application 

Adjacent community (58) January 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 
Adjacent small town (34) January 31, 2023 December 31, 2025 

 
a. Process to achieve interim compliance 

 
Many MBTA communities do not currently have a multi-family zoning district of reasonable 

size that complies with the requirements of Section 3A.  Prior to achieving district compliance (but no 
later than the deadlines set forth in Table 3), these MBTA communities can achieve interim compliance 
by taking the following affirmative steps towards the creation of a compliant multi-family zoning 
district.     

 
i. Creation and submission of an action plan.  An MBTA community seeking to achieve 

interim compliance must first submit an action plan on a form to be provided by 
DHCDEOHLC.  An MBTA community action plan must provide information about 
current zoning, past planning for multi-family housing, if any, and potential locations for 
a multi-family zoning district.  The action plan also will require the MBTA community to 
establish a timeline for various actions needed to create a compliant multi-family zoning 
district.    
 

ii. DHCDEOHLC approval of an action plan.  DHCDEOHLC will review each submitted 
action plan for consistency with these guidelines, including but not limited to the 
timelines in Table 3.  If DHCDEOHLC determines that the MBTA community’s action 
plan is reasonable and will lead to district compliance in a timely manner, DHCDEOHLC 
will issue a determination of interim compliance.  DHCDEOHLC may require 
modifications to a proposed action plan prior to approval.   
 

iii. Implementation of the action plan.  After DHCDEOHLC approves an action plan and 
issues a determination of interim compliance, an MBTA community must diligently 
implement the action plan.  DHCDEOHLC may revoke a determination of interim 
compliance if an MBTA community has not made sufficient progress in implementing an 
approved action plan.  DHCDEOHLC and EOHED EOED will review an MBTA 
community’s progress in implementing its action plan prior to making an award of funds 
under the Housing Choice Initiative and Massworks infrastructure program.   
 

iv. Deadlines for submitting action plans.  To achieve interim compliance for grants made 
through the 2023 One Stop Application, action plans must be submitted by no later than 
January 31, 2023.  An MBTA community that does not submit an action plan by that date 
may not receive a DHCDEOHLC determination of interim compliance in time to receive 
an award of funds from the listed funding sources in 2023.  An MBTA community that 
does not achieve interim compliance in time for the 2023 One Stop Application may 
submit an action plan to become eligible for a subsequent round of the One Stop 
Application, provided that an action plan must be submitted by no later than January 31 
of the year in which the MBTA community seeks to establish grant eligibility; and 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
230



17 

provided further that no action plan may be submitted or approved after the applicable 
district compliance application deadline set forth in Table 3.   
  

b. Assistance for communities implementing an action plan.   
 
MBTA communities are encouraged to communicate as needed with DHCDEOHLC staff 

throughout the process of implementing an action plan, and may .  DHCDEOHLC will endeavor to 
respond to inquiries inquire about whether a proposed multi-family zoning district complies with 
Section 3A prior to a vote by the municipal legislative body to create or modify such a district.  Such 
requests shall be made on a form to be provided by DHCDEOHLC. If a request is and should shallbe 
submitted at least 90 days prior to the vote of the legislative body, EOHLC shall respond prior to the 
vote.   

 
c. Requests for determination of district compliance 

 
When an MBTA community believes it has a multi-family zoning district that complies with 

Section 3A, it may request a determination of district compliance from DHCDEOHLC.  Such a request 
may be made for a multi-family zoning district that was in existence on the date that Section 3A became 
law, or for a multi-family zoning district that was created or amended after the enactment of Section 3A.  
In either case, such request shall be made on an application form required by DHCDEOHLC and shall 
include, at a minimum, the following information.  Municipalities will need to submit:  
 

(i) A certified copy of the municipal zoning ordinance or by-law and zoning map, including 
all provisions that relate to uses and structures in the multi-family zoning district. 

(ii) An estimate of multi-family unit capacity using the compliance model. 
(iii) GIS shapefile for the multi-family zoning district. 
(iv) In the case of a by-law enacted by a town, evidence that the clerk has submitted a copy of 

the adopted multi-family zoning district to the office of the Attorney General for approval 
as required by state law, or evidence of the Attorney General’s approval. 

 
After receipt of a request for determination of district compliance, DHCDEOHLC will notify the 

requesting MBTA community within 30 days if additional information is required to process the request.  
Upon reviewing a complete application, DHCDEOHLC will provide the MBTA community a written 
determination either stating that the existing multi-family zoning district complies with Section 3A, or 
identifying the reasons why the multi-family zoning district fails to comply with Section 3A and the 
steps that must be taken to achieve compliance.  An MBTA community that has achieved interim 
compliance prior to requesting a determination of district compliance shall remain in interim compliance 
for the period during which a request for determination of district compliance, with all required 
information, is pending at DHCDEOHLC. 

 
10. Ongoing Obligations; Rescission of a Determination of Compliance 
 

After receiving a determination of compliance, an MBTA community must notify 
DHCDEOHLC in writing of any zoning amendment or proposed zoning amendment that affects the 
compliant multi-family zoning district, or any other by-law, ordinance, rule or regulation that limits the 
development of multi-family housing in the multi-family zoning district.  DHCDEOHLC may rescind a 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
231



18 

determination of district compliance, or require changes to a multi-family zoning district to remain in 
compliance, if DHCDEOHLC determines that:  

 
(i) The MBTA community submitted inaccurate information in its application for a 

determination of compliance; 
(ii) The MBTA community failed to notify DHCDEOHLC of a zoning amendment that 

affects the multi-family zoning district; 
(iii) The MBTA community enacts or amends any by-law or ordinance, or other rule or 

regulation, that materially alters the minimum land area and/or the multi-family unit 
capacity in the multi-family zoning district;  

(iv) A board, authority or official in the MBTA community does not issue permits, or 
otherwise acts or fails to act, to allow construction of a multi-family housing project that 
is allowed as of right in the multi-family zoning district (or any mixed-use zoning 
development district taken into account in determining the required multi-family unit 
capacity in the multi-family zoning district); 

(v) The MBTA community takes other action that causes the multi-family zoning district to 
no longer comply with Section 3A; or 

(vi) An MBTA community with an approved multi-family zoning district has changed transit 
category as a result of a newly opened or decommissioned transit station, or the 
establishment of permanent, regular service at a transit station where there was formerly 
intermittent or event-based service. 

 
11. Changes to MBTA Service 

 
Section 3A applies to the 175 177 MBTA communities identified in section 1A of the Zoning 

Act and section 1 of chapter 161A of the General Laws. When MBTA service changes, the list of 
MBTA communities and/or the transit category assignments of those MBTA communities in Appendix 
1 may change as well.  

 
The transit category assignments identified in Appendix 1 of these guidelines reflect certain 

MBTA service changes that will result from new infrastructure now under construction in connection 
with the South Coast Rail and Green Line Extension projects.  These service changes include the 
opening of new Green Line stations and commuter rail stations, as well as the elimination of regular 
commuter rail service at the Lakeville station.  These changes are scheduled to take effect in all cases a 
year or more before any municipal district compliance deadline.  Affected MBTA communities are 
noted in Appendix 1. 

 
Municipalities that are not now identified as MBTA communities and may be identified as such 

in the future are not addressed in these guidelines or included in Appendix 1.  New MBTA communities 
will be addressed with revisions to Appendix 1, and separate compliance timelines, in the future.  

 
Future changes to Silver Line routes or stations may change district location requirements when 

expanded high-capacity service combined with new facilities creates a bus station where there was not 
one before.  Changes to other bus routes, including the addition or elimination of bus stops or reductions 
or expansions of bus service levels, do not affect the transit categories assigned to MBTA communities 
and will not affect location requirements for multi-family zoning districts.  Any future changes to 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
232



19 

MBTA transit service, transit routes and transit service levels are determined by the MBTA Board of 
Directors consistent with the MBTA’s Service Delivery Policy.   
 
List of Appendices: 

 
Appendix 1:  MBTA Community Categories and Requirements 
Appendix 2:  Compliance Methodology/Model 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
233



1

Town Manager

From: DPW Projects
Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 3:03 PM
To: Robertson, Marissa (EEA)
Cc: Rowden, Michelle (EEA); Runsten, Kara (EEA); Town Manager
Subject: FY24 MVP West Newbury Signed Contract
Attachments: FY24 MVP Action_Contract_Att A_Att B_West Newbury_Town_signed.pdf; FY24 

MVP_CASL_WNewbury Signed.pdf

Hi Marissa, 
A ached are the two signed documents you requested for West Newbury’s FY24 MVP Ac on Grant.  Please let me know 
if you need anything else.  Thank you and have a nice weekend. 
 
Chris ne 
 
 
Christine Wallace, P.E. 
DPW Program and Project Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
978-363-1100 x130 

 
dpwprojects@wnewbury.org 
 

From: Robertson, Marissa (EEA) <Marissa.Robertson2@mass.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 4:04 PM 
To: DPW Projects <dpwprojects@wnewbury.org> 
Cc: Rowden, Michelle (EEA) <Michelle.Rowden@mass.gov>; Runsten, Kara (EEA) <Kara.Runsten@mass.gov> 
Subject: RE: Revised File 
 
Dear Chris ne, 
 
Thank you for finalizing your scope. The document tled “FY24 MVP Ac on_Contract_A  A_A  B_West Newbury” is 
your contract and will need to be signed (e-signature is fine) by the authorizing signatory. The document tled “casl 
form” will need to be completed and notarized. Both documents should be emailed back to us (note: we do not require 
them returned by mail at this me, please retain the original signed copy in your records). These documents should be 
emailed back by Friday, September 1st, 2023. The contract must then be signed by EEA and will be returned to you, 
signaling the start of the contract period. You must receive a countersigned contract back from us before commencing 
with the project. 
 
Please note that we have added a “URL” deliverable to any tasks associated with webpage design. 
 
More informa on about reimbursements and other important informa on will be sent in a “next steps” email soon. 
 
We would kindly ask that you con nue to embargo this great news from any media outlets un l the Commonwealth 
has the opportunity to make a formal announcement in the coming weeks. 
 
Thanks and please let your designated MVP Regional Coordinator (cc’d) know if you have any ques ons. Your RC is also 
standing by to a end the kickoff mee ng as the project gets underway. 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
234



2

 
Best, 
Marissa 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

               

 

 

 

Marissa Robertson, Deputy Director (she/her) 
Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness Program 
MA Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs 
100 Cambridge Street, Suite 900, Boston MA 02114 
Email: Marissa.robertson2@mass.gov | Phone: (617) 352-0186  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
235



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 

(Updated 7/22/2021)  

This form is jointly issued and published by the Office of the Comptroller (CTR), the Executive Office for Administration and Finance (ANF), and the Operational Services 
Division (OSD) as the default contract for all Commonwealth Departments when another form is not prescribed by regulation or policy.  The Commonwealth deems void any changes made 
on or by attachment (in the form of addendum, engagement letters, contract forms or invoice terms) to the terms in this published form or to the Standard Contract Form Instructions 
and Contractor Certifications, the Commonwealth Terms and Conditions for Human and Social Services or the Commonwealth IT Terms and Conditions which are incorporated 
by reference herein.  Additional non-conflicting terms may be added by Attachment. Contractors are required to access published forms at CTR Forms: https://www.macomptroller.org/forms.  
Forms are also posted at OSD Forms: https://www.mass.gov/lists/osd-forms.  
CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME: Town of West Newbury  
(and d/b/a):   

COMMONWEALTH DEPARTMENT NAME: Executive Office of Energy & Environmental 
Affairs  
MMARS Department Code:  ENV 

Legal Address: (W-9, W-4): Town Office, 381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA 
01985 

Business Mailing Address:  100 Cambridge St – Suite 900 Boston, MA 02114  

Contract Manager: Christine Wallace, DPW 
Program & Project Manager  

Phone: (978) 363-1100 x130  Billing Address (if different):  

E-Mail: dpwprojects@wnewbury.org Fax: Contract Manager:  Kara Runsten Phone: 617-312-1594 
Contractor Vendor Code:  VC E-Mail:  kara.runsten@mass.gov Fax:  
Vendor Code Address ID (e.g. “AD001”):   AD     .  
(Note: The Address ID must be set up for EFT payments.) 

MMARS Doc ID(s):  

RFR/Procurement or Other ID Number: ENV 24 MVP 01 

_X__   NEW CONTRACT 
PROCUREMENT OR EXCEPTION TYPE: (Check one option only) 
__ Statewide Contract (OSD or an OSD-designated Department)  
__ Collective Purchase (Attach OSD approval, scope, budget)  
_X_ Department Procurement (includes all Grants - 815 CMR 2.00) (Solicitation 

Notice or RFR, and Response or other procurement supporting documentation) 
__ Emergency Contract (Attach justification for emergency, scope, budget) 
__ Contract Employee (Attach Employment Status Form, scope, budget) 
__ Other Procurement Exception (Attach authorizing language, legislation with 

specific exemption or earmark, and exception justification, scope and budget) 

___  CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
Enter Current Contract End Date Prior to Amendment:             , 20       . 
Enter Amendment Amount: $                 . (or “no change”)  
AMENDMENT TYPE: (Check one option only. Attach details of amendment changes.) 
__ Amendment to Date, Scope or Budget (Attach updated scope and budget)  
__ Interim Contract (Attach justification for Interim Contract and updated scope/budget) 
__ Contract Employee (Attach any updates to scope or budget) 
__ Other Procurement Exception (Attach authorizing language/justification and updated 

scope and budget) 
The Standard Contract Form Instructions and Contractor Certifications and the following Commonwealth Terms and Conditions document are incorporated by reference 
into this Contract and are legally binding: (Check ONE option):  _X_ Commonwealth Terms and Conditions __ Commonwealth Terms and Conditions For Human and Social 
Services __ Commonwealth IT Terms and Conditions   
COMPENSATION: (Check ONE option): The Department certifies that payments for authorized performance accepted in accordance with the terms of this Contract will be supported 
in the state accounting system by sufficient appropriations or other non-appropriated funds, subject to intercept for Commonwealth owed debts under 815 CMR 9.00.   
__ Rate Contract. (No Maximum Obligation)  Attach details of all rates, units, calculations, conditions or terms and any changes if rates or terms are being amended.) 
_X_ Maximum Obligation Contract.  Enter total maximum obligation for total duration of this contract (or new total if Contract is being amended). $150,000  

PROMPT PAYMENT DISCOUNTS (PPD):  Commonwealth payments are issued through EFT 45 days from invoice receipt. Contractors requesting accelerated payments must identify 
a PPD as follows:  Payment issued within 10 days __% PPD; Payment issued within 15 days __ % PPD; Payment issued within 20 days __ % PPD; Payment issued within 30 days 
__% PPD.  If PPD percentages are left blank, identify reason: _X_agree to standard 45 day cycle __ statutory/legal or Ready Payments (M.G.L. c. 29, § 23A); __ only initial payment 
(subsequent payments scheduled to support standard EFT 45 day payment cycle. See Prompt Pay Discounts Policy.) 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE or REASON FOR AMENDMENT: (Enter the Contract title, purpose, fiscal year(s) and a detailed description of the scope of 
performance or what is being amended for a Contract Amendment.  Attach all supporting documentation and justifications.)  
To complete the project entitled “Evaluating Vulnerabilities and Options to Promote Resiliency: River Road and Environs” as outlined in Attachment A and Attachment B. 
ANTICIPATED START DATE:  (Complete ONE option only) The Department and Contractor certify for this Contract, or Contract Amendment, that Contract obligations:  
_X_ 1. may be incurred as of the Effective Date (latest signature date below) and no obligations have been incurred prior to the Effective Date.   
__ 2. may be incurred as of    , 20      , a date LATER than the Effective Date below and no obligations have been incurred prior to the Effective Date. 
__ 3. were incurred as of     , 20       , a date PRIOR to the Effective Date below, and the parties agree that payments for any obligations incurred prior to the Effective Date are 

authorized to be made either as settlement payments or as authorized reimbursement payments, and that the details and circumstances of all obligations under this Contract are 
attached and incorporated into this Contract.  Acceptance of payments forever releases the Commonwealth from further claims related to these obligations.   

CONTRACT END DATE:  Contract performance shall terminate as of     June 30          , 2024     , with no new obligations being incurred after this date unless the Contract is properly 
amended, provided that the terms of this Contract and performance expectations and obligations shall survive its termination for the purpose of resolving any claim or dispute, for 
completing any negotiated terms and warranties, to allow any close out or transition performance, reporting, invoicing or final payments, or during any lapse between amendments. 

CERTIFICATIONS:  Notwithstanding verbal or other representations by the parties, the “Effective Date” of this Contract or Amendment shall be the latest date that this Contract or 
Amendment has been executed by an authorized signatory of the Contractor, the Department, or a later Contract or Amendment Start Date specified above, subject to any required 
approvals.  The Contractor certifies that they have accessed and reviewed all documents incorporated by reference as electronically published and the Contractor makes all certifications 
required under the Standard Contract Form Instructions and Contractor Certifications under the pains and penalties of perjury, and further agrees to provide any required documentation 
upon request to support compliance, and agrees that all terms governing performance of this Contract and doing business in Massachusetts are attached or incorporated by reference 
herein according to the following hierarchy of document precedence, the applicable Commonwealth Terms and Conditions, this Standard Contract Form, the Standard Contract Form 
Instructions and Contractor Certifications, the Request for Response (RFR) or other solicitation, the Contractor’s Response (excluding any language stricken by a Department as 
unacceptable, and additional negotiated terms, provided that additional negotiated terms will take precedence over the relevant terms in the RFR and the Contractor’s Response only if 
made using the process outlined in 801 CMR 21.07, incorporated herein, provided that any amended RFR or Response terms result in best value, lower costs, or a more cost effective 
Contract. 
AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 

X:     .   Date:     . 
(Signature and Date Must Be Captured At Time of Signature) 

Print Name:    . 
Print Title:    . 

AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE FOR THE COMMONWEALTH: 

X:     .   Date:    . 
(Signature and Date Must Be Captured At Time of Signature) 

Print Name:     . 
Print Title:    . 

978-363-1826

Angus Jennings
Town Manager

8/18/2023

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
236

http://www.macomptroller.org/wp-content/uploads/instructions_standard-contract-form.pdf
http://www.macomptroller.org/wp-content/uploads/instructions_standard-contract-form.pdf
http://www.macomptroller.org/wp-content/uploads/form_commonwealth-terms-and-conditions-for-human-and-social-services.pdf
http://www.macomptroller.org/wp-content/uploads/form_commonwealth-terms-and-conditions-for-information-technology.pdf
https://www.macomptroller.org/forms
https://www.mass.gov/lists/osd-forms
https://www.mass.gov/law-library/815-cmr
http://www.macomptroller.org/wp-content/uploads/form_commonwealth-terms-and-conditions.pdf
http://www.macomptroller.org/wp-content/uploads/form_commonwealth-terms-and-conditions-for-human-and-social-services.pdf
http://www.macomptroller.org/wp-content/uploads/form_commonwealth-terms-and-conditions-for-human-and-social-services.pdf
http://www.macomptroller.org/wp-content/uploads/form_commonwealth-terms-and-conditions-for-information-technology.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/law-library/815-cmr
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter29/Section23A
https://www.mass.gov/law-library/801-cmr


Scope of Services (Attachment A) 
FY24 EEA Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness Program – Action Grant 

Town of West Newbury 
July 2023 

Grantee: 
Name: Christine Wallace, DPW Program & Project Manager 
Address: Town Office, 381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA 01985 
Phone: (978) 363-1100 x130 
Email: dpwprojects@wnewbury.org 

Project Title: Evaluating Vulnerabilities and Options to Promote Resiliency: River Road and 
Environs 

Project Summary: This project will analyze vulnerabilities and potential solutions to flood risk 
from the Merrimack River at River Road and environs. It includes public engagement activities, 
meetings, and outreach to inform and engage citizens and town officials; an existing 
conditions survey of the areas susceptible to Merrimack River flooding; a study of existing 
culverts, and options for shoreline stabilization and infrastructure flood adaptation.

Scope: 
The tasks described in Attachment B will be performed according to the agreed-upon schedule 
and budget.  

Funding Distribution: 
Funding will be distributed by reimbursement upon completion of tasks outlined in 
Attachment B and submission of invoices. Costs eligible for reimbursement include all 
approved project costs incurred between the contract execution date and the contract 
termination date. Any amendments to this attachment or Attachment B must be approved by 
EEA prior to commencement of such activities. All grant funds must be spent according to the 
fiscal year breakdown below (before June 30, 2024, for FY24 funds and before June 30, 2025, 
for FY25 funds, as applicable). Please reference the RFR “ENV 24 MVP 01” for additional 
details on what is required for reimbursement and contact your MVP regional coordinator with 
any questions. 

FY24 - $150,000 

To receive grant funding, the applicant must agree to the fiscal requirements of the program 
by providing a statement from the authorized signatory of the organization acknowledging and 
accepting the following: 

• The Grantee commits to match 25% (or 10% if Grantee is listed in Attachment N of
the RFR) of the total project cost using cash or in-kind contributions (or a
combination of the two);

• The Grantee acknowledges that the funding under this grant will be provided on a
reimbursement basis; and

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
237



• All matching funds provided by the Grantee or direct project partners have been
approved and/or appropriated (or are in the process of being approved).

Additional details: 
• Massachusetts sales tax is not a reimbursable expense.
• Work done prior to the project start date (the date the contract is issued and signed

by the Commonwealth’s Department Authorized Signatory) shall NOT be
reimbursed. No funds will be granted for work performed after the contract
termination date.

• For work completed before June 30, 2024, requests for reimbursement are due by
July 31, 2024. For work completed between July 1, 2024 and June 30, 2025,
requests for reimbursement are due by July 31, 2025.

• Any FY24 funds that are not spent by June 30, 2024 do not roll over to the next
fiscal year and will be forfeited.

As tasks are completed and deliverables are submitted to, reviewed, and approved by EEA, the 
Grantee must submit a Reimbursement Package (template to be provided) containing the 
following items: 

1. A signed letter (on city or town letterhead) from the Grantee requesting reimbursement.
2. All relevant invoices, including those from subcontractors. Invoices must itemize costs

consistent with the agreed-upon scope of work. Invoices must include sufficient
information for EEA to determine that the services were performed and/or products were
received, and that the invoiced items meet all contractual performance requirements.

3. A detailed breakdown of the required match for the task. For in-kind services, include
sufficient details to demonstrate the total amounts of match contributed, and as
appropriate, a list of personnel, hours worked, hourly rates, etc.

4. A short case study and a summary PowerPoint slide with project images (due at the end
of the project, templates to be provided).

Reimbursement Packages should be submitted as tasks are completed with the monthly 
progress report, and reflect work performed according to the schedule of deliverables 
included in the project budget.  Reimbursement is generally made within 45 days after 
approval of a reimbursement package. Reimbursement packages are due before July 31, 2024 
for FY24 funds and before July 31, 2025 for FY25 funds. 

EEA will retain a minimum of ten percent (10%) of awarded funds until all contract provisions 
are satisfied and all deliverables have been received.  

Progress Reporting: 
To help EEA stay current on work being conducted over the course of the project, the Grantee 
will submit a brief monthly progress report (template to be provided), due by the 30th of the 
month, including:  

• Significant activities that have occurred to show progress toward deliverables

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
238



• Whether a change in schedule or scope of work is anticipated
• Whether costs are anticipated to be overrun or underrun
• If additional assistance from EEA or partners is needed
• Invoices for work completed to date

The Grantee must be in regular communication with their MVP Regional Coordinator (RC) 
throughout the course of the project and submit all reporting documentation to the RC. 

Changes in Scope, Schedule, or Budget: 
The Grantee shall inform their RC as soon as possible if any change in the schedule or scope 
(including tasks and deliverables) is needed or if the Grantee expects an underrun or overrun of 
the budget, so that EEA can work with the Grantee to take any necessary steps. The RC will 
inform the Grantee of any necessary contract amendments or if the adjustment is minor enough 
to only require written approval from EEA. If circumstances beyond the Grantee’s control make 
an extension or new split in funding between FY24 and FY25 necessary—please notify EEA no 
later than May 1st (so that we may discuss a potential amendment before the end of the fiscal 
year). These requests will be considered on a case-by-case basis and may not be approved.  

Regulatory Compliance 
Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable state, federal, and local laws and ordinances. Such 
compliance is a condition of this grant.  

Additional Terms 
Receipt of MVP funding shall not be considered state approval of the project for any necessary 
state, federal, or local permits, nor provide any indication of the project’s competitiveness for 
future funding phases.  

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
239



Tasks to be Completed by June 30, 2024

Task 1: Project Kick-off, Management, and Reporting

Sub-task 1.1 Internal Kick-off Meeting with Town, EEA, and Consultant (GEI Task 1.1) Meeting notes, sign-in sheet 9/1/2023 9/30/2023 1,500.00$  440.00$  1,000.00$  1,440.00$  $2,940.00

Sub-task 1.2 Monthly progress reports FY24
Monthly progress reports submitted by the 30th of each 
month of the grant period to your MVP Regional 
Coordinator 9/1/2023 6/30/2024 -$  2,800.00$  -$  2,800.00$  $2,800.00

Sub-task 1.3  Monthly Coordination at Climate Change Resiliency Committee (CCRC) Meetings Meeting Notes, Sign-in Sheet 9/1/2023 6/30/2024 -$  7,200.00$  -$  7,200.00$  $7,200.00
Sub-task 1.4  Project Case Study

Final Case Study Report, PowerPoint slide, project photos 4/1/2024 6/30/2024 -$  360.00$  -$  360.00$  $360.00

Total Task 1 Cost  $ 1,500.00 10,800.00$  1,000.00$  11,800.00$              $13,300.00

Task 2:  Public Involvement and Community Engagement in FY24

Sub-task 2.1 Print and Digital Media Development (GEI Task 1.2)

Webpage development - webpage URL, West Newbury 
joining the Coastal Flood Community Science Project, 
copies of signage along River Road and Coffin Street, 
copies of media announcements. 9/1/2023 12/31/2023 11,700.00$  600.00$  3,400.00$  4,000.00$  $15,700.00

Sub-task 2.2 Community Engagement at Town Summit (GEI Task 1.3a) Presentation slides, recording of event 9/1/2023 10/31/2023 3,562.50$  600.00$  1,187.50$  1,787.50$  $5,350.00
Sub-task 2.3 Drone Public Event (included in Task 3.2 below, GEI Task 2.2) Photos,short videos of event, sign-in sheet 10/1/2023 12/31/2023 -$  600.00$  -$  600.00$  $600.00
Sub-task 2.4 Community Virtual Education Event (GEI Task 1.3b) Presentation slides, recording of event, sign-in sheet 11/1/2023 12/31/2023 3,562.50$  600.00$  1,187.50$  1,787.50$  $5,350.00
Sub-task 2.5 Planning Forward Event for Local Officials (GEI Task 4) Presentation slides, sign in sheet 1/1/2024 3/31/2024 9,750.00$  4,100.00$  3,250.00$  7,350.00$  $17,100.00

Sub-task 2.6 CCRC Field Trips to River - may include kayak tour, river tour with guide, guided walks

Meeting notes, photos, sign-in sheet. Tour given by 
Resiliency Committee members focusing on bank erosion 
and nature-based solutions to erosion (submerged 
aquatics, wetland veg, natural rock formations). 9/1/2023 6/30/2024 750.00$  3,080.00$  250.00$  3,330.00$  $4,080.00

Sub-task 2.7 G.A.R. Library Events - may include read up a storm, storytime, crafts, book discussions
Copies of publicity materials, meeting notes, photos, sign-i
sheet.  Library events with usual publicity on Town & 
Library webpages, social media, etc 9/1/2023 6/30/2024 -$  2,100.00$  -$  2,100.00$  $2,100.00

Sub-task 2.8 ArcGIS StoryMap Development (GEI Task 6) Webpage update with StoryMap 1/1/2024 3/31/2024 8,025.00$  600.00$  2,675.00$  3,275.00$  $11,300.00
Sub-task 2.9 Community Site Visit (GEI Task 9.1) Photos of Event 5/1/2024 6/30/2024 6,637.50$  920.00$  2,212.50$  3,132.50$  $9,770.00
Sub-task 2.10 Final Public Meeting (GEI Task 9.2) Presentation slides, recording of event 5/1/2024 6/30/2024 6,637.50$  1,000.00$  2,212.50$  3,212.50$  $9,850.00

Total Task 2 Cost  $ 50,625.00 14,200.00$  16,375.00$  30,575.00$              $81,200.00

Task 3:   Existing Conditions of Shoreline Evaluation and Drone Survey (GEI Task 2)

Sub-task 3.1 Existing Conditions of Shoreline Evaluation (GEI Task 2.1) Technical memo 9/1/2023 1/31/2024 8,550.00$  -$  2,850.00$  2,850.00$  $11,400.00
Sub-task 3.2 Drone Survey, including Drone Public Event (GEI Task 2.2) Digital files of drone footage 9/1/2023 1/31/2024 4,500.00$  -$  1,500.00$  1,500.00$  $6,000.00

Total Task 3 Cost  $ 13,050.00 -$  4,350.00$  4,350.00$  $17,400.00

Task 4: Existing Conditions of Culverts Survey (GEI Task 3)

Sub-task 4.1 Existing Conditions of Culverts Survey (GEI Task 3) Technical memo 9/1/2023 1/31/2024 7,275.00$  2,425.00$  2,425.00$  $9,700.00

Total Task 4 Cost  $ 7,275.00 -$  2,425.00$  2,425.00$  $9,700.00

Task 5: Flood Vulnerability Study (GEI Task 5)

Sub-task 5.1 GIS Data Compilation (GEI task 5.1) Digital GIS files 9/1/2023 3/31/2024 3,225.00$  -$  1,075.00$  1,075.00$  $4,300.00
Sub-task 5.2 Merrimack River Flood Risk Analysis (GEI Task 5.2) Report with inundation maps 9/1/2023 3/31/2024 20,775.00$  -$  6,925.00$  6,925.00$  $27,700.00
Sub-task 5.3 River Road Flood Risk Analysis (GEI Task 5.3) Technical memo 9/1/2023 3/31/2024 15,225.00$  -$  5,075.00$  5,075.00$  $20,300.00

Total Task 5 Cost  $ 39,225.00 -$  13,075.00$  13,075.00$              $52,300.00
Task 6:   Shoreline Stabilization Options and Locations (GEI Task 7)

Sub-task 6.1 Shoreline Stabilization Options and Locations (GEI Task 7) Technical memo 2/1/2024 5/31/2024 11,700.00$  -$  3,900.00$  3,900.00$  $15,600.00

Total Task 6 Cost  $ 11,700.00 -$  3,900.00$  3,900.00$  $15,600.00

Task 7:   Infrastructure Flood Adaptation Options (GEI Task 8)

Sub-task 7.1 Infrastructure Flood Adaptation Options (GEI Task 8) Technical memo 2/1/2024 5/31/2024 13,500.00$  -$  4,500.00$  4,500.00$  $18,000.00

Total Task 7 Cost  $ 13,500.00 -$  4,500.00$  4,500.00$  $18,000.00

Task 8: Final Report and Continuing Webpage Development (GEI Task 10)

Sub-task 8.1 Final Report (GEI Task 10.1) Draft Report, Final Report 4/1/2024 6/30/2024 11,475.00$  -$  3,825.00$  3,825.00$  $15,300.00
Sub-task 8.2 Continuing Webpage Development (GEI Task 10.2) Updated Webpage URL 4/1/2024 6/30/2024 1,650.00$  -$  550.00$  550.00$  $2,200.00

Total Task 8 Cost  $ 13,125.00 -$  4,375.00$  4,375.00$  $17,500.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST FY24  $            150,000.00  $          25,000.00  $           50,000.00  $         75,000.00  $         225,000.00 

TOTAL PROJECT COST OVERALL  $            150,000.00  $          25,000.00  $           50,000.00  $         75,000.00  $         225,000.00 

*Note: In-Kind Match is a minimum estimate only.  Full costs with specific pay rates and documented hours will be tracked throughout the project. Match 33.33%

Total Grant In-Kind Match* Cash Match Total Match

West Newbury 
River Road: Evaluating Vulnerabilities and Options to Promote Resiliency  

FY24 MVP Action Grant Scope/Budget

Deliverables
Approximate Start 

Date
Approximate End 

Date
Project Task Description Total Project Cost

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
240



1

Town Manager

From: Merrill, Pamela (DEP) <pamela.merrill@mass.gov>
Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 2:52 PM
To: Conservation; Paul Sevigny; Town Manager; 
Subject: ACCEPTANCE OF APPEAL & NOTICE OF SITE VISIT- 0 Main St, West Newbury (DEP File #

078-0763)
Attachments: ACCEPTANCE OF APPEAL & SV LTR, 0 Main Street, West Newbury #078-0763.pdf

Importance: High

Good a ernoon, all, 

A ached please the Acceptance of Appeal & No ce of Site Visit le er regarding the project located off Main 
Street, West Newbury.   In prepara on of issuing a Superseding Order of Condi ons (“SOC”), the MassDEP 
Wetlands Program has scheduled a site visit at 11:30 a.m. on Wednesday, September 6, 2023. 

Should you have any ques ons about the upcoming site visit, please do not hesitate to contact me at 
857.772.6982 or by email.    

Best,  
Pam 
 
 
Pamela Merrill  
Environmental Analyst  
MassDEP Wetlands Program  
150 Presidential Way, Woburn, MA  01801 
c:  857.772.6982 
pamela.merrill@mass.gov  
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
241



 

 
 
 

 

 

Maura T. Healey 
Governor 
 
Kimberley Driscoll 
Lieutenant Governor 
 

Rebecca L. Tepper 
Secretary 

 
Bonnie Heiple 
Commissioner 

 

This information is available in alternate format. Please contact Melixza Esenyie at 617-626-1282. 
TTY# MassRelay Service 1-800-439-2370 
MassDEP Website: www.mass.gov/dep 

Printed on Recycled Paper 

 
 

VIA EMAIL      August 18, 2023 
 
 
Ms. Sandra Raymond     RE:   WETLANDS/WEST NEWBURY 

  DEP File #078-0763 
West Newbury, MA  01985  0 Main Street   

  ACCEPTANCE OF APPEAL  
        & NOTICE OF SITE VISIT 
     
Dear Ms. Raymond:  
 
The Northeast Regional Office of the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Wetlands 
Program (“MassDEP”) is in receipt of your appeal that was filed on July 25, 2023, regarding the 
project referenced above, and has accepted your appeal.  In accordance with the provisions of the 
Wetlands Protection Act, Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 131, § 40, and in preparation for 
the issuance of a Superseding Order of Conditions (“SOC”), MassDEP has scheduled a site visit 
on Wednesday, June 6, 2023, at 11:30 a.m. to review the site and informally discuss the issues 
relevant to this appeal.  The purpose of this site visit is to determine if the areas are significant to 
the interests of the Wetlands Protection Act and to informally discuss those issues relevant to this 
appeal.   
 
No activity shall commence on any portion of the project site subject to the jurisdiction of 
M.G.L. Chapter 131, § 40, until MassDEP issues a SOC, and all appeal periods have elapsed.   
 
Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact by email at 
pamela.merrill@mass.gov. 
 
Sincerely,                                          

 
Pamela A. Merrill 
Environmental Analyst 
Wetlands Program- NERO 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
242



0 Main Street, West Newbury 
DEP File No.: 078-0763 
Acceptance of Appeal & Notice of Site Visit 
 
 

e-cc: Angus Jennings, Town Manager, Town of West Newbury, Town Hall, 381 Main Street, 
West Newbury, MA  01985  townmanager@wnewbury.org 

 Paul Sevigny, Town of West Newbury Board of Health, Town Hall, 381 Main Street, 
West Newbury, MA  01985  psevigny@wnewbury.org 

 West Newbury Conservation Commission, Town Hall, Town Hall, 381 Main Street, 
West Newbury, MA  01985  conservation@wnewbury.org 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
243



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
244



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
245



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
246



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
247



 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
248



1

Town Manager

From: Town Manager
Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 4:05 PM
To: Mark Marlowe; WNWater
Cc: Walsh, Jennifer; Bob Janes ; Jack Duggan 

 Corcoran, Larry; Selectboard
Subject: Correspondence w MassDOR re water budget/revenues

Mark/Jodi/BOWC, 
   Following from last Thursday’s BOWC mtg, it sounds like the BOWC’s intent – in order to ensure FY24 water operating 
budget is fully funded – is to bring forward an article at the Fall STM to reduce the operating budget (and perhaps also to 
authorize transfer from Retained Earnings to cover any remaining gap).  The approved FY24 water budget is ~$1.06M. 
   I asked Jenny to reach out to MassDOR just to be sure that, as this work is done, we arrive at a balance between 
budgeted expenses and projected revenues that will be acceptable to MassDOR when the time comes to get our FY24 
tax rate certified (generally, late Nov/early Dec). 
   Please see correspondence below.  Based on this, it sounds like a budget reduction of $70k – or a combination of 
budget reduction plus transfer of Retained Earnings equaling or exceeding $70k – is the magic number.  If Jenny learns 
anything new from MassDOR we’ll be back in touch, but I wanted to share this latest update. 
 
Thanks, 
  Angus 
 
 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363-1100 x111 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 
 

From: Town Accountant <townaccountant@wnewbury.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 11:51 AM 
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: FW: Tax Recap **EXTERNAL EMAIL** 
 
FYI.  My inclination is to reduce user charges to 880,000 (again, this may still be high due to the amount of rain) but can 
wait until we hear back from Bobbi Jo… 
 
This would result in a $70,000 deficit that needs to be made up. 
 

From: Colburn, Bobbi J. (DOR) <colburnb@dor.state.ma.us>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 11:44 AM 
To: Town Accountant <townaccountant@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: RE: Tax Recap **EXTERNAL EMAIL** 
 
Hi Jenny, 
 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
249



2

Generally, any increase to enterprise revenues over the prior year’s actuals needs to have supporting documentation. I 
see that the revenue estimates for User Charges and Misc Revenue are increasing, but you say they did not raise 
rates.  What makes the town think that the higher revenue will come in over what was received in FY23? I will run this 
by my supervisor, but he is at an offsite meeting today, so he won’t look at it until tomorrow at the earliest. 
 
Bobbi 
 

From: Town Accountant <townaccountant@wnewbury.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 11:31 AM 
To: Colburn, Bobbi J. (DOR) <colburnb@dor.state.ma.us> 
Subject: RE: Tax Recap **EXTERNAL EMAIL** 
 
Good mor ning, Bobbi. Sorry to bother you with this but I was hopi ng that you could take a look at the esti mated revenues fr om the water departme nt and let me know I f you se e this as acceptabl e. They did not increase their rates. As you may  
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBa nnerStart 

 

This Message Is From an External Sender  

This message came from outside your organization.  
 

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBa nnerE nd  

Good morning, Bobbi.  Sorry to bother you with this but I was hoping that you could take a look at the estimated 
revenues from the water department and let me know If you see this as acceptable.  They did not increase their rates. 
 
As you may recall, we had an issue with this last year.  We know that the water department will need to bring an article 
to fall town meeting to either reduce their operating budget or supplement it with other funds, or both.  Prior to that, 
we want to be sure estimated revenues is on track: 
 

ENT 2020 2021 2022 2023  4-year AVG  
Water Interest & Demands        3,494.54             4,158.01             5,294.89             4,421.74              4,342.30              

Water User Charges    825,341.31     1,052,015.74         903,679.78         880,156.94          915,298.44          
Water System Development Rev      37,500.00             6,000.00             4,500.00           12,000.00            15,000.00              
Water Earnings on Investments      33,701.16             6,823.99             2,277.98           25,583.19            17,096.58            
Water Miscellaneous Revenue      92,771.13         109,739.24           84,958.98           82,220.07            92,422.36            

Water BAN Premium               2,997.47              2,997.47    

    992,808.14     1,178,736.98     1,000,711.63     1,007,379.41      1,044,159.67      
 
As always, thank you for your help. 
 
Best, 
Jenny 

 
Meeting packet for Select Board meeting on August 21, 2023

 
250


	a1 Website announcement re Aggregation Plan
	a2 West Newbury - Aggregation Plan with Educ Plan+Letter+ESA
	Aggregation Plan
	Education and Outreach Plan
	Opt-Out Documents
	Electric Service Agreement [DRAFT]

	a3 West Newbury - Language Access Document
	a4 Chuck Wegrzyn 7-17-23
	a5 Response to Chuck Wegrzyn 7-26-23
	a6 Response 2 to Chuck Wegrzyn 7-26-23
	a7 Elisa Grammer 8-3-23
	b IPC Charge 2020
	d1 B2Q email 8-7-23
	d2 Final Report - West Newbury Solar Site Feasibility Screening 2023-08-07_without appendices
	d3 Appendix A HelioScope Reports
	d4 Appendix B Sample BESS Cutsheet
	MPSi_125EHV_BESS (1).pdf
	BTM_125_datasheet_FRNT
	BTMEHV_datasheet_rear copy


	d5 Bldg Insp email re solar study 8-16-23
	d6 Cons Agent email re solar study 8-17-23
	e1 ARPA MOU with BOWC - DRAFT 8-10-23
	e2 ARPA MOU with BOWC - DRAFT 8-10-23 - with redlines from 8-4-23 draft
	e3 ARPA application
	f1 Water Rate Study - DRAFT - 8-7-23
	g1 Bartlett_Town of West Newbury_1419015_07-31-2023_Proposal
	g2 Bartlett Terms & Conditions Commercial
	h1 emails Kelli Webster 7-5-23
	h2 Learning Tree Lease 2023-25 DRAFT
	h3 Learning Tree lease workbook 2023
	h4 Kelli Webster email re SF 8-2-23
	h5 INDOOR SPACE SKETCH
	h6 Emails Kelli Webster 7-28-23
	m Email from C Wile 8-11-23
	n1 Select Board Rankings of Town Manager Projects Initiatives July 2023
	p1 20230717 Select Board Meeting Minutes PENDING
	381 Main Street, Town Office Building

	p2 20230724 Select Board Meeting Minutes PENDING
	381 Main Street, Town Office Building

	q1 TEC transmittal email 8-11-23
	q2 Main Street Crash Data Summary
	q3 T1346_W Newbury_MassDOT Agent Letter Aug 2023 - signed
	s1 notes for SB on whittier meeting
	s2 Whittier Agenda 8_9_23 (1)
	s3 Whittier handouts 8-10-23 meeting with clerrks
	t1 Environmental Monitor Notice
	t2 Complete Signed NOI with Eco Rest Appendix
	20230816150406191.pdf
	Complete NOI with Eco Rest Appendix.pdf
	Updated aerial maps for NOI.pdf
	Slide 1

	Binder1.pdf
	Updated aerial maps for NOI.pdf
	Slide 2
	Slide 3

	Complete NOI with Eco Rest Appendix.pdf
	Eco Resto Check list and attachments pending signature.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Notice of Intent - Professional Invasive Plant Management.pdf
	Signed NOI - Professional Inv Plant Management.pdf





	t3 RC-64792_West Newbury
	u 7520 MBTA Zoning Water Planning Assistance Letter Report
	v Letter approving parking area
	v3 Summary of Changes 8-17-2023.pdf
	Maura T. Healey, Governor   (   Kimberley Driscoll, Lieutenant Governor   (   Edward M. Augustus, Jr., Secretary

	a73 DPU 23-67_Vote and Order Opening Investigation (8-15-23).pdf
	I. introduction and Background
	II. request for comments
	III. VOTE AND order




